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To,

Listing/Compliance Department
BSE LTD.

Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers,
Dalal Street,

Mumbai — 400 001.

BSE CODE -524208

To,

Listing/Compliance Department
National Stock Exchange of
India Limited

“Exchange Plaza”, Plot No. C/1,
G Block Bandra-Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400 051.
NSE CODE:AARTIIND

Dear Sir/Madam,

Ref.: Notice of the NCLT Convened Meetings of the Secured
Creditors of the Company.

Pursuant to Regulation 30 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, please find enclosed Notice Convening
Meeting of Secured Creditors of Aarti Industries Limited for the purpose of considering, and if thought
fit, approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed Scheme of Arrangement between Aarti
Industries Limited (“AIL” or “Demerged Company” or “Company”) and Aarti Pharmalabs
Limited (“APL” or “Resulting Company”) (“Scheme”). Notice is given, in accordance with the
Order dated January 27, 2022 in the Company Scheme Application No. CA. (CAA) 84/AHM of 2021,
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench (“Tribunal”) (“Tribunal
Order”).

Meeting will be held through video conferencing (“VC")/other audio visual means (“OAVM’) on
Thursday, March 10, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. (IST). The Company has provided e-voting facility to the
Secured Creditors of the Company in connection with the resolution proposed in the aforesaid Notice.
The voting period begins on Monday, March 7, 2022 at 9:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Wednesday,
March 9, 2022 at 5:00 p.m. (IST).

The above Notice along with the Explanatory Statement of the meeting is also available on website of
the Company at www.aarti-industries.com.

Kindly take the same on record.
Thanking You,

Yours faithfully,

RAJ SARRAF X\ X% _
COMPANY SECRETARY
ICSI M. NO. A15526

Encl.: As above.

Regd. Office : Plot No. 801, 801/23, llird Phase, GIDC Vapi-396195, Dist- Valsad. INDIA. T : 0260-2400366.

www.aarti-industries.com | CIN: L24110GJ1984PLC007301
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BEFORE THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,

AHMEDABAD BENCH
C.A. (CAA). 84/AHM/2021
FORM NO. CAA. 2

[Pursuant to Section 230(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and

Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF SECURED CREDITORS OF AARTI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

PURSUANT TO ORDER DATED JANUARY 27, 2022 OF

THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL, AHMEDABAD BENCH

Details of the Meeting:

Day Thursday
Date March 10, 2022
Time 2:00 p.m. (IST)

Mode of meeting

In view of the Covid-19 pandemic and related social distancing norms and as
per the directions of the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad
Bench (“NCLT" / “Tribunal"), the Meeting shall be conducted through Video
Conferencing/ Other Audio Visual Means (“VC/OAVM") and deemed venue shall
be Plot Nos 801, 801/23, GIDC Estate, Phase Ill, Vapi - 396 195, Gujarat

Cut-off date for e-voting

Thursday, September 30, 2021

Remote e-voting start date and time

Monday, March 7,2022 at 9:00 a.m. (IST)

Remote e-voting end date and time

Wednesday, March 9, 2022 at 5.00 p.m. (IST)
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BEFORE THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
AHMEDABAD BENCH
C.A. (CAA). 84/AHM/2021

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016;

And

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement of
Aarti Industries Limited ("Demerged Company") with
Aarti Pharmalabs Limited ("Resulting Company") and
their respective shareholders.

Aarti Industries Limited, a company
incorporated under the provisions of
Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate

Identity Number L24110GJ1984PLC007301

and its registered office at Plot Nos 801, 801/23,
GIDC Estate, Phase Ill, Vapi - 396 195, Gujarat

—_— — — — — —

... Company/ Demerged Company
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NOTICE CONVENING MEETING OF SECURED CREDITORS OF AARTI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

All the Secured Creditors of
Aarti Industries Limited

NOTICE is hereby given that, in accordance with the Order
dated January 27,2022 in the above mentioned Company
Scheme Application No. CA. (CAA) 84/AHM of 2021,
passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal,
Ahmedabad Bench (“Tribunal”) (“Tribunal Order"), a
meeting of the secured creditors of the Company, will be
held for the purpose of their considering, and if thought fit,
approving, with or without modification(s), the proposed
Scheme of Arrangement between Aarti Industries
Limited ("AIL" or "Demerged Company" or “Company") &
its shareholders and Aarti Pharmalabs Limited ("APL" or
“Resulting Company") & its shareholders ("Scheme") on
Thursday, March 10, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. (IST), being the
date and time in terms of the Tribunal Order.

Pursuant to the said Tribunal Order and as directed therein,
the meeting of the secured creditors of the Company
("Meeting") will be held through video conferencing ("VC") /
other audio visual means ("OAVM"), in compliance with
the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
("Act") and Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations") to
consider, and if thought fit, pass, with or without
modification(s), the following resolution for approval of
the Scheme by requisite majority as prescribed under
Section 230(1) and (6) read with Section 232(1) of the
Act and SEBI Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated
March 10, 2017, SEBI Circular SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/
P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 and SEBI/HO/CFD/
DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021,
as amended from time to time:

SPECIAL BUSINESS

‘RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230 to 232 and read with other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the rules, circulars
and notifications made thereunder (including any statutory
modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time
being in force), subject to the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company
and subject to the approval of Hon'ble jurisdictional National
Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT’) and subject to such
other approvals, permissions and sanctions of regulatory
and other authorities, as may be necessary and subject
to such conditions and modifications as may be deemed
appropriate by the Parties to the Scheme, at any time and
for any reason whatsoever, or which may otherwise be
considered necessary, desirable or as may be prescribed
or imposed by the NCLT or by any regulatory or other
authorities, while granting such approvals, permissions and
sanctions, which may be agreed to by the Board of Directors
of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the (“Board’),
which term shall be deemed to mean and include one or
more Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the
Board or any other person authorised by it to exercise its
powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution),
the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement
between Aarti Industries Limited & its shareholders and
Aarti Pharmalabs Limited & its shareholders (“Scheme”), be
and is hereby approved;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things, as
it may, in its absolute discretion deem requisite, desirable,
appropriate or necessary to give effect to this Resolution
and effectively implement the arrangement embodied in the
Scheme and to make any modifications or amendments to
the Scheme at any time and for any reason whatsoever, and
to accept such modifications, amendments, limitations and/
or conditions, if any, which may be required and/or imposed
by the NCLT while sanctioning the arrangement embodied
in the Scheme or by any authorities under law, or as may
be required for the purpose of resolving any questions or
doubts or difficulties that may arise including passing of
such accounting entries and /or making such adjustments
in the books of accounts as considered necessary in giving
effect to the Scheme, as the Board may deem fit and proper.”



TAKE FURTHER NOTICE that the secured creditors shall
have the facility and option of voting on the resolution for
approval of the Scheme by casting their votes through
e-voting platform provided by NSDL during the period
as stated below:

REMOTE E-VOTING PERIOD

Commencement of e-voting Monday, March 7, 2022 at
9:00 a.m. (IST)

End of e-voting Wednesday, March 9, 2022 at
5:00 p.m. (IST)

The secured creditors as per the books of accounts as
on September 30, 2021 only shall be entitled to exercise
his/her/its voting rights on the resolution proposed in
the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who is not
a secured creditor as on September 30 2021, should treat
the Notice for information purpose only.

A copy of the said Scheme, statement under
Sections 230 and 232 read with Section 102 and other
applicable provisions ofthe Actand Rule 6 of the Companies
(Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations)
Rules, 2016 ("CAA Rules") along with all annexures to such
statement are enclosed herewith. A copy of this Notice
and the accompanying documents are also placed on the
website of the Company viz. www.aarti-industries.com;
the website of National Securities Depository Limited
at https:;//www.evoting.nsdl.com/, being the agency
appointed by the Companyto provide thee-votingand other
facilities for convening of the Meeting; and the website of
the Stock Exchanges, i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com and
www.nseindia.com respectively.

6. The Tribunal has appointed Mr. Justice (Retd.)
D.K. Deshmukh to be the Chairperson for the
Meeting. Mr. Sunil M. Dedhia, Practicing Company
Secretary (ICSI M. No. F3483) has been appointed
as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-voting
and the voting process at the Meeting in a fair and
transparent manner.

7. The above mentioned Scheme, if approved at the
aforesaid Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent
sanction of the Tribunal and such other approvals,
permissions and sanctions of regulatory or other
authorities, as may be necessary.

Vapi, February 5, 2022 sd/-
Justice (Retd.) D.K. Deshmukh
Chairperson appointed by Tribunal for the Meeting

Registered Office:

Plot Nos 801, 801/23,

GIDC Estate, Phase lll,

Vapi - 396 195, Gujarat

Website: www.aarti-industries.com
E-mail: raj.sarraf@aarti-industries.com
Tel.:+91 22 6797 6666

Fax: +91 22 2565 3234
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NOTES:

1.

Pursuant to the directions of the Hon'ble National
Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench vide its Order
dated January 27, 2022 (“Tribunal”), the Meeting of the
secured creditors of the Company is being conducted
through Video Conferencing ("VC") / other audio visual
means ("OAVM") facility to transact the business set out
in the Notice convening this Meeting. As such, physical
attendance of secured creditors has been dispensed
with. The deemed venue for the Meeting shall be the
registered office of the Company.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Sections 230
and 232 read with Section 102 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Rule 6
of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 in respect of the business
set out in the Notice of the Meeting is annexed hereto.

The Meeting is proposed to be conducted through Video
Conferencing (“VC") / other audio visual means ("OAVM")
facility. Accordingly, the facility of appointment of proxies
will not be available for the Tribunal Convened Meeting
and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance Slip are not
annexed to this Notice. However, pursuant to Section 112
and Section 113 of the Act, Authorized Representatives of
the secured creditors may be appointed for the purpose
of voting through remote e-voting, for participation in the
Tribunal Convened Meeting through VC/OAVM facility
and e-voting during the Tribunal Convened Meeting,
provided an authority letter/ power of attorney by the
board of directors or a certified copy of the resolution
passed by its board of directors or other governing body
authorizing such representative to attend and vote at
the Tribunal Convened Meeting, on its behalf, along with
the attested specimen signature of the duly authorized
signatories who are authorized to vote is emailed to
sunil@sunildedhia.com/ raj.sarraf@aarti-industries.com.

The secured creditors can join the Tribunal Convened
Meeting in the VC/ OAVM mode 30 minutes before
and after the scheduled time of the commencement
of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned
herein below. The facility of participation at the
Tribunal Convened Meeting through VC/ OAVM will be
made available to the secured creditors on 'first come
first serve' basis.

The secured creditors as per the books of accounts as
on September 30,2021 only shall be entitled to exercise
his/her/its voting rights on the resolution proposed

10.

11.

in the Notice and attend the Meeting. A person who
is not a secured creditor as on September 30 2021,
should treat the Notice for information purpose only.
The voting rights of the Secured Creditors shall be
in proportion to their outstanding amount in the
Applicant/ Demerged Company as on cut-off date
i.e. September 30, 2021.

No route map of the venue of the Meeting is annexed
hereto, sincethisMeetingisbeingheldthroughVC/OAVM.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such
joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote at the Meeting.

Secured Creditors attending the Meeting through
VC / OAVM shall be reckoned for the purpose of quorum.
In terms of the Tribunal Order and Section 103 of the Act.

The Notice of the Meeting and the accompanying
documents mentioned in the Index are being sent through
electronic mode to those secured creditors whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/ Registrar and
Share Transfer Agent/ Depositories and by Post / courier
to the secured creditors whose email addresses are not
registered with the Company. The Secured creditors may
note that this Notice along with the relevant documents
will be available on the website of the Demerged Company
at www.aarti-industries.com, on the website of the stock
exchanges, ie, BSE, at www.bseindia.com and NSE
at www.nseindia.com and on the website of NSDL at
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/.

In compliance with the aforesaid Circulars, the
Demerged Company shall publish a public notice by
way of an advertisement in Financial Express (English)
having nationwide circulation; and Hindi translation
thereof in Jansatta having nationwide circulation and
Gujarati translation thereof in Daman Ganga Times,
having circulation in Vapi, and stating that copies of the
Scheme and the said statement required to be furnished
pursuant to Section 102 read with Section 230 to 232
of the Companies Act, 2013 can be obtained free
of charge by emailing the Demerged Company at
raj.sarraf@aarti-industries.com.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of
the Act read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014, Regulation 44 of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
("Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars and



SEBI Circulars, the Demerged Company is pleased to
provide to its secured creditors facility to exercise their
right to vote on resolution proposed to be passed in the
Tribunal Convened Meeting by electronic means.

12. NSDL will be providing facilities for remote e-voting,
participation in the Tribunal Convened Meeting
through VC/ OAVM and e-voting during the Tribunal
Convened Meeting.

13. This Scheme shall be conditional upon and subject to the
approval by requisite majorities in number and value of
the Shareholders / Creditors of the Company as the case
may be in accordance with Sections 230to 232 of the Act.

14. The Scrutiniser shall,immediately after the conclusion of
voting at Court Convened Meeting, count the votes cast
at the meeting, thereafter unblock the votes cast through
remote e-voting in the presence of at least two witnesses
not in the employment of the Company. Scrutiniser shall
within 2 working days of conclusion of the meeting
submit a consolidated scrutiniser report of the total votes
cast in favour or against, if any. The results along with
the Scrutinisers Report shall be placed on the website
of the Company and on the website of NSDL and shall
be communicated to BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited.

THEINSTRUCTIONS TO SECURED CREDITORS FORREMOTE
E-VOTING AND E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE AS UNDER:

(i)  The voting period begins on Monday, March 7, 2022 at
9:00 a.m. (IST) and ends on Wednesday, March 9, 2022
at 5:00 p.m. (IST). During this period secured creditors
of the Company, as on the cut-off date (record date) of
September 30, 2021 may cast their vote electronically.
The e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for
voting thereafter.

(i) Secured Creditors who have already voted prior to the
meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the meeting.

(i) Open the e-mail and open the .pdf file. Please note
that the password to open the .pdf file is the Unique ID
mentioned in the email.

(iv) Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by
typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com
either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

(v)  Oncethehome page of e-Voting system s launched, click
ontheicon "Login” which is available under 'Shareholder/
Member' section.

(vi) Your Login id and password details casting your vote
electronically and for attending the Meeting of Creditors
through VC/ OAVM are attached in the pdf file enclosed
herewith. Please note that the password to open the pdf
file is the unique id mentioned above or the first time the
system will ask to reset your password

After entering your password, tick on Agree to "Terms and
Conditions" by selecting on the check box.

Now, you will have to click on "Login" button.

(ix) After you click on the “Login" button, Home page of
E-Voting will open.

(X) You will be able to see the Company "EVEN - 119238"
who's voting cycle is in active status.

(xi) Select "EVEN - 119238" of the Company.
(xii) Now you are ready for E-Voting as the Voting page opens.

(xiii) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options,
i.e, assent or dissent, and click on "Submit" and
“"Confirm" when prompted.

(xiv) Upon confirmation, the message "Vote cast successfully”
will be displayed.

(xv) You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by
clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR JOINING MEETING THROUGH VC/
OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

1. Secured Creditors will be able to attend the meeting
through VC / OAVM or view the live webcast of the meeting
provided by NSDL at https://www.evoting.nsdl.com
following the steps mentioned above for access to NSDL
e-Voting system. Secured Creditors will be provided with
a facility to attend the meeting through VC/OAVM through
the NSDL e-voting system. Secured Creditors may access
by following the steps mentioned for Login as mentioned
above. After successful login, you can see link of "VC/
OAVM" placed under 'Join GENERAL Meeting” menu
against company name. You are requested to click on VC/
OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for
VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login
where the EVEN No. 119238 of Company will be displayed.
Please note that the Secured Creditors who do not have the
User ID and Password for e-voting or have forgotten the
User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following
the remote e-voting instructions mentioned in the notice to
avoid last minute rush.
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Facility of joining the meeting through VC / OAVM
shall open 30 minutes before the time scheduled
for the meeting.

Secured Creditors who need assistance before or during
the meeting, can contact NSDL on evoting@nsdl.co.in or
contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Asst. Vice President - NSDL at
toll free number 1800-1020-990/ 1800-22-44-30.

Secured Creditors who would like to express their
views / ask questions during the meeting may register
themselves as a speaker by sending their request
to raj.sarraf@aarti-industries.com by March 7, 2022
mentioning their name, registered e-mail address,
mobile number and PAN. Those Secured Creditors who
have registered themselves as a speaker will only be
allowed to express their views/ask questions during the
meeting. The Company reserves the right to restrict the
number of speakers depending on the availability of time
for the meeting.

Other Information:

Login to e-voting website will be disabled upon five
unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such
an event, you will need to go through the '‘Physical User Reset
Password?' option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to
reset the password.

Your loginid and password can be used by you exclusively
for e-voting on the resolution placed by the companies in
which you are the Secured Creditor.

It is strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep
it confidential.

In case of any queries, you may refer to the Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) for members and e-voting user
manual for members available at the Downloads sections of
www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll

free no.: 1800 1020 990 /1800 224 430.



BEFORE THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
AHMEDABAD BENCH
C.A. (CAA). 84/AHM/2021

In the matter of the Companies Act, 2013;
And

In the matter of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with
the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016;

And

In the matter of Scheme of Arrangement of Aarti
Industries Limited ("“Demerged Company"”) with Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited (“Resulting Company") and their
respective shareholders.

Aarti Industries Limited, a company
incorporated under the provisions of

Companies Act, 1956 having Corporate

and its registered office at Plot Nos 801, 801/23,

)
)
)
Identity Number L24110GJ1984PLC007301 )
)
)

GIDC Estate, Phase Ill, Vapi - 396 195, Gujarat.

... Company/ Demerged Company

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT UNDER SECTIONS 230 AND 232 READ WITH SECTION 102 AND OTHER APPLICABLE
PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“ACT") AND RULE 6 OF THE COMPANIES (COMPROMISES, ARRANGEMENTS
AND AMALGAMATIONS) RULES, 2016 (“CAA RULES") TO THE NOTICE OF THE MEETING OF SECURED CREDITORS OF
AARTI INDUSTRIES LIMITED CONVENED PURSUANT TO ORDER OF THE HON'BLE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL,
AHMEDABAD BENCH (“TRIBUNAL") DATED JANUARY 27, 2022 (“TRIBUNAL ORDER")

Pursuant to the order dated January 27, 2022 passed by the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Ahmedabad Bench
(hereinafter referred to as "NCLT" / "Hon'ble Tribunal") in Company Application being C.A. (CAA). No. 84/AHM/2021 filed by
Aarti Industries Limited, (hereinafter referred to as the "Demerged Company") and Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the "Resulting Company"”), a meeting of the secured creditors of the Demerged Company (“Tribunal
Convened Meeting") is being convened on Thursday, March 10, 2022, at 2:00 p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing
("v€")/ Other Audio Visual Means ("OAVM") without the physical presence of the secured creditors at acommon venue, as
per applicable procedure (with requisite modifications as may be required) mentioned in the General Circular No. 14/2020
dated April 8, 2020, General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, General Circular No.22/2020 dated June 15, 2020,
General Circular No. 33/2020 dated September 28, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, General
Circular N0.10/2021 dated June 23, 2021 and further clarification dated December 8, 2021 issued by the Ministry of
Corporate Affairs, Government of India (hereinafter referred to as "MCA Circulars") and Securities and Exchange Board
of India (SEBI) Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 dated January 15, 2021 read with SEBI Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020 (hereinafter referred to as "SEBI Circulars"), for the purpose
of considering the arrangement embodied in the Scheme of Arrangement between Demerged Company and Resulting
Company and their respective shareholders (hereinafter referred to as the "Scheme"). A copy of the Scheme setting out
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details of parties involved in the Scheme, appointed date,
effective date, and other details is enclosed herewith and
forms a part of the Notice.

The Tribunal has appointed Mr. Justice (Retd)
D.K. Deshmukh to be the Chairperson for the Meeting.
Further, the Tribunal has also appointed Mr. Sunil M.
Dedhia, Practicing Company Secretary (ICSI M. No.
F3483), as the Scrutinizer for the Tribunal Convened
Meeting. The Scheme, if approved in the Tribunal
Convened Meeting, will be subject to the subsequent
approval of the Tribunal.

The draft Scheme was approved by the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company at their respective meetings, both held on
August 19, 2021. In accordance with the provisions
of Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI")
Circular bearing no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March
10, 2017 and SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249
dated December 22, 2020 and SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/
CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021,
as amended time to time, the Audit Committee and the
Committee of Independent Directors of the Demerged
Company, at their respective meetings, vide a resolution
passed on August 19, 2021 recommended the Scheme
of Arrangement and Demerger to the Board of Directors
of the Demerged Company, The Board of Directors of the
Demerged Company at its meeting held on August 19,
2021, approved the Scheme of Arrangement, inter alia,
based on such recommendation of the Audit Committee
and the Committee of Independent Directors.

List of the Companies/Parties involved in the Scheme:

(@) Aarti Industries Limited (Demerged Company)
(b) Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (Resulting Company)

Background of the Companies
1. Particulars of the Demerged Company

(@ Aarti  Industries  Limited ("Demerged
Company") having Corporate Identity
Number (CIN) L24110GJ1984PLC007301 was
incorporated on September 28, 1984, under
the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956. The
registered office of the Company is situated at
Plot Nos 801, 801/23, GIDC Estate, Phase lll,
Vapi - 396 195, Gujarat, India. The Company
is accordingly registered with the Registrar
of Companies, Ahmedabad having Corporate
Identity Number L24110GJ1984PLCO07301.
Its Permanent Account Number with the
Income Tax Department is AABCA2787L.
The email address of the Company is
raj.sarraf@aarti-industries.com and website
is www.aarti-industries.com. During the last
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five years, there has been no change in the
name and registered office of the Company.
The equity shares of the Company are listed
on BSE Limited ("BSE") and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited ("NSE").

The main objects of the Demerged Company
are set out in the Memorandum of Association
which are as under

1. "Tocarry on the business of manufacturers,
producers, processors, buyers, sellers,
importers, exporters and/or otherwise
dealers in fine chemicals, industrial and
pure chemicals, organic and inorganic
chemicals and allied products, perfumes,
flavours, pure drug solvents, dyes and drug
intermediates, cosmetics, insecticides,
pesticides, heavy chemicals, alkalies, acids,
chemical, industrial preparations, chemicals
for plastic, pigment, varnishes, paints,
alchohols, dyes and colours, agrochemicals,
petrochemicals, makers and dealers in
preparatory formulations and articles of the
above nature and of chemicals.

2. To carry on the business of manufacturers,
processors, importers, exporters, and/or
dealers in chemical preparations required
by different industries such as sugar
tanning, textiles, metallurgical and process
industries, proofing, materials, disinfectants,
oils, cotton, detergents, wetting out agents,
soap, tallow, gums, varnishes, synthetics,
resins, catalystic agents, petro-chemicals
and other petroleum products and articles
and compounds.”

The Demerged Company has not changed its
name, registered office, and objects during the
last five years.

The share capital of the Company as on
September 30, 2021 is set out below.

Particulars

Amount in INR

Authorised share capital

600,000,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each

300,00,00,000

Total

300,00,00,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

362,504,035 Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each fully

paid up

181,25,20,175

Total

181,25,20,175

There has been no change in the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed
and Paid-Up Share Capital of the Demerged Company as on date.
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The details of Directors and Promoters of

the Demerged Company (as on the date of
the Notice) along with their addresses are
mentioned herein below

Directors

Sr.

No.

Name

Category

Address

Mr. Rajendra Vallabhaji

Gogri

Chairman &
Managing Director

2402 Richmond,

Cliff Avenue, Near Forest
Club, Hiranandani Gardens,
Powai, Mumbai - 400 076.

Mr. Rashesh
Chandrakant Gogri

Vice-Chairman &
Managing Director

1802 Richmond,

Cliff Avenue, Near
Hiranandani School,
Hiranandani Gardens,
Powai lIT, Powai,
Mumbai - 400 076.

Mr. Parimal Hasmukhlal

Desai

Executive Director

A-1403, Runwal Heights,
LBS Marg Opp. Nirmal
Lifestyle, Mulund West,
Mumbai - 400 080.

Mr. Manoj Mulji Chheda

Executive Director

201, Dunhill Villa,
Besant Street,
Santacruz (West),
Mumbai—400 054.

Mr. Kirit Ratilal Mehta

Executive Director

10 Pushpendra Mansion,
10 Phirozshah Street,
Santacruz (West)
Mumbai - 400 054.

Mrs. Hetal Gogri Gala

Executive Director

552-B, Gopal Sadan,
Block No. 801, 8th Floor,
Jame Jamshed Road,
Matunga (East),
Mumbai - 400 019.

Mr. Renil Rajendra Gogri

Executive Director

2402 Richmond, Cliff
Avenue, Near Forest Club,
Hiranandani Gardens,
Powai, Mumbai - 400 076.

Mr. Narendra Jagannath

Salvi

Executive Director

B-5, Voltas Co. Op. Hsg. Soc,
Shivsrushti,

Kurla East,

Mumbai - 400 024.

Mr. KVS Shyamsunder

Rammurthy

Non-Executive
and Independent
Director

Flat No. 82, Jeyshta
Tarangan Society,
Pokhran Road No. 1,
Thane West - 400 606.

Mr. Premchandra
Amolak Sethi

Non-Executive
and Independent
Director

12-A, Viceroy Park,
Tower D, Thakur Village,
Kandivali E,

Mumbai - 400 107.

Mr. Bhavesh Rasiklal
Vora

Non-Executive
and Independent
Director

B/702, Kailash Jyot-2,
Opposite Gayatri Tower,
Derasar Lane,
Rajawadi,

Ghatkopar East,
Mumbai - 400 077.
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Sr.  |Name Category Address
No.
12. |Mr. Ganapati Non-Executive Flat No 1201, A Wing,
Dadasaheb Yadav and Independent |Plot No 11,12,13,
Director Palm Springs CHSL,
Sector 7, Airoli, Thane,
Navi Mumbai - 400 708.
13. |Mrs. Priti Paras Savla Non-Executive 501, Arihant Tower,
and Independent |Sane Guruji Marg,
Director Thane 400 602.
14. |Mr. Vinay Gopal Nayak |Non-Executive 601, Royal Grace CHS.,
and Independent |Lokmanya Tilak Vasahat
Director Rd - 2, Behind Swami
Narayan Temple, Dadar
(East), Mumbai - 400 014.
15. | Mr. Lalitkumar Non-Executive Flat No. 33, Gaurav CHS,
Shantaram Naik and Independent |Sayani Road, Prabhadevi,
Director Mumbai - 400 025.
16. |Mrs. Natasha Kersi Non-Executive 686, Parsi Colony, Dadar,

Treasurywala

and Independent

Mumbai - 400 014.

Director Maharashtra
ii) Promoters
Sr. |Name Category Address
No.
1. |Mr. Chandrakant Promoter 1801, Richmond Tower
Vallabhaji Gogri Cliff Avenue, Hiranandani
Garden Near Hiranandani
School, Powai
Mumbai - 400 076.
2. |Mr. Rajendra Vallabhaji  |Promoter 2402 Richmond, Cliff
Gogri Avenue, Near Forest Club,
Hiranandani Gardens,
Powai, Mumbai - 400 076.
3. |Mr. Parimal Hasmukhlal [Promoter A-1403, Runwal Heights,
Desai LBS Marg Opp. Nirmal
Lifestyle, Mulund West,
Mumbai - 400 080.
4. |Mrs. Sarla Shantilal Shah|Promoter Flat No 404, 4th Floor
Raheja Havenprananajali
Prananjali, JVPD Scheme,
Plot No 21 22,
Mumbai - 400 049.
5. |Mrs. Bhavna Shah Lalka |Promoter 404 Raheja Haven
Prananjali, 21 22 Ashok
Nagar Society, NS Road
No 10 JVPD Scheme,
Mumbai - 400 049.
6. |Mr. Mananjay Singh Promoter C-16 FF Etanjali Enclave,
Garewal Delhi Delhi-110017.
7. |Mrs. Monisha Bhatia Promoter House No 1079 Sector 15,

Escorts Nagar
Faridabad - 121 007.
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Sr. |Name Category Address
No.

8. |Mrs. Shreya Suneja Promoter House No 114 Sector 14,
Faridabad - 121 007.

9. |Mr. Jayesh Shah Promoter Gunjan Bhokare Colony,
Sangli Miraj Road,
Miraj Sangli India 416 410.

10. |M/s Orchid Family Trust |Promoter 127, 1st Floor, Udyog
Kshetra, Mulund Goregaon
Link Road, Near D Mart,
Mulund (West),

Mumbai - 400 080.

11. |M/s Bhavna Family Promoter C/0 Bhavna Family Private
Private Trust Trust, 208 Ceejay House,
Dr Annie Besant Rd,
Shivsagar Estate, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018.

(f) The amount due to unsecured creditors as
on September 30, 2021 is T 12,82,17,73,671
(Rupees One Thousand Two Hundred Eighty
Two crores Seventeen Lakhs Seventy Three
Thousands Six Hundred Seventy One only)

(@ Amounts due to secured as on September
30, 2021 is ¥ 20,09,11,562,032 (Rupees Two
Thousands Nine Crores Eleven Lakhs Fifty
Two Thousands Thirty Two Only)

2. Particulars of the Resulting Company

(@) Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (Formerly known
as Aarti Organics Limited) (“Resulting
Company") having Corporate Identity
Number (CIN) U24100GJ2019PLC110964
was incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 as “Aarti Organics
Limited” on November 22, 2019. The registered
office of the Resulting Company is situated
at Plot No. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, 1st Phase,
G.I.D.C. Vapi, District Valsad Gujarat — 396
195 Its Permanent Account Number with the
Income Tax Department is AASCA9722G. The
email address of the Resulting Company is
raj.sarraf@aarti-industries.com. Shares of the
Resulting Company are not listed on any of the
stock exchanges.

(b) Main objects of the Resulting Company are
set out in the Memorandum of Association
which are as under

“To carry on the business of manufacturers,
producers, processors, job worker, buyers,
sellers,  importers,  exporters,  stockists,
agents, merchants, distributors of and/or

(d)

otherwise dealers in fine chemicals, industrial
and pure chemicals, organic and inorganic
chemicals, speciality chemicals, dyes, drugs,
pharmaceuticals and allied products including
but not limited to perfumes, toilet goods,
detergents,  flavours, solvents, chemical/
drug / dye intermediates, cosmetics,
insecticides, pesticides, fertilizers, heavy
chemicals, alkalis, acids, chemical, industrial
preparations, synthetics, resins, chemicals for
plastic, pigments, varnishes, paints, alcohols,
agrochemicals, petrochemicals, makers and
dealers in preparatory formulations and articles
of the above nature within and / or outside India.”

The Resulting Company has changed its
name on August 18, 2021. However, there is
no change in the registered office, and objects
since its inception.

The share capital of the Resulting Company as
on September 30, 2021 is set out below

Particulars

Amount in INR

Authorised share capital

5,00,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each 50,00,000

Total

50,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

2,560,000 Equity Shares of ¥ 10/- each fully 25,00,000
paid up
Total 25,00,000

There has been no change in the Authorized, Issued, Subscribed

and Paid-Up Share Capital of the Resulting Company as on date.

©)

i) Directors

The details of Directors and Promoters of the
Resulting Company along with their addresses
are mentioned herein below:

Sr. |Name
No.

Category |Address

1. Mr. Rajendra
Vallabhaji Gogri Forest Club, Hiranandani Gardens,

Director | 2402 Richmond, Cliff Avenue, Near

Powai, Mumbai - 400 076.

2. Mr. Rashesh
Chandrakant Gogri Hiranandani School, Hiranandani

Director | 1802 Richmond, Cliff Avenue, Near

Gardens, Powai IIT, Powai,
Mumbai - 400 076.

3. Mrs. Hetal Gogri Director |552-B, Gopal Sadan, Block No. 801,

Gala 8th Floor, Jame Jamshed Road,
Matunga (East), Mumbai - 400 019.
4. Mr. Narendra Director | B-5, Voltas Co. Op. Hsg. Soc.,
Jagannath Salvi Shivsrushti, Kurla East,

Mumbai - 400 024.

5. Mr. Chetan Bipin Director | 214/5770, Uday, 90 Feet Road,

Gandhi

Near Ganesh Mandir, Ghatkopar (E),
Mumbai - 400 075.
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The Board of Directors of Demerged Company at its
Board Meeting held on August 19, 2021 has unanimously
approved the Scheme, as detailed below:

ii) Promoters
Sr. Name Category Address
No.
1. Aarti Industries Promoter Plot Nos 801, 801/23, GIDC Estate,
Limited Phase Ill, Vapi - 396 195.
2. Mr. Chandrakant | Promoter 1801, Richmond Tower Cliff
Vallabhaji Gogri Avenue, Hiranandani Garden,
Near Hiranandani School, Powai,
Mumbai - 400 076.
3. Mr. Rajendra Promoter 2402 Richmond, Cliff Avenue,
Vallabhaji Gogri Near Forest Club, Hiranandani
Gardens, Powai,
Mumbai - 400 076.
4, Mr Parimal Promoter A-1403, Runwal Heights, LBS Marg,
Hasmukhlal Opp. Nirmal Lifestyle, Mulund West,
Desai Mumbai - 400 080.
5. Mrs. Sarla Promoter Flat No 404, 4th Floor,
Shantilal Shah Raheja Havenprananajali Prananjali,
JVPD Scheme, Plot No 21 22
Mumbai - 400 049.
6. Mrs Bhavna Shah | Promoter 404 Raheja, Haven Prananjali,
Lalka 21 22 Ashok Nagar Society,
NS Road, No 10, JVPD Scheme,
Mumbai - 400 049
7. Mr. Mananjay Promoter C-16 FF Etanjali Enclave Delhi,
Singh Garewal Delhi-110017.
8. Mrs. Monisha Promoter House No 1079 Sector 15,
Bhatia Escorts Nagar Faridabad - 121 007.
9. Mrs. Shreya Promoter House No 114, Sector 14,
Suneja Faridabad - 121 007.
10. Mr. Jayesh Shah | Promoter Gunjan Bhokare Colony,
Sangli Miraj Road,
Miraj Sangli - India 416 410.
11. M/s Orchid Promoter 127, st Floor, Udyog Kshetra,
Family Trust Mulund Goregaon Link Road,
Near D Mart, Mulund (West),
Mumbai - 400 080.
12. M/s Bhavna Promoter C/0 Bhavna Family Private Trust,
Family Private 208 Ceejay House,
Trust Dr Annie Besant Rd,
Shivsagar Estate, Worli,
Mumbai - 400 018.
(f) The amount due to unsecured creditors as on
September 30, 2021 is ¥ 1,30,786/- (Rupees
One Lakh Thirty Thousand Seven Hundred
Eighty Six only)
(g) Amounts due to secured creditors as on
September 30, 2021: Nil
VI. Relationship subsisting between Parties to the Scheme
The Resulting Company is the Wholly-Owned Subsidiary
of the Demerged Company.
VII. Details of the Board meeting at which the Scheme was

approved by the Board of Directors of the Applicant
Companies including the name of the Directors who
voted in favour of the resolution, who voted against
the resolution and who did not vote or participate on
such resolution

Name of Directors Voted in favour / against /
did not participate or vote

Mr. Rajendra Vallabhaji Gogri In Favour

Mr. Rashesh Chandrakant Gogri In Favour

Mr. Parimal Hasmukhlal Desai In Favour

Mr. Manoj Mulji Chheda In Favour

Mr. Kirit Ratilal Mehta In Favour

Mrs. Hetal Gogri Gala In Favour

Mr. Renil Rajendra Gogri In Favour

Mr. Narendra Jagannath Salvi In Favour

Mr. KVS Shyamsunder Rammurthy In Favour

Mr. Premchandra Amolak Sethi In Favour

Mr.Bhavesh Rasiklal Vora In Favour

Mr. Ganapati Dadasaheb Yadav In Favour

Mrs. Priti Paras Savla In Favour

Mr. Vinay Gopal Nayak In Favour

Mr. Lalitkumar Shantaram Naik In Favour

The Board of Directors of Resulting Company at its
Board Meeting held on August 19, 2021 has unanimously
approved the Scheme, as detailed below:

Name of Directors Voted in favour / against /
did not participate or vote

Mr. Rajendra Vallabhaji Gogri In Favour

Mr. Rashesh Chandrakant Gogri In Favour

Mrs. Hetal Gogri Gala In Favour

Mr. Narendra Jagannath Salvi In Favour

Mr. Chetan Bipin Gandhi In Favour

VIII. Rationale and benefits of the Scheme

Aarti Industries Limited basically has 2 (Two) business
verticalsi.e., specialty chemicals and pharmaceuticals
with divergent business profile, growth potential,
risk-rewards, regulatory and capital requirements and
are largely independent of each other.

The Demerged Undertaking relates to pharma
manufacturing units, allied activities, investments and
cash balance & cash equivalents for future Capital
Expenditures of Demerged Undertaking. In order to
create overall value for the shareholders and also to
enable management of the company to focus and
adopt the relevant strategies necessary for promoting
growth and expansion of the Demerged Undertaking,
it is proposed that the Demerged Undertaking, (as
specifically set out in the Scheme), be demerged and
transferred to the Resulting Company under the terms
and conditions of this Scheme.
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The shareholders of Demerged Company, pursuant
to the demerger, will get Equity Shares of Resultant
Company for the Values of Business Transferred in the
manner set out under this Scheme.

The demerger will also result in Demerged Company
and Resulting Company achieving operational
efficiencies by streamlining of the relevant businesses.

By demerger of the Demerged Undertaking into
Resulting Company, the financial resources will
be conveniently raised in accordance with the
requirement of the business.

The demerger will enable Resulting Company to
expand its presence in the fast-moving Pharma
Business in India and abroad.

The demerger will result into two dedicated and
focused business segments i.e. Speciality Chemical
and Pharma without any risk or overlap of one
business over the other.

IX. SALIENT FEATURES OF THE SCHEME

Th

e salient features of the Scheme, inter alia, are as stated

below. The capitalized terms used herein shall have the
same meaning as described in Clause 1 of the Scheme:

@

(b)

©

Demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of
Demerged Company and vesting the same
with and into the Resulting Company, on a
going concern basis;

The Appointed Date means the opening of business
hours on July 1,2027;

In consideration of the proposed Scheme, the
Resulting Company will issue and allot equity
shares, to each shareholder of the Demerged
Company, whose names appear in the register of
members of Demerged Company on the record
date in the following manner:

“Issue and allot equity shares at par on a
proportionate basis to each member of Aarti
Industries Limited whose name is recorded in the
register of member of Aarti Industries Limited as
holding shares on the Record Date, in the ratio of
1 (one) equity shares of ¥ 5/- each fully paid up of
Aarti Pharmalabs Limited for every 4 (four) equity
shares of ¥ 5/- each fully paid up held in Aarti
Industries Limited.”

(d) The equity shares proposed to be allotted by the
Resulting Company will be listed on BSE Limited
and National Stock Exchange of India Limited,
recognized stock exchanges having nationwide
trading platform.

(e) The Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company will follow the method of accounting
as per the applicable accounting principles as
prescribed under the Companies (Indian Accounting
standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) as notified
under Section 133 of the Act, as may be amended
from time to time and relevant clarifications
issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India.

(f) This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon
and subject to:

(@) The requisite consents, no-objections and
approvals of the Stock Exchanges and SEBI to
the Scheme in terms of the SEBI Circular, on
terms acceptable to AIL and APL.

(b) The approval of the Scheme by the respective
requisite majorities in number and value of the
shareholders of the Companies in accordance
with section 230 to 232 of the Act;

(c) AIL&APL, as the case may be, complying with
other provisions of the SEBI Circular, including
seeking approval of the shareholders of the
Demerged Company through e-voting;

(d) The Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal
in terms of sections 230 to 232 and other
relevant provisions of the Act and the requisite
orders of the Tribunal and

(e) Certified copies of the orders of the
Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme being filed
with the relevant Registrar of Companies
by AIL and APL as per the provisions of
the Act.

Note: The above are the salient features of the
Scheme. The secured creditors are requested to read
the entire text of the Scheme annexed hereto to get
fully acquainted with the provisions thereof.



XL

Appointed Date and Effective date of the Scheme

(a)
(b)

Appointed Date shall mean July 1, 2021.

"Effective Date" means the date on which all the
conditions and matters in relation to the Scheme
referred to in clause 19 of this Scheme have
been fulfilled.

Consideration

1.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and
in consideration of the demerger of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company pursuant to
this Scheme, the Resulting Company shall, without
any further act or deed and without any further
payment, issue and allot equity shares at par on a
proportionate basis to each member of AlL, whose
name is recorded in the register of members of AlL
as holding shares on the Record Date, in the ratio of:

1 (one) fully paid up equity shares of X 5/- each
of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (“APL") for every 4
(four) fully paid up equity share of X 5/- each held
in Aarti Industries Limited (“AIL").

Cancellation of shares of the Resulting Company:

Simultaneous with the issuance and allotment
of the equity shares by the Resulting Company in
accordance with the Clause 13.1 of the Scheme, the
initial issued and paid up equity share capital of the
Resulting Company, comprising of 2,50,000 equity
shares of ¥ 10/- each, aggregating to ¥ 25,00,000/-
shall be cancelled.

The equity shares of the Resulting Company shall
be issued in such a manner that the percentage
of shareholding of the equity shareholders of the
Demerged Company in the Resulting Company,
after giving effect to cancellation of equity shares
of the Resulting Company, is mirror image in the
Demerged Company.

Further, the Resulting Company shall apply to the
BSE and NSE for listing and admission to trading,
of all the equity shares issued under this Scheme,
in terms of the provisions of SEBI master circular
no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated
December 22, 2020.
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Xll. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

1.

Accounting Treatment in the books of Aarti
Industries Limited (AIL)

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with
effect from the Appointed Date, AIL shall account
for demerger in its books of accounts in accordance
with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act
2013, in the following manner:

(@ AIL shall reduce the book value of assets
(net of diminution/depreciation, if any)
and liabilities relating to the Demerged
Undertaking, transferred to APL in accordance
with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

(b) The excess of book value of the assets
transferred (net of diminution/depreciation,
if any) over the book value of the liabilities of
the Demerged Undertaking to APL shall be
adjusted first to Securities Premium Account &
General Reserve Account in the ratio of Values
of Business transfer and thereafter balance,
if any, to Retained earnings/profit and loss
account balance of AlL.

(c) AIL shall reduce & transfer Contingent
Liability, if any, pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking to APL.

(d) AIL shall reduce & transfer Other

Comprehensive Income created as per IND
AS related to Assets & Liability transferred
of Demerged Undertaking under the
Scheme of Demerger.

(e) Theapproval granted by the shareholders of AlL
to this Scheme shall be deemed to be approval
required under the provisions of the Act.

(f)  Pursuant to Scheme becoming effective, All's
Investment in Resulting Company will stand
cancelled & Resulting Company will seize to be
100% subsidiary of AlL.

(g0 Notwithstanding the above, the Board of
Directors of AIL, in consultation with its
statutory auditors, is authorised to account
any of the balances in any other manner, if
such accounting treatment is considered more
appropriateandis authorised by the Accounting
Standards applicable to the Company and/or
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
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2. Accounting treatment in the books of Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited (APL)

On the Scheme becoming effective and with effect
from the Appointed Date, APL shall account for
demerger in its books of accounts in accordance
with the accounting standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act in the following manner:

@

APL shall record the assets and liabilities (the
difference between the assets and liabilities
hereinafter being referred to as the "Net
Assets") vested in it pursuant to this Scheme,
at the respective book values thereof, as
appearing in the books of accounts of AlL,
relating to Demerged Undertaking at the
close of business of the day immediately
preceding the Appointed Date in accordance
with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

APL shall credit to its Equity share capital in
its books of account, the aggregate of face
value of the new Equity Shares issued by it to
the members of AIL pursuant to clause 13.1
of the Scheme of Arrangement and reduce
its Share Capital Account which are reduced
and cancelled in terms of Clause 13.2 of the
Scheme of Arrangement.

The excess of the Net Assets as per Clause
14.8 of the Scheme of Arrangement over the
face value of the new Securities allotted in
accordance with the Scheme under Clause
14.9 of the Scheme of Arrangement, shall be
credited to same reserves as debited in the
books of AlL with adjustment for balance, if any,
to Profit and Loss Account/Retained Earnings.

APL shall disclose Contingent Liability, if any,
transferred under the scheme of arrangement,
in its first Financial Statement prepared on the
Scheme becoming effective and with effect
from the Appointed Date.

APL shall record Other Comprehensive Income
transfer, if any, transferred under the Scheme
of Arrangement, in its first financial statement
prepared on the Scheme becoming effective
and with effect from the Appointed Date.

In case APL is required to follow accounting
policies that are different from that of AlL
for any regulatory reasons, the effect of the
difference in the accounting policies between
AIL and APL will be quantified and adjusted in
the opening reserve (other than the securities
premium account), to ensure that the financial

statements of APL reflect the financial position
on the basis of consistent accounting policy.

(g) Notwithstanding the above, the Board of
Directors of APL is authorised to account
for any of these balances in any manner
whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in
accordance with the accounting standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act read
with the rules made thereunder including but
not limited to Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind-AS) 103 'Business Combination' and
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

XIll. Share Entitlement Report and Fairness Opinion

Share Entitlement Report of the shares of the Applicant
Companies based on which the share entitlement ratio
has been arrived at, after careful consideration and after
taking into account all relevant facts, has been carried
out and approved by SSPA & Co. - Chartered Accountant
and a registered valuer having registration No. IBBI
Registration No. IBBI/RV/06/2018/10140. The following
share entitlement ratio has been determined vide the
aforesaid report:

1 (one) fully paid up equity shares of T 5 each of Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited (“APL") for every 4 (four) fully paid
up equity share of ¥ 5 each held in Aarti Industries
Limited (“AIL").

Inter alia, the said report states that:

“We believe that the aforementioned share entitlement
ratio is fair considering that all the shareholders of AIL
are and will, upon Proposed Demerger, be the ultimate
beneficial owners of APL in the same ratio (inter se) as
they hold shares in AIL."

A copy of the Share Entitlement Report is appended
herewith to the Notice as Annexure 3.

Further, Inga Ventures Private Limited, a SEBI Registered
Category-I Merchant Banker, in its fairness opinion
dated August 19, 2021, have provided an opinion that the
aforesaid share entitlement ratio is fair and reasonable to
the equity shareholders of the Demerged Company. The
said fairness opinion inter alia states that:

“As understood, upon the Proposed Scheme being
effective, all the eligible shareholders of AIL would
also become the shareholders of APL and their
shareholding in APL would mirror their existing
shareholding in AIL prior to the demerger. Existing
equity shares of APL as held by AIL will be cancelled
on demerger coming into effect.”



Based on our examination of the Share Entitlement
Ratio/Valuation Report, such other information/
undertakings/representations provided to us by the
Management and our independent analysis and
evaluation of such information and subject to the
scope limitations as mentioned hereinabove and to
the best of our knowledge and belief, we are of the
opinion that the recommendation made by the Valuer
of the Share Entitlement Ratio is fair and reasonable
which is as under:

The fair equity share entitlement ratio for the proposed
demerger of Demerged Undertaking of AIL into
APL is as under:

1 (one) fully paid up equity shares of % 5 each of AArti
Pharmalabs Limited (“APL") for every 4 (four) fully paid
up equity share of ¥ 5 each held in Aarti Industries
Limited (“AIL").”

A copy of the fairness opinion is appended herewith to
the Notice as Annexure 4.
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XIV. Capital / Debt Restructuring
The Scheme does not envisage any debt restructuring.
The pre-scheme and expected post-scheme
shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company and the
Resulting Company are provided hereunder:
A. Pre-scheme shareholding pattern of Demerged
Company as on September 30, 2021
Sr. | Category of shareholder No. of shares | Percentage of
No. held | shares held as
percentage of
total capital
(%)
(A) | Promoter and promoter
group
1 Indian
(@) | Individuals/ Hindu 10,16,46,066 28.04
Undivided Family
(b) | Any Other (Trust and 5,81,05,542 16.03
Bodies Corporate)
Sub-Total (A)(1) 15,97,51,608 44.07
2 Foreign 5,22,948 0.14
Sub-Total (A)(2) 5,22,948 0.14
Total Shareholding of 16,02,74,556 44.21
Promoter and Promoter
Group
() = (R)(1)+(A)(2)

Sr. | Category of shareholder No. of shares | Percentage of
No. held | shares held as
percentage of
total capital
(%)
(B) | Public shareholding
1 Institutions
Foreign Portfolio Investor 4,29,76,699 11.86
Mutual Funds 3,05,93,530 8.44
Alternate Investment 13,23,426 0.37
Funds
Financial Institutions/ 1,05,505 0.03
Banks
Insurance Companies 2,14,54,055 5.92
Sub-Total (B)(1) 9,64,53,215 26.61
2 Non-Institutions
(a) |Bodies Corporate 36,60,413 1.01
(b) | Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 4,68,36,925 1292
holding nominal share
capital up to INR 2 lakh
i) Individual shareholders 4,64,93,491 12.83
holding nominal share
capital in excess of
INR 2 lakh
(c) | NBFCs registered with RBI 52,280 0.01
(d) | Any other (specify)
i) Clearing members 567,229 0.16
i) Non-resident Indians 29,70,513 0.82
i) Hindu Undivided 23,65,562 0.65
Family
iv) |EPF A/c 12,84,808 0.35
v) Body Corp-Ltd Liability 13,16,855 0.35
Partnership
vi) Trusts 2,28,188 0.06
Sub-Total (B)(2) 10,57,76,264 29.18
Total Public Shareholding 20,22,29,479 55.79
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)
TOTAL (A) + (B) 36,25,04,035 100
(C) | Shares held by custodians - -
against which DRs are
issued
TOTAL (A) + (B) + (C) 36,25,04,035 100
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Expected post-scheme shareholding pattern of
Demerged Company

The shareholding pattern of the Demerged Company
would not change as a consequence of the
implementation of the Scheme and would remain
identical as the pre-scheme shareholding pattern.

Pre-scheme shareholding pattern
Company as on September 30, 2021

of Resulting

Sr.
No.

No. of
shares
held

Category of shareholder Percentage of
shares held as
percentage of

total capital

(%)

Promoter and promoter group

Indian

Individuals/ Hindu Undivided 6
Family

0.00

Body Corporate 2,49,994 100.00

Sub-Total (A)(1) 2,50,000 100.00

Foreign - _

Sub-Total (A)(2) - -

Total Shareholding of Promoter - -
and Promoter Group

(A) = (A(M+A)2)

(B)

Public shareholding

Institutions

Foreign Portfolio Investor - -

Sub-Total (B)(1) - -

Non-Institutions

(@)

Bodies Corporate - -

(b)

Individuals - -

i) Individual shareholders - -
holding nominal share capital
up to INR 2 lakh

ii) Individual shareholders - -
holding nominal share capital
in excess of INR 2 lakh

©

Any other (specify) - -

i) Clearing members - -

ii) Non-resident Indians - -

iii) Hindu Undivided Family - -

iv) IEPF A/c - -

v) Body Corp-Ltd Liability - -
Partnership

Sub-Total (B)(2) - -

Total Public Shareholding - -
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)

TOTAL (A) + (B) 2,50,000 100.00

©

Shares held by custodians - -
against which DRs are issued

TOTAL (A) + (B) + (C) 2,50,000 100.00

D. Expected post-scheme shareholding pattern of
Resulting Company
Sr. | Category of shareholder No. of shares | Percentage of
No. held | shares held as
percentage of
total capital (%)
(A) | Promoter and promoter
group
1 Indian
(@) |Individuals/ Hindu 2,54,11,617 28.04
Undivided Family
(b) | Any Other (Trust and 1,45,26,385 16.03
Bodies Corporate)
Sub-Total (A)(1) 3,99,37,902 44.07
2 Foreign 1,30,737 0.14
Sub-Total (A)(2) 1,30,737 0.14
Total Shareholding of 4,00,68,639 44.21
Promoter and Promoter
Group
(A) = (A)(1)+A)(2)
(B) | Public shareholding
1 Institutions
Foreign Portfolio Investor 1,07,44,175 11.86
Mutual Funds 76,48,383 8.44
Alternate Investment Funds 3,30,857 0.37
Financial Institutions/ 26,376 0.03
Banks
Insurance Companies 53,63,514 5.92
Sub-Total (B)(1) 2,41,13,304 26.61
2 | Non-Institutions
(a) | Bodies Corporate 9,15,103 1.01
(b) | Individuals
i) Individual shareholders 1,17,09,231 12.92
holding nominal share
capital up to INR 2 lakh
ii) Individual shareholders 1,16,23,373 12.83
holding nominal share
capital in excess of INR
2 lakh
(c) | NBFCs registered with RBI 13,070 0.01
(d) | Any other (specify)
i) Clearing members 1,41,807 0.16
i) Non-resident Indians 7,42,628 0.82
i) Hindu Undivided Family 591,391 0.65
iv) IEPFA/c 3,21,202 0.35
v) Body Corp-Ltd Liability 329214 0.36
Partnership
vi) Trusts 57,047 0.06
Sub-Total (B)(2) 2,64,44,066 29.18
Total Public Shareholding 5,05,57,370 55.79
(B) = (B)(1)+(B)(2)
TOTAL (A) + (B) 9,06,26,009 100.00
(C) | Shares held by custodians - -
against which DRs are
issued
TOTAL (A) + (B) + (C) 9,06,26,009 100.00




XV. Effect of the Scheme of Arrangement and Demerger

(@ On directors, key managerial personnel ("KMP")

and their relatives

>  For the Demerged Company

The Directors and KMPs of the Demerged
Company, and their relatives, do not
have any concern or interest, financially
or otherwise, in the Scheme except as
shareholders in general. Therefore, the
Scheme will have no effect on them,
except to the extent of their respective
shareholding and effect thereon as
explained in point (b) below.

> For the Resulting Company

The Resulting Company has Directors as
on present date. Further, the Resulting
Company would be changing / would
be appointing new KMP's / Directors
in pursuance of the Scheme becoming
effective in order to comply with the
requirements of the relevant provisions
of various applicable acts, rules,
regulations, and guidelines, applicable for
listed companies.

(b) On promoter and non-promoter members

>  For the Demerged Company

There is only one class of shareholder,
i.e., equity shareholders, which includes
the promoter as well as non-promoter
shareholders of the Demerged Company.

On demerger, the Resulting Company
will issue and allot equity shares to
each eligible member of the Demerged
Company, whose name is recorded in
the register of members on the Record
Date, as per the share entitlement ratio
mentioned in the Scheme.

The equity shares so issued and allotted
as provided above shall be subject to
the provisions of the Memorandum and
Articles of Association of the Resulting
Company and shall rank pari-passu
in all respects.

There would be no dilution or increase
in the shareholding of the promoter
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or non-promoter shareholders of the
Demerged Company.

In terms of the Scheme, consequent
upon demerger, on the Record Date, the
set of shareholders and their holding
proportion being proposed in the
Resulting Company, is identical to that
of the Demerged Company, and thus,
the overall economic interest of equity
shareholders of the Demerged Company
shall remain the same.

> For the Resulting Company

There is only one class of shareholder.
i.e. equity shareholders of the
Resulting Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the
equity shares of the Resulting Company
shall stand cancelled as provided in
the Scheme. Accordingly, the existing
shareholders would no longer hold any
shares in the Resulting Company.

On demerger, the Resulting Company
will issue and allot equity shares
to each member of the Demerged
Company, whose name is recorded
in the register of members of the
Demerged Company on the Record
Date, as per the share entitlement ratio
mentioned in the Scheme.

In terms of the Scheme, consequent
upon demerger, on the Record Date, the
set of shareholders and their holding
proportion being proposed in the
Resulting Company, is identical to that
of the Demerged Company, and thus,
the overall economic interest of equity
shareholders of the Demerged Company
shall remain the same.

The equity shares of the Resulting
Company shall be listed on the stock
exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India (“Stock
Exchanges") in accordance with the
SEBI Circular No. CED/DIL3/ CIR/2017/21
dated March 10, 2017, as amended from
time to time, and therefore shareholders
of AIL (as of the Record Date) shall, upon
the Scheme becoming effective, hold
equity shares of the Resulting Company.
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(c) Oncreditors

> Forthe Demerged Company

. Under the Scheme, there is no
arrangement or compromise offered to
the creditors (secured and unsecured)
of the Demerged Company. Liabilities
of any of the creditors of the Demerged
Company would neither be reduced nor be
extinguished in pursuance of the Scheme.

>  For the Resulting Company

* Under the Scheme, there is no
arrangement or compromise offered
to the creditors (unsecured) of the
Demerged Company. As on date, there
are no secured creditors of the Company.
Liabilities of any of the creditors of the
Demerged Company would neither
be reduced nor be extinguished in
pursuance of the Scheme.

(d) Onemployees

Al staff and employees of the Demerged
Undertaking shall be deemed to have become staff
and employees of APL without any break in their
service and on the basis of continuity of service
and the terms and conditions of their employment
with APL shall not be less favourable than those
applicable to them with reference to AIL on the
Effective Date.

All funds and benefits accumulated in respect of the
above staff and employees shall also be transferred
to the Resulting Company.

(e) The Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company have no outstanding deposits and
debentures as on date.

Further, the report adopted by their respective Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting
Company, explaining the impact on various stakeholders
as mentioned above is annexed hereto with the Notice as
Annexure 10 and Annexure 11 respectively.

XVI. No investigation proceedings have been instituted or are
pending in relation to the Applicant Companies under the
Companies Act, 2013 or Companies Act, 1956.

XVII. Details of approvals, sanctions, or no-objection(s) from

regulatory or any other governmental authorities required,
received, or pending

The Demerged Company being a listed company,
has received observation letters from BSE on
November 09, 2021 and from NSE on November 09, 2021,
stating that SEBI and the stock exchanges do not have
any adverse observations with regard to the Scheme.
Copy of the aforesaid observation letters are appended
herewith to the Notice as Annexure 12 and 13.

In compliance with the requirement of Section 230(5)
and Section 232 of the Act, read with Rule 8 of the CAA
Rules, noticeinthe prescribed formtogether with requisite
documentsanddisclosures shallbe servedontherelevant
regulators,asdirectedbytheHon'bleNCLT,andseekingtheir
approvals or any representations (if any) on the Scheme.

XVIIIl. No winding up proceedings are pending against the

DemergedCompanyandtheResultingCompanyasondate.

XIX. Disclosures  pertaining to  unlisted entity

XX.

involved in the Scheme

Disclosure  document comprising of applicable
information pertaining to the Resulting Company, in the
format prescribed for abridged prospectus as provided in
part E of schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board
of India (Issue of Capital And Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2018, to the extent applicable, is appended
herewith to the Notice as Annexure 14.

Inspection of Documents

In addition, electronic copy of the following documents
will be available for inspection in the "Investor Relations”
section of the website of the Demerged Company -
www.aarti-industries.com:

(@) Copy of the order of Hon'ble Tribunal in pursuance
of which the meeting is to be convened;

(b) Copy of the Scheme of Arrangement;

(c) Copies of the Memorandum of Association and
Articles of Association of the Demerged Company
and the Resulting Company;

(d) Copy of Audited Financial Statements of Aarti
Industries Limited for the half year ended
September 30, 2021,

(e) Copy of Audited Financial Statement of Aarti
Industries Limited as on March 31, 2021;



Copy of Audited Financial Statements of Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited for the half year ended
September 30, 2021,

Copy of Audited Financial Statement of Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited as on March 31, 2021,

Copy of the certificate dated August 19, 2021, issued
by the Auditor of the Demerged Company and
Resulting Company to the effect that the accounting
treatment in the Scheme is in conformity with
the Accounting Standards prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act;

Copy of Report of registered valuer determining the
Share Entitlement Ratio;

Copy of Fairness Opinion of merchant banker on
reasonableness on share entitlement ratio;

Report on complaints indicating ‘NI’ complaints
received on the Scheme;

Observation Letters  dated
2021 from the National
India Limited and BSE

Copy of the
November 09,
Stock Exchange of
Limited respectively;

Report under Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013 adopted by the Board of Directors of
Demerged Company;

Report under Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies
Act, 2013 adopted by the Board of Directors of
Resulting Company;

Certificate issued by Inga Ventures Private Limited,
SEBI Registered Merchant Banker, certifying
the accuracy and adequacy of disclosure made
in Annexure 14.
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The aforesaid documents will be open for inspection by the
secured creditors and also for obtaining extracts from, or for
making of / obtaining copies of, at the Registered Office of the
Demerged Company between 10:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. on all
working days (except Saturday, Sundays and Public Holidays)
upto 1 (one) day prior to the date of the Meeting of the
secured creditors, and shall also be available on the website
of the Company.

Based on the above and considering the rationale and benefits,
in the opinion of the Board, the Scheme will be of advantage
to, beneficial and in the interest of the Demerged Company,
its shareholders, creditors and other stakeholders and the
terms thereof are fair and reasonable. The Board of Directors
of the Company recommend the Scheme for approval of the
secured creditors.

The Directors, KMPs of the Company and their relatives do not
have any concern or interest, financially or otherwise, in the
Scheme except as shareholders in general.

sd/-

Justice (Retd.) D.K. Deshmukh
Chairperson appointed by
Tribunal for the Meeting

Vapi, February 5, 2022

Registered Office:

Plot Nos 801, 801/23,
GIDC Estate, Phase Il
Vapi - 396 195, Gujarat

Website : www.aarti-industries.com
E-mail : raj.sarraf@aarti-industries.com
Tel. © +91 22 6797 6666

Fax . +91 22 2565 3234
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IN THE NATIONAL COMPANY LAW TRIBUNAL
AHMEDABAD BENCH-2

CA (CAA) 84/AHM /2021

[Sections 230-232 and read with other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromises, Arrangements,
and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016]

In the matter of Scheme of Demerger
OF

Aarti Industries Limited,
(Applicant Company No. 1/Demerged Company)

WITH

Aarti Pharmalabs Limited
(Applicant Company No.2/Resulting Company)

AN
Their Respective Shareholders and Creditors

Order Pronounced on: 27/01/2022

CORAM:
DR. DEEPTI MUKESH HON’BLE MEMBER (JUDICIAL|
KAUSHALENDRA KUMAR SINGH HON'BLE MEMBER (TECHNICAL)

MEMO OF PARTIES

Aarti Industries Limited,

(CIN: L24110GJ1984PLC0O07301)
Registered office at;

Plot Nos. 801, 801/23, GIDC Estate,
Phase-III, Vapi-396195, Gujarat.

...Applicant Company No. 1/Demerged Company

WITH
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Aarti Pharmalabs Limited,

(CIN: U24100GJ2019PLC110964)
Registered office at;

Plot Nos. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, 1%t phase,
GIDC Vapi, District Valsad Gujarat-396195.

...Applicant Company No. 2/Resulting Company

For the Applicants: Mr. Hemant Sethi, Ms. Dharmishta N. Raval,
Advocates.

ORDER

Kaushalendra Kumar Singh, Member [(Technical)
1. The present joint Application is filed on December 01, 2021, under

Section 230-232 with other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and read with the Companies (Compromise, Arrangement, and
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016. The proposed Composite Scheme of Demerger
is for Arrangement between M/s Aarti Industries Limited (Demerged
Company) and M/s Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (Resulting Company] and
their respective Shareholders and Creditors, with effect from the Appointed
Date on the agreed terms and conditions as set out in the Scheme annexed

in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2. It is represented that the registered office of both the applicant
companies is situated within the territorial jurisdiction of Registrar of
Companies, Ahmedabad, Gujarat, which is falling under the jurisdiction of

this Tribunal.

3. It is submitted that the Demerged Company having CIN:
L24110GJ1984PLC007301 is incorporated on 28t September, 1984, under
the provisions of the companies Act, 1956, with the ROC, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat. The Registered office of the Demerged Company is situated at Plot
Nos 801, 801/83, GIDC Estate, Phase III, Vapi-396195, Gujarat. The

¥Authorised Share Capital of the Demerged Company is Rs. 3,00,00,00,000/ -

&} |
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which is divided into 60,00,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 5/- each and
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital is Rs. 1,81,25,20,175/-
which is divided into 3,62,504,035/- equity shares of Rs. 5/- each.

4, [t is also submitted that the Resulting Company having CIN:
U24100GJ2019PLC110964 is incorporated on 2274 November, 2019, under
the provisions of the companies Act, 2013, with the ROC, Ahmedabad,
Gujarat. The Registered office of the Company is situated at Plot No. 22/C/1
& 22/C/2, 1=t Phase, GIDC Vapi, District Valsad Gujarat-396195. The
Authorised Share Capital of the Resulting Company is Rs. 50,00,000/-
which is divided into 5,00,000 Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each and the
Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Share Capital is Rs. 25,00,000/- which is
divided into 2,50,000/- equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

5. Both the Applicant Companies are empowered by their respective
Memoranda and Articles of Association to enter into Scheme of Demerger.
Copies of Memoranda and Articles of Association of both the Applicant
Companies are placed on record. The copies of Audited standalone Financial
Staternent as on March 31, 2021 and Audited Financial Statements as on

30t September, 2021 of both the Applicant Companies are placed on record.

6. Demerged Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing
chemicals used in downstream manufacturing of agrochemicals, polymers,
additives, surfactants, pigments and dyes, etc. (“Speciality Chemical
Business”) and also in pharma business. Resulting Company is engaged
in the business including manufacturing and trading of Pharmaceuticals
and allied products. Demerged undertaking of the Demerged company
includes all the businesses, undertakings, activities, operations and
properties of whatsoever nature and kind wherever situated, forming a part
of the Pharma Division of the Demerged Company as a going concern. It is
proposed in the scheme that the Demerged Undertaking be demerged and

transferred to the Resulting Company under the terms and conditions of

this Scheme.
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T The Board of Directors of both Applicant Companies have approved
the Scheme of demerger at their respective Board Meetings held on 19th
August, 2021. Copies of Board Resolutions passed on 19th August, 2021 of
all the applicant companies are placed on record. The Appointed Date for
the Scheme is 1st July, 2021.

8. The Applicant Companies submits that upon the coming into effect of
this Scheme and in consideration of the demerger of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company pursuani Lo this Scheme, the
Resulting Company shall, without any further act or deed and without any
further payment, issue and allot equity shares at par on a proportionate
basis to each member of Demerged Company, whose name is recorded in
the register of members of Demerged Company as holding shares on the
Record Date, in the ratio of 1 (one) equity share of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up
of Second Applicant Company for every 4 (four) equity shares of Rs. 5/- each
fully paid up held in First Applicant Company.

9., It is further submitted that the shares of Demerged Company are
listed on BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited
(“NSE”). Pursuant to the Securities Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”)
Circular No. SEBI /HO/ CFD/ DIL1/ CIR /P /2020 /249 dated December
22, 2020, as amended from time to time ("SEBI Circular”) read with
Regulation 37 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements)
Regulations, 2015 (“LODR Regulations”), Demerged Company had applied to
BSE and NSE for their “Observation Letter” / “No Objection Letter” to file the
Scheme for sanction of the Tribunal. BSE and NSE by their letters dated
9th November, 2021, have respectively given their “No Objection” letters to
Demerged Company, to file the Scheme with the Tribunal.

10. Both the Applicant Companies have provided the certificates from
Statutory Auditors confirming the proposed Accounting Treatment bcirfg' in

onformity with the Applicable Accounting Standard under section 15;3 of: X
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the Companies Act, 2013, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)

Rules, 2014,

11.

Both the Applicant companies have submitted that no investigations

or proceedings against the Applicant Companies are pending under the
Companies Act, 1956,/2013.

12.

13.

With respect to the Demerged Company, it is stated that:

(if There are 259574 Equity Shareholders and certificate from
Chartered Accountant certifying list of shareholders is filed
subsequently through additional document. None of the shareholders
have given their consent for the proposed scheme. Hence, the
Demerged Company is seeking directions for convening the meeting of
Equity Shareholders.

(iij There are 16 Secured Creditors and certificate from Chartered
Accountant certifying list of Secured Creditors is annexed. None of
the Secured Creditors have given their consent for the proposed
scheme. Hence, the Demerged Company is seeking directions for
convening the meeting of Secured Creditors.

(ili) There are 2723 Unsecured Creditors and certificate from
Chartered Accountant certifying list of Unsccured Creditors is
annexed. None of the Unsecured Creditors have given their consent
for the proposed scheme. Hence, the Demerged Company is seeking

directions for convening the meeting of Unsecured Creditors.

With respect to the Resulting Company, it is stated that:

(i) There are 7 equity sharcholders and certificate from Chartered
Accountant certifying list of shareholders is annexed. All equity
shareholders have given their consent by way of affidavits for the
proposed composite scheme of demerger. The copies of the consent
affidavits of all equity shareholders are annexed with the application.
Hence, the company is seeking dispensation for convening the

meeting of equity shareholders.
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(iij There are no secured creditors. Certificate from Chartered
Accountant certifying the NIL secured creditors is annexed with the
application. In view of the same, the question of holding the meeting
of creditors does not arise.

(iti) There are 2 Unsecured Creditors and certificate from Chartered
Accountant certifying list of Unsecured Creditors is annexed. Both the
Unsecured Creditors have given their consent by way of affidavits for
the proposed composite scheme of demerger. The copies of the
consent affidavits of both the Unsecured Creditors are annexed with
the application. Hence, the company is seeking dispensation for

convening the meeting of Unsecured Creditors.

14. Taking into consideration the submissions and the documents filed
therewith, we issue the following directions with respect to holding and
convening or dispensing the meeting of the Equity Shareholders, Unsecured
and/or Secured Creditors as well as issue of notices including by way of
paper publication as follows:

i) In relation to the Demerged Company :

a. With respect to Equity Shareholders

The meeting of Equity Sharcholder of Demerged Company shall
be convened on March 10, 2022 at 11:30 a.m. (Indian Standard
Time). The meeting will be convened and held for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without
modification(s) the Scheme of Arrangement through video
conferencing or other audio visual means, and not in physical
presence of shareholders, as requested, since in the current
COVID-19 environment, social distancing norms may n tf.be “
possible. ’ £t 5

b. With respect to Secured Creditors

The meeting of Secured Creditors of Demerged Company shall
be convened on March 10, 2022 at 2:00 p.m. (Indian Standard
Time). The meeting will be convened and held for the purpose of
considering and, if thought fit, approving with or without
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modification(s) the Scheme of Arrangement through video
conferencing or other audio visual means, and not in physical
presence of creditors, as requested, since in the current COVID-

19 environment, social distancing norms may not be possible.

With respect to Unsecured Creditors

The meeting of Unsecured Creditors of Demerged Company
shall be convened on March 10, 2022 at 3:00 p.m. (Indian
Standard Time). The meeting will be convened and held for the
purpose of considering and, if thought fit, approving with or
without modification(s) the Scheme of Arrangement through
video conferencing or other audio visual means, and not in
physical presence of creditors, as requested, since in the
current COVID-19 environment, social distancing norms may

not be possible.

relation to the Resulting Company:
With respect to Equity Sharcholders

Convening of the meeting of equity shareholders of the company
is hereby dispensed with, in view of 100% consent received by

way of affidavits from Shareholders.

With respect to Secured Creditors
There are no secured creditors in the Company. Hence,

convening of the meeting of secured creditors is obviated.

With respect to Unsecured Creditors

Convening of the meeting of Unsecured Creditors of the
company is hereby dispensed with, in view of 100% consent

received by way of affidavits from Creditors.

15. At least one month before the date of aforesaid meeting a notice in

Form No. CAA 2 convening the aforesaid meeting indicating the day, the
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date and the time as aforesaid together with the copy of the scheme of
demerger, copy of explanatory statements required to be sent under section
102 of the Act read with Section 230 and 232 of the act and Rule 6 of the
Companies (CAA) Rules, 2016 and prescribed form of proxy shall be sent to
each of the Equity Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured
Creditors of the Demerged Company at their respective or last known
address either by the registered post, Speed Post or by Courier or by Email.
The notice shall be sent to all the Equity Shareholders, Secured Creditors

and Unsecured Creditors.

16. At least one month before the date of meeting, publication about
convening and holding of the aforesaid meeting indicating the day, the date
and the time as aforesaid shall be made once in English Daily ‘Financial
Express’, having nation-wide circulation and Gujarati translation thereof in
‘Jansatta’ and ‘Daman Ganga Times’, having circulation in Vapi, both
having wide circulation in the State of Gujarat The Publication shall also
indicate that the statement required to be furnished pursuant to Section
102 of the Act, read with Section 230 and 232 of the Act and prescribed
Form of Proxy can be obtained free of charge by emailing the aforesaid
Applicant Companies at raj.sarraf@aarti-industries.com. in accordance with
second proviso to Sub Section (3) of Section 230 & Rule 7 of the Companies
(CAA) Rules, 2016.

17. Mr. Justice (Retd.) D.K. Deshmukh shall be the chairman of the
meeting of the Equity Shareholders, Secured Creditors and Unsecured
Creditors of the Demerged Company to be held on 10/03/2022 and in

respect of any adjournment(s) thereof.

18. Mr. Sunil M. Dedhia, Practising Company Secretary (ICSI M. No.
F3483) shall act as the scrutinizer of the aforesaid meeting and in respect of
any adjournment thereof.
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19. The Chairman appointed for the aforesaid meeting shall issue the

advertisements and send out the notices of the meeting referred to above.

20. The Chairman to file an affidavit in not less than 7(seven) days before
the date fixed for the holding of the meetings and to report to this Tribunal
that the directions regarding issuance of notices and advertisement of the
meeting have been duly complied with as per Rule 12 of the Companies

(CAA) Rules, 2016,

21. It is further ordered that the Chairman of the company shall report to
this Tribunal the result of the meeting in Form No.CAA.4, verified by his
affidavit, as per Rule 14 of the Companies (CAA) Rules, 2016 in from No.

CAA.4 within seven days after conclusion of the meeting.

22, The quorum for the aforesaid meeting of the Equity Shareholders and
Creditors of Demerged Company shall be as prescribed under Section 103 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and would include Equity Shareholders and
Creditors present through video conferencing and/or other audio- visual
means. In case the required gquorum as stated above is not present at the
commencement of the meeting, the meeting shall be adjourned by 30 (thirty)
minutes and thereafter the persons present shall be deemed to constitute

the quorum.

23. The voting by proxy shall not be permitted as the meetings would be
held through video conferencing and/or other audio-visual means. However,
voting in case of body corporate be permitted, provided the prescribed
form/authorization is filed with the Applicant Company at raj.sarraf@aarti-
industries.com not later than 48 hours before the start of the aforesaid
meeting as required under Rule 10 of the Companies(Compromises,

Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016.

24, The number and value of each Equity Shareholders, Secured

Creditors and Unsecured Creditors of the Demerged Company shall be in
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accordance with the entries in the books of accounts of Demerged Company
and where the entries in the records are disputed, the chairman of the

aforesaid meeting shall determine the value for the purpose of the meeting.

25. In compliance of sub-section (5) of section 230 and Rule 8 of the
Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016,
the Applicant Companies shall send a notice in Form No. CAA. 3 along with
explanatory statement and disclosures mentioned under Rule 6, to (i) the
Central Government through the Regional Director, North Western Region,
[ii) the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat, Dadra and Nagar Haveli (iii) to the
Income Tax Department along with full details of assessing officer and PAN
numbers of all the applicant companies with the copy also to the Chief
Commissioner of Income Tax Office, stating that representations, if any, to
be made by them be made within a period of 30 days from the date of receipt
of such notice, failing which it shall be presumed that they have no
objection to make on the proposed scheme of arrangement. The said notices
shall be sent by registered post or by speed post or by courier or by hand
delivery at the office of the aforesaid statutory autharities as required by
sub-rule(2) of Rule 8 of the Companies (CAA) Rules, 2016. The Aforesaid
statutory authorities who desire to make any representation under Sub
section (5) of Section 230 shall sent the same to this Tribunal with a copy of
the same to the Demerged Company within a period of 30 days from the

date of such service.

26. The Application is allowed and disposed of in terms of the above

directions.
-sd- —sd-
Kaushalendra Kumar Singh Dr. Deepti Mukesh
Member (Technieal) Member (Judicial)
Abhizheks Stenia - — / i
Prepared by _ Vv /HMBT- sertified tohe Tr of '[’I{:E’_Erlg'lnz‘ {
Signature =—‘§u.4_,_ | "b\‘\
Depuly\Registrar 10
Date 3} :l&iél HGLT, Ahmedabad Bench

Atmedabad
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT
BETWEEN
Aarti Industries Limited ... Demerged Company
AND
Aarti Pharmalabs Limited ... Resulting Company

(Formerly Known as Aarti Organics Limited)

AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF DEMERGER OF PHARMA DIVISION OF AARTI
INDUSTRIES LIMITED INTO AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS AARTI ORGANICS
LIMITED) UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013 (‘ACT’)

OVERVIEW, OBJECTS AND BENEFITS OF THE SCHEME

Aarti Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Demerged Company”, or “AlL”) is a listed public
limited company incorporated on 28" September, 1984 under the Companies Act, 1956 with CIN
L24110GJ1984PLCO07301 having its registered office at Plot Nos 801, 801/23, GIDC Estate, Phase lII,
Vapi - 396 195, Gujarat. The equity shares of Demerged Company are listed on BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India. The Demerged Company is a leading Indian manufacturer of specialty
chemicals and pharmaceuticals with a global footprint. It manufactures chemicals used in downstream
manufacturing of agrochemicals, polymers, additives, surfactants, pigments and dyes, etc. (“Speciality
Chemical Business” or “Speciality Chemical Division”). The Pharma Business is divided into three
verticals i.e. a) manufacture of active pharmaceuticals ingredients (“APIs”) b) manufacture of
intermediates and c) manufacture of xanthine derivatives. The Pharma business of the Demerged
Company has four APIs manufacturing plants, two of which are approved by the United States Food and
Drug Administration (“USFDA”) and rest two are WHO/GMP certified. Additionally, it has two dedicated
research and development facilities for pharmaceuticals APl. (“Pharma Business” or “Pharma
Division”)

Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (Formerly known as Aarti Organics Limited) (hereinafter referred to as the
“The Resulting Company” or “APL”) is an unlisted public limited company incorporated on 22"
November, 2019 under the Companies Act, 2013 with CIN U24100GJ2019PLC110964 and having its
registered office at Plot No. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, 1 Phase, G.I.D.C. Vapi, District Valsad Gujarat — 396 195.
The Resulting Company is incorporated with an object to engage in the business including
manufacturing and trading of Pharmaceuticals and allied products.

This Scheme of Arrangement (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme®) provides for a) the transfer by
way of demerger of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined hereinafter) of the Demerged Company to
the Resulting Company, and the consequent issue of equity shares by the Resulting Company to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company pursuant to Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant provisions
of the Act (as defined hereinafter) in the manner provided for in the Scheme and in compliance with
Section 2(19AA) of IT Act and cancellation of existing equity shares of the Resulting Company held by
Demerged Company and b) various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected
therewith.

After the effectiveness of this Scheme, the Share Capital of APL consisting of the fully paid-up new
Equity Shares of APL issued as consideration in terms of Section B of this Scheme to the shareholders
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of AlL shall be listed on the Stock Exchanges in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circular No
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated 22" December, 2020, as amended from time to time.
Further, as an integral part of the Scheme, existing Equity Shares of APL (presently 100% held by
Demerged Company) shall stand cancelled without any further act and deed, and hence this Scheme
contemplates approval of the Tribunal(s) in terms of relevant provisions of the Act, in addition to
Sections 230 to 232 of the Act.

RATIONALE AND BENEFITS OF THIS SCHEME
The demerger of the Business is being undertaken due to the following reasons:

AIL basically has 2 (Two) business verticals i.e., specialty chemicals and pharmaceuticals with
divergent business profile, growth potential, risk-rewards, regulatory and capital requirements
and are largely independent of each other.

a) The Demerged Undertaking relates to Pharma manufacturing units, allied activities,
investments and cash balance & cash equivalents for future Capital Expenditures of
Demerged Undertaking. In order to create overall value for the shareholders and also to
enable management of the Company to focus and adopt the relevant strategies
necessary for promoting growth and expansion, it is proposed that the Demerged
Undertaking, (as specifically set out in the Scheme), be demerged and transferred to the
Resulting Company under the terms and conditions of this Scheme.

b) The shareholders of AL, pursuant to the demerger, will get Equity Shares of Resulting
Company for the values of Business Transferred in the manner set out under this Scheme.

c¢) The demerger will also result in AIL and APL achieving operational efficiencies by
streamlining of the relevant businesses.

d) By demerger of the Demerged Undertaking into Resulting Company, the financial
resources will be conveniently raised in accordance with the requirement of the business.

e) The demerger will enable APL to expand its presence in the fast-moving Pharma Business
in India and abroad.

f) The demerger will result into two dedicated and focused business segments i.e. Speciality
Chemical and Pharma without any risk or overlap of one business over the other.

COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAW

This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to “Demerger” as
specified under the tax laws, including section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961, which
provides the following conditions:

a. all the property of the undertaking, being transferred by the Demerged Company,
immediately before the demerger, becomes the property of the Resulting Company by
virtue of the demerger;

b. allthe liabilities relatable to the undertaking, being transferred by the Demerged Company,
immediately before the demerger, become the liabilities of the Resulting Company by
virtue of the demerger;

c.  theproperty and liabilities of the undertaking being transferred by the Demerged Company

are transferred at values appearing in its books of account immediately before the
demerger;
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d. the Resulting Company issues, in consideration of the demerger, its shares to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company on a proportionate basis;

e. theshareholders holding not less than three-fourths in value of the shares in the Demerged
Company (other than shares already held therein immediately before the demerger, or by
a nominee for the Resulting Company or its subsidiary) become shareholders of the
Resulting Company by virtue of the demerger, otherwise than as a result of the acquisition
of the property or assets of the Demerged Company or any undertaking thereof by the
Resulting Company;

f.  the transfer of the undertaking is on a going concern basis; and
g. the demerger is in accordance with the conditions, if any, notified under sub section (5) of
section 72A of the Income Tax Act, 1961 by the Central Government in this behalf and other

relevant sections of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found to be or interpreted to be inconsistent with
any of the said provisions at a later date, whether as a result of any amendment of law or any

judicial or executive interpretation or for any other reason whatsoever, the aforesaid provisions

of the tax laws shall prevail. The Scheme shall then stand modified to the extent determined
necessary to comply with the said provisions. Such modifications will however not affect other
parts of the Scheme. The power to make such amendments as may become necessary shall vest
with the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, which power shall
be exercised reasonably in the best interests of the Companies and their shareholders, and which
power can be exercised at any time, whether before or after the Effective Date.

In consideration of the above-mentioned business rationale and related benefits, this Scheme
between AIL & APL is being proposed in accordance with the terms set out hereunder.

Accordingly, this Scheme is divided into three sections, as follows:

Section A: Demerger of Demerged Undertaking
Section B: Issue of shares / Reorganisation of share capital
Section C: Other provisions

1. DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATIONS:

1.1.

1.2

1.3.

1.4.

“2013 Act” or “the Act” means the Companies Act, 2013, as notified, and ordinances and rules made
thereunder and shall include any statutory modification(s), re-enactment(s) and/or amendment(s)
thereof for the time being in force.

“Applicable Law” means (a) all the applicable statutes, notifications, enactments, acts of legislature,
bye-laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, rule of common law, policy, code, directives, ordinances,
orders, or other instruments having force in law enacted or issued by any Government or
Governmental Authority(ies) including any statutory modifications, amendments or re-enactments
thereof for the time being in force; and (b) administrative interpretations, writs, injunctions,
directions, directives, judgments, arbitral awards, orders, decrees, as may be in force from time to
time.

“Appointed Date” means the 1°t day of July, 2021.

“Board of Directors” or “Board” means and includes the respective boards of directors of AlL and APL
or any committee constituted by such board of directors.
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1.6.

1.7.

“BSE” means BSE Limited;

“CIN” means Corporate Identification Number;

“Demerged Undertaking” means the Pharma business or Pharma Division which is divided into three
verticals i.e. a) manufacture of active pharmaceuticals ingredients (“APIs”) b) manufacture of
intermediates and c) manufacture of xanthine derivatives. The Pharma business of the Demerged
Company is having four APIs manufacturing plants, two of which are approved by the United States
Food and Drug Administration (“USFDA”) and rest two are WHO/GMP certified. Additionally, it has
two dedicated research and development facilities for pharmaceuticals API. Demerged undertaking
shall include all the businesses, undertakings, activities, operations and properties of whatsoever
nature and kind wherever situated, forming a part of the Pharma Division of the Demerged Company
as a going concern including but not limited to the following:

(a) Allassets and properties, whether movable orimmovable, tangible or intangible, whether corporeal

or incorporeal, leasehold or otherwise, plant and machinery, research and development units,
capital work in progress, advances, deposits, sundry debtors, inventories, cash and bank balances,
shares, investments, securities, bills of exchange, other fixed assets, trademarks, patents, loans,
inventory and work in progress wherever situated pertaining to the Pharma Division;

(b) All liabilities (including liabilities allocable as per this Scheme, if any) present and future, corporate

guarantees issued and the contingent liabilities pertaining to or relatable to the Pharma Division,
including:

(i) The debts of the Demerged Company which arises out of the activities or operations of the
Pharma Division; and

(ii) Specific loans and borrowings raised, incurred and utilized by the Demerged Company for the

activities or operations of or pertaining to the Pharma Division.

c) This also includes Assets & Liabilities of Other Backward Integrated Units providing feeding Material

to The Pharma Business, Investment indentified, cash & cash equivalent for future capital
expenditure.

d) Without prejudice to the generality of the above, the Demerged Undertaking shall include in

particular:

(i) Immovable property and rights thereto i.e. land together with buildings and structures
standing thereon (whether freehold, leasehold, leave and licensed, right of way, tenancies or
otherwise) buildings, warehouses, offices, etc. if any, which form a part of the Pharma Division
and all documents (including panchnamas, declarations, receipts) of title, rights and
easements in relation thereto and all rights, covenants, continuing rights, title and interest,
benefits and interests of rental agreements for lease or license or other rights to use of

premises, in connection with the said immovable properties, if any;

(ii) All assets, as are moveable in nature, whether present or future or contingent, tangible or
intangible, in possession or not, corporeal or incorporeal, in each case, wherever situated
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(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(including plant and machinery, research and developments units, capital work in progress,
furniture, fixtures, fixed assets, computers, air conditioners, appliances, accessories, office
equipment, communication facilities, installations, vehicles, inventories, stock in trade,
patents, stores and spares, packing material, raw material, formulation, tablets, capsules,
active pharmaceutical ingredients, drug intermediaries, tools and plants), actionable claims,
earnest monies and sundry debtors, prepaid expenses, bills of exchange, promissory notes,
financial assets, investment and shares in entities / branches undertaking the Pharma Division,
outstanding loans and advances, recoverable in cash or kind or for value to be received,
receivables, funds, cash and bank balances and deposits including accrued interest thereto
with Government, semi-Government, local and other Appropriate Authorities and bodies,
banks, customers and other persons, the benefits of any bank guarantees, performance
guarantees and tax related assets and credits, including but not limited to service tax input
credits, CENVAT credits, value added / sales tax / entry tax credits or set-offs, advance tax, tax
deducted at source, right to carry forward and set-off accumulated losses and unabsorbed
depreciation, if any, goods and services tax (GST), and other indirect taxes and tax refunds;

All permits, licenses, permissions, approvals, clearances, consents, benefits, registrations,
rights, entitlements, credits, certificates, awards, sanctions, allotments, quotas, no objection
certificates, exemptions, concessions, subsidies, incentives, tax deferrals and exemptions and
other benefits (in each case including the benefit of any applications made for the same),
income tax benefits, deductions and exemptions, liberties and advantages, approval for
commissioning of project and other licenses or clearances, granted / issued / given by any
Appropriate Authorities, organizations or companies for the purpose of carrying on the
Pharma Division business or in connection therewith including those relating to privileges,
powers, facilities of every kind and description of whatsoever nature and the benefits thereto
that form part of the Pharma Division;

All rights, contracts, agreements, guarantees, purchase orders / service orders, operation and
maintenance contracts, memoranda of understandings, memoranda of agreements,
memoranda of agreed points, bids, tenders, tariff policies, expressions of interest, letters of
intent, hire and purchase arrangements, power purchase agreements, lease / license
agreements, tenancy rights, agreements / panchnamas for right of way, equipment purchase
agreements, agreement with customers, purchase and other agreements with the supplier /
manufacturer of goods / service providers, other arrangements, undertakings, deeds, bonds,
schemes, concession agreements, insurance covers and claims, clearances and other
instruments of whatsoever nature and description, whether vested or potential and written,
oral or otherwise and all rights, title, interests, claims and benefits thereunder forming part of
the Pharma Division;

All intellectual property rights, applications (including hardware, software, licenses, source
codes, para meterisation and scripts), registrations, goodwill, trade names, service marks,
copyrights, patents, project designs, marketing authorization, approvals, marketing
intangibles, permits, permissions, incentives, privileges, special status, domain names,
designs, trade secrets, research and studies, technical know-how, confidential information and
other benefits (in each case including the benefit of any applications made for the same) that
form part of the Pharma Division;
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(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

All rights to use and avail telephones, facsimile, email, internet, leased line connections and
installations, utilities, electricity and other services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of
assets or properties or other interests held in trusts, registrations, engagements,
arrangements of all kind, privileges and all other rights, easements, liberties and advantages
of whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated belonging to or in the ownership, power or
possession and in control of or vested in or granted in favor of or enjoyed by the Demerged
Company forming part of the Pharma Division and all other interests of whatsoever nature
belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or control of or vested in or granted in
favor of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by the Demerged Company and forming part of
the Resulting Company;

All books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, software licenses
(whether proprietary or otherwise), test reports, computer programmes, drawings, manual,
data, databases including databases for procurement, commercial and management,
catalogues, quotations, sales and advertising materials, product registrations, dossiers,
product master cards, list of present and former customers and suppliers including service
providers, other customer information, customer credit information, customer / supplier
pricing information, and all other books and records, whether in physical or electronic form
that form part of the Pharma Division;

All liabilities including all debts (whether in Indian Rupees or foreign currency), loans raised
and used, obligations incurred, whether specific or arises, duties of any kind, nature or
description and undertakings of every kind or nature, contingent liabilities, bank/ corporate
guarantees, duties, taxes, obligations under any licenses or permits or schemes and all other
liabilities of any description whatsoever, whether present or future, and howsoever raised or
incurred or utilized along with any charge, encumbrance, lien or security thereon related or
incurred to or out of the Pharma Division;

Liabilities other than those referred to in sub-clauses (viii) above and not directly relatable to
the remaining business of Demerged Company, being the amounts of general or multipurpose
borrowings of Demerged Company shall be allocated to the Demerged Business in the same
proportion in which the value of the assets transferred under this sub-clause bears to the total
value of the assets of Demerged Company immediately before giving effect to this Scheme;

Any and all earnest monies and / or security deposits, or other entitlements in connection with
or relating to Pharma Division;

All permanent and/or temporary employees of Demerged Company substantially engaged in
the Demerged Undertaking and those permanent and/or temporary employees that are
determined by the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company, to be substantially engaged
in or relatable to the Pharma Division;

All legal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature that form part of the Pharma Division;
All exemptions, benefits, allowances, rebates, etc. under IT Act (including right to admissibility

of claim under the IT Act or such provisions becoming admissible in the period after the
Appointed Date on discharging liabilities pertaining to Pharma Division;

Page 6 of 25

37



38

&

1.8.

1.9.

1.10.

1.11.

1.12.

1.13.

1.14.

1.15.

1.16.

1.17.
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(xiv) Any question that may arise as to whether a specified asset or liability pertains to Pharma
Division or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the Pharma Division shall be
decided by mutual agreement between the Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and
the Resulting Company;

(xv) The designated list of investments and immovable properties pertaining to APL as agreed
upon between AIL and APL is enclosed in “Annexure A”;

(xvi) Any issue as to whether any asset or liability and / or employee pertains to or is relatable to
the Demerged Undertaking or not shall be decided by the Board of Directors of the Demerged
Company.

“Demerger” means the transfer by way of demerger of the Demerged Undertaking to the Resulting
Company, and the consequent issue of equity shares by the Resulting Company to the Shareholders
of the Demerged Company as set out in Section B hereof and shall have the same meaning as defined
under section 2(19AA) of the Income-tax Act, 1961,

“Demerged Company” means Aarti Industries Limited or AlL, a company incorporated under the
Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at Plot Nos 801, 801/23, GIDC Estate, Phase Ill, Vapi
- 396 195, Gujarat.

“Demerger Share Entitlement Ratio” shall have the meaning ascribed to it in Clause 13.1;

“Effective Date” means the date on which all the conditions and matters in relation to the Scheme
referred to in clause 19 of this Scheme have been fulfilled.

“National Company Law Tribunal” or “NCLT” means the National Company Law Tribunal,
Ahmedabad Bench.

“NSE” means National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

“ Remaining Business” means all other businesses, divisions, assets and liabilities other than that of
the Demerged Undertaking of AlL.

“Resulting Company” or “APL ” means “Aarti Pharmalabs Limited” (Formerly known as Aarti
Organics Limited), an unlisted public Company incorporated under the Companies Act, 2013 and
having its registered office at Plot No. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, 15t Phase, G.I.D.C. Vapi, District Valsad Gujarat
—396 195.

“Rupees” or “Rs.” or “INR” means the lawful currency of India.

“Record Date” shall mean in relation to demerger of Demerged Undertaking of AlL into APL, such date
to be fixed by the Board of Directors of AIL or a Committee thereof, Compliance Officer of AlL/person
duly authorized by the Board of Directors, after the Effective Date for the purpose of determining the
members of AIL to whom shares of APL will be allotted pursuant to this Scheme in terms of Clause
13.1
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1.18.

1.19.

1.20.

1.21.

“Scheme” or“the Scheme” or“ this Scheme” means this scheme of arrangement among AlIL, APL and
their respective shareholders pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Act, as the case may be, in its present form or with any modification(s) made under
clause 17 of the Scheme by the Board of Directors of AlL and APL, and/ or as approved or directed by
the Tribunal, as the case may be.

“SEBI” means the Securities and Exchange Board of India.

“SEBI Circular” means circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (as amended) on
Schemes of Arrangement by Listed Entities and Relaxation under sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the
Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957, as amended by the circular no. SEBI/
HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 issued by SEBI or any other circulars issued
by SEBI applicable to schemes of arrangement from time to time.

“Shareholders” means the persons registered (whether registered owner of the shares or beneficial
owner of the shares) as holders of equity shares of Company concerned.

. INTERPRETATION

All terms and words not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant or contrary to the context or
meaning thereof, have the same meaning prescribed to them under the Act, the Securities Contracts
(Regulation) Act, 1956, the Depositories Act, 1996, Income-tax Act, 1961 and other Applicable Laws, rules,
regulations, bye laws, as the case may be, including any statutory modification or re-enactment thereof
from time to time.

In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

(i) the words "including", "include" or "includes" shall be interpreted in a manner as though the
words "without limitation" immediately followed the same;

(i) any document or agreement includes a reference to that document or agreement as varied,
amended, supplemented, substituted, novated or assigned, from time to time, in accordance with
the provisions of such a document or agreement;

(iii) the words "other", "or otherwise" and "whatsoever" shall not be construed ejusdem generis or be
construed as any limitation upon the generality of any preceding words or matters specifically
referred to;

(iv) the headings are inserted for ease of reference only and shall not affect the construction or
interpretation of the relevant provisions of this Scheme;

(v) the term "Clause" or "Sub-Clause" refers to the specified clause of this Scheme, as the case may
be;

(vi) reference to any legislation, statute, regulation, rule, notification or any other provision of law
means and includes references to such legal provisions as amended, supplemented or re-enacted
from time to time, and any reference to legislation or statute includes any subordinate legislation
made from time to time under such a legislation or statute and regulations, rules, notifications or
circulars issued under such a legislation or statute;

(vii) Words in the singular shall include the plural and vice versa.

. DATE OF COMING INTO EFFECT

The Scheme shall come into legal operation from the Appointed Date, though it shall be effective from the
Effective Date.

. SHARE CAPITAL:
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4.1  The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up capital of AlL as 30™" June, 2021 is as follows:

PARTICULARS AMOUNT (Rs.)
AUTHORIZED CAPITAL
60,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5 /- each 300,00,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

36,25,04,035 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up 1,81,25,20,175

4.2 The authorized, issued, subscribed and paid up capital of APL as on 30" June, 2021 is as follows:

PARTICULARS AMOUNT (Rs.)

AUTHORIZED CAPITAL

5,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each 50,00,000

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2,50,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 25,00,000

The Entire Equity Share Capital of Resulting Company is held by the Demerged Company and its

nominees. The Resulting Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Demerged Company.

Page 9 of 25




SECTION A: DEMERGER OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING

5. TRANSFER OF DEMERGED UNDERTAKING

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, the
Demerged Undertaking shall, pursuant to the provisions contained in Sections 230 to 232 of the
Act and other provisions of law for the time being in force and without any further act or deed,
be demerged from AlLand be transferred to and vested in or be deemed to have been transferred
to and vested in APL on the Appointed Date, on a going concern basis, so as to become as and
from the Appointed Date, the undertaking of APL and to vest in the Resulting Company all the
rights, title, interest or obligations of AlL therein.

It is hereby clarified that notwithstanding anything stated herein, the Demerged Company shall
not transfer the Remaining Business (in whole or part) to the Resulting Company.

The Demerged Company and the Resulting Company, if required, shall enter into transitional
arrangements and shall be deemed to be authorized to execute any such arrangements and to
carry out or perform all such formalities or compliances as may be deemed proper and necessary
for effecting the transfer and vesting of the properties of the Demerged Undertaking with the
Resulting Company.

All assets (including fixed assets, intangible assets, current assets, cash and bank balances etc.)
acquired by AIL after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date for operation of the
Demerged Undertaking or pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking shall be deemed to have
been acquired for and on behalf of the Resulting Company.

In respect of such of the assets of the Demerged Undertaking as are movable in nature or are
otherwise capable of transfer by manual delivery, by paying over or by endorsement and delivery,
the same may be so delivered, paid over, or endorsed and delivered, by AIL and shall become the
property of the Resulting Company as an integral part of the Demerged Undertaking transferred
to it. Such delivery shall be made on a date mutually agreed upon between the Board of Directors
of AIL and the Board of Directors (or a duly authorized committee) of the Resulting Company
within thirty days from the Effective Date.

In respect of movables of the Demerged Undertaking other than those specified in Clause 5.5
above, which are to be transferred to APL, including sundry debtors, future receivables,
outstanding loans and advances, if any, recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received,
bank balances, deposits and balances, if any, with Government, Semi-Government, local and
other authorities and bodies, customers and other persons, it shall not be necessary to obtain
the consent of any third party or other person in order to give effect to the provisions of this sub-
clause, and such transfer shall be effected by notice to the concerned persons, or in any manner
as may be mutually agreed by AIL and APL.

In respect of such of the assets of the Demerged Undertaking other than those referred to in
Clause 5.5 and 5.6 above, the same shall, as more particularly provided in Clause 5.1 above,
without any further act, instrument or deed, be transferred to and vested in and/ or be deemed
to be transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company on the Appointed Date pursuant to the
provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Act or other provisions of law as applicable.
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5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

For the avoidance of doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, it is clarified
that upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, in accordance with the provisions of relevant
laws, consents, permissions, licenses, registrations, certificates, authorities (including for the
operation of bank accounts), powers of attorneys given by, issued to or executed in favour of AIL
and the rights and benefits under the same shall, in so far as they relate to the Demerged
Undertaking and all certifications and approvals, trademarks, patents and domain names,
copyrights, industrial designs, trade secrets, product registrations and other Intellectual Property
Rights and all other interests relating to the Demerged Undertaking, be transferred to and vested
in the Resulting Company.

In so far as the various incentives, subsidies (including applications for subsidies), grants, special
status and other benefits or privileges granted by any Government body (including Government
Production Linked Incentive Scheme for Pharmaceuticals), local authority or by any other person,
enjoyed or availed of by AlL are concerned, the same shall, without any further act or deed, in so
far as they relate to the Demerged Undertaking, vest with and be available to the Resulting
Company on the same terms and conditions.

It is clarified that, upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the following liabilities and
obligations of AlL as on the Appointed Date and being a part of the Demerged Undertaking shall,
without any further act or deed be and shall stand transferred to the Resulting Company, and all
rights, powers, duties and obligations in relation thereto shall stand transferred to and vested in
and shall be exercised by or against the Resulting Company as if it had entered into such loans or
incurred such borrowings and the Resulting Company undertakes to meet, discharge and satisfy
the same:

(i) the liabilities which directly and specifically arose out of the activities or operations of the
Demerged Undertaking,

(ii) specific loans or borrowings raised, incurred and utilized solely for the activities or operations
of the Demerged Undertaking.

(i) In cases other than those referred to in sub-clauses (i) and (ii) above, proportionate part of
the general or multipurpose borrowings and liabilities of AIL allocable to the Demerged
Undertaking in the same proportion in which the value of the assets of AlL transferred under
this Scheme bears to the total value of the assets of AIL immediately before the demerger.

All loans raised and used and all liabilities and obligations incurred by AIL for the operations of
the Demerged Undertaking after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective Date shall be
deemed to have been raised, used or incurred for and on behalf of the Resulting Company and
to the extent they are outstanding on the Effective Date, shall also without any further act or
deed be and stand transferred to the Resulting Company and shall become its liabilities and
obligations.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the balances as on the Appointed Date, of general
or multipurpose borrowings shall be transferred to and assumed by APL in the proportion
provided in Clause 5.10 above. Thus, the primary obligation to redeem or repay such transferred
liabilities shall be that of APL. However, without prejudice to such transfer of proportionate
liability amount, where considered necessary for the sake of convenience and towards
facilitating single point creditor discharge, APL may discharge such liability (including accretions
thereto) by making payments on the respective due dates to AIL, which in turn shall make
payments to the respective creditors.
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5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, in so far as the security in respect of the liabilities
of AlL as on the Appointed Date is concerned, it is hereby clarified that AIL and the Resulting
Company shall, subject to confirmation by the concerned creditor(s), mutually agree upon and
arrange for such security as may be considered necessary to secure such liabilities.

Provided however, any reference in any security documents or arrangements (to which AlL is a
party) to the assets of AlL offered or agreed to be offered as security for any financial assistance
or obligations pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking, shall be construed as reference only to
the assets pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking of AlL as are vested in the Resulting Company
by virtue of the aforesaid Clauses, to the end and intent that such security, charge and mortgage
shall not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of the other assets of AlL or any of the assets
of the Resulting Company, save and except as may be otherwise agreed between AlL, the
Resulting Company and the respective lender(s). It is further clarified that upon the coming into
effect of this Scheme, in the event any security, charge and/ or mortgage is extended over the
assets of AL in respect of any financial assistance or obligations pertaining to the Demerged
Undertaking vested in the Resulting Company, such security, charge and/ or mortgage shall be
deemed to be carried out as an integral part of the scheme and all applicable compliances/
clearances/ permissions of regulatory authorities and no separate approvals shall be required.

Provided further that the securities, charges and mortgages (if any subsisting) over and in
respect of the assets or any part thereof of the Resulting Company shall continue with respect
to such assets or part thereof and this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge such securities,
charges or mortgages to the end and intent that such securities, charges and mortgages shall
not extend or be deemed to extend, to any of the assets of AlL vested in the Resulting Company.

Provided always that this Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any loan, deposit
or facility created by AIL which shall vest in the Resulting Company by virtue of the demerger of
the Demerged Undertaking into the Resulting Company and the Resulting Company shall not be
obliged to create any further or additional security thereof after the Scheme has become
operative.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, the borrowing limits of the Resulting Company in
terms of section 180(1)(c) of the Act shall be deemed without any further act or deed to have
been enhanced by the aggregate liabilities of AIL which are being transferred to the Resulting
Company pursuant to the Scheme, such limits being incremental to the existing limits of the
Resulting Company, with effect from the Appointed Date.

The provisions of this Clause insofar as they relate to the transfer of liabilities to the Resulting
Company shall operate notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in any deed or
writing or the terms of sanction or issue or any security document, all of which instruments shall
stand modified and/ or superseded by the foregoing provisions.

It shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other person who is a party
to any contract or arrangement by virtue of which such debts, liabilities, contingent liabilities,

duties and obligations have arisen, in order to give effect to the provisions of this Clause.

It is hereby clarified that all assets and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking shall be
transferred at values appearing in the books of account of AIL as on the Appointed Date which
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are set forth in the closing balance sheet of AlL as of the close of business hours on the date
immediately preceding the Appointed Date.

5.18 All cheques and other negotiable instruments, payment order, electronic fund transfers (like
NEFT, RTGS, etc.) received or presented for encashment which are in the name of AlL (in relation
to Demerged Undertaking) after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of APL and
credited to the account of APL, if presented by APL or received through electronic transfers.
Similarly, the banker of APL shall honor all cheques / electronic fund transfer instructions issued
by APL (in relation to Demerged Undertaking) for payment after the Effective Date. If required,
the bankers of AIL and APL shall allow maintaining and operating of the bank accounts (including
banking transactions carried out electronically) in the name of AIL by APL in relation to the
Demerged Undertaking for such time as may be determined to be necessary by APL for
presentation and deposition of cheques, pay order and electronic transfers that have been
issued/made in the name of APL.

5.19 Benefits of any and all corporate approvals as may have already been taken by AlL in connection
with the Demerged Undertaking, including approvals under Sections 42, 62(1A), 180, 185, 186
and 188 of the Act shall stand transferred to APL and the said corporate approvals and
compliances shall be deemed to have been taken / complied with by APL.

. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

All legal or other proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Demerged Undertaking pending and/
or arising on or after the Appointed Date and relating to the Demerged Undertaking or its properties, assets,
debts, liabilities, duties and obligations, shall be continued and/ or enforced until the Effective Date as
desired by APL and as and from the Effective Date shall be continued and enforced by or against APL in the
same manner and to the same extent as would or might have been continued and enforced by or against
AIL. On and from the Effective Date, APL shall and may, if required, initiate any legal proceedings in its name
in relation to the Demerged Undertaking in the same manner and to the same extent as would or might have
been initiated by AlL.

. CONTRACTS AND DEEDS

Subject to the other provisions of this Scheme, all contracts, deeds, bonds, agreements, insurance policies
and other instruments, if any, of whatsoever nature to which AIL (to the extent related to the Demerged
Undertaking) is a party and subsisting or having effect on the Effective Date shall be in full force and effect
against or in favor of APL, as the case may be, and may be enforced by or against APL as fully and effectually
as if, instead of AIL, APL had been a party thereto. APL may enter into and/ or issue and / or execute deeds,
writings or confirmations or enter into any tripartite arrangements, confirmations or novations, to which AIL
will, if necessary, also be party in order to give formal effect to the provisions of this Scheme, if so required
or if so, considered necessary. APL shall be deemed to be authorized to execute any such deeds, writings or
confirmations on behalf of AIL and to implement or carry out all formalities required on the part of AL to
give effect to the provisions of this Scheme.

. BUSINESS AND PROPERTY IN TRUST

As and from the Appointed Date, up to and including the Effective Date:
(i) AL (to the extent of the Demerged Undertaking), shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on
its business and activities and shall stand possessed of all the assets and properties, in trust for
Resulting Company and shall account for the same to Resulting Company.
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(ii)

(iii)

Income or profit accruing or arising to the Demerged Undertaking and all costs, charges, expenses
and losses or taxes incurred by the Demerged Undertaking shall for all purposes be treated as the
income, profits, costs, charges, expenses and losses or taxes, as the case may be, of Resulting
Company and shall be available to the Resulting Company for being disposed of in any manner as
it thinks fit.

Post Effective Date, any business with customer or supplier of Demerged Undertaking till it is
transferred, any such business carried with that customer/supplier will be done on behalf of
Resulting Company till the requisite procedures to start business in name of the Resulting
Company is completed.

9. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS
1. With effect from the date of approval of the Scheme by the Board of Directors of AlL, and up to the
Effective Date:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

AIL (to the extent related to the Demerged Undertaking) shall carry on its business with reasonable
diligence and in the same manner as it had been doing hitherto fore, and AIL shall not alter or
substantially expand the business of the Demerged Undertaking, except with the written
concurrence of Resulting Company.

AlL shall not, without the written concurrence of Resulting Company, transfer, alienate, charge or
encumber any business activity of the Demerged Undertaking, or properties (including Intellectual
Property), rights or assets of the Demerged Undertaking, except in the ordinary course of business
or pursuant to any pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of the
Scheme by the Board of Directors of AlL.

It is further clarified that upon receipt of the written concurrence of the Resulting Company, AlL
may transfer, alienate, charge or encumber any business activity of the Demerged Undertaking,
or properties (including Intellectual Property), rights or assets of the Demerged Undertaking, for
cash or any other consideration. Further, any such consideration received by AlL shall constitute
a part of the Demerged Undertaking.

AIL (to the extent of the Demerged Undertaking) shall not without the written concurrence of
Resulting Company, vary or alter, except in the ordinary course of its business or pursuant to any
pre-existing obligation undertaken prior to the date of acceptance of the Scheme by the Board of
Directors of AlL, the terms and conditions of employment of any of its employees, nor shall it
conclude settlement with employees.

10.SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS
The transfer and vesting of the assets, liabilities and obligations of the Demerged Undertaking and the
continuance of proceedings by or against APL shall not affect any transaction or proceedings already
concluded by the Demerged Undertaking on or before the date when AIL adopts the Scheme in its Board
meeting, and after the date of such adoption till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that APL accepts
and adopts all acts, deeds and things done and executed by the Demerged Undertaking in respect thereto as

done and executed on behalf of itself.

11.STAFF AND EMPLOYEES
11.1. Upon the Scheme coming into effect, all staff and employees of the Demerged Undertaking shall be

deemed to have become staff and employees of APL without any break in their service and on the

basis of continuity of service and the terms and conditions of their employment with APL shall not be

less favorable than those applicable to them with reference to AlL on the Effective Date.
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11.2.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, the accounts of the employees of the Demerged Undertaking
relating to Provident Fund, Gratuity and any other trusts/ funds shall be identified, determined and
transferred to the respective funds/ trusts of APL and the employees shall be deemed to have become
members of such funds/ trusts of APL. AIL shall take all steps necessary for the transfer of the
Provident Fund, Gratuity trust and any other fund of employees, pursuant to the Scheme, to APL. The
obligation to make contributions to the said fund or funds shall be transferred to the Resulting
Company from the Effective Date in accordance with the terms provided in the respective trust deeds,
if any, to the end and intent that all rights, duties, powers and obligations of AlL (to the extent related
to the Demerged Undertaking) in relation to such fund or funds shall become those of APL and all the
rights, duties and benefits of the employees employed in AlL (to the extent related to the Demerged
Undertaking) under such funds and trusts shall be protected, subject to the provisions of law for the
time being in force.

Upon the Scheme coming into effect, until such time that the Resulting Company creates its own
funds, the Resulting Company may continue to make contributions pertaining to the employees of
the Demerged Undertaking to the relevant funds of the Demerged Company and such contributions
pertaining to the employees of the Demerged Undertaking shall be transferred by AIL to the funds of
the Resulting Company as and when created. AlL shall take all steps necessary for the transfer of the
Provident Fund, Gratuity trust and any other fund of employees, pursuant to the Scheme, to the
Resulting Company.

12. TREATMENT OF TAX

12.1.

12.2.

12.3.

12.4.

12.5.

APL will be the successor of AlL vis-a-vis the Demerged Undertaking. Hence, it will be deemed that
the benefits of any tax credits whether central, state, or local, availed vis-a-vis the Demerged
Undertaking and the obligations, if any, for payment of taxes on any assets of the Demerged
Undertaking or their erection and/or installation, etc. shall be deemed to have been availed by APL,
or be deemed to be the obligation of APL, as the case may be.

With effect from the Appointed Date and upon the Scheme becoming effective, all taxes, duties, cess,
receivables/payables by AIL relating to the Demerged Undertaking including all or any
refunds/credits/claims/tax losses/unabsorbed depreciation relating thereto shall be treated as the
asset/liability or refund/credit/claims/tax losses/unabsorbed depreciation, as the case may be, of
APL.

AlL and APL are expressly permitted to revise their tax returns including tax deducted at source ('TDS')
certificates/ returns and to claim refund, advance tax, credits, Goods and Service Tax (“GST”), excise
and GST credits, set off etc. on the basis of the accounts of the Demerged Undertaking as vested with
APL upon coming into effect of this Scheme. Such returns may be revised and filed notwithstanding
that the statutory period for such revision and filing may have expired.

Any refund, under the income tax, GST, service tax laws, excise duty laws, central sales tax, applicable
State Value Added Tax laws or other Applicable Law, dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies due to
Demerged Undertaking of AlL consequent to the assessment made on AIL and for which no credit is
taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed Date shall also belong to
and be received by APL upon this Scheme becoming effective.

The tax payments (including, without limitation income tax, GST, service tax, excise duty, central sales
tax, applicable state value added tax, etc.) whether by way of TDS, advance tax, all earnest monies,

Page 15 of 25



12.6.

12.7.

12.8.

12.9.

security deposits, provisional payments, payment under protest, or otherwise howsoever, by AlL with
respect to the Demerged Undertaking after the Appointed Date, shall be deemed to be paid by APL
and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

Further, any TDS by AIL / APL with respect to Demerged Undertaking on transactions with AIL / APL,
if any (from Appointed Date to Effective Date) shall be deemed to be advance tax paid by APL and
shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

Obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment made by or to be made by AlL shall be made
or deemed to have been made and duly complied with by APL.

Any actions taken by AIL to comply with Tax Laws (including payment of Taxes, maintenance of
records, payments, returns, Tax filings, etc.) in respect of the Demerged Undertaking on and from the
Appointed Date up to the Effective Date shall be considered as adequate compliance by the AIL with
such requirements under Tax Laws and such actions shall be deemed to constitute adequate
compliance by APL with the relevant obligations under such Tax Laws.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all unavailed credits and exemptions, benefit of carried forward
losses, unabsorbed depreciation and other statutory benefits, including in respect of income tax,
goods and service tax, cenvat, customs, applicable state value added tax, sales tax, service tax etc.
relating to the Demerged Undertaking to which AlL is entitled to shall be available to and vest in APL,
without any further act or deed.

12.10. The Board of Directors of AlL shall be empowered to determine if any specific tax liability or any tax

proceeding relates to the Demerged Undertaking and whether the same would be transferred to APL.
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SECTION B: ISSUE OF SHARES / REORGANISATION OF SHARE CAPITAL

13.ISSUE OF SHARES

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

13.4.

13.5.

13.6.

13.7.

13.8.

13.9.

Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme and in consideration of the demerger of the Demerged
Undertaking in the Resulting Company pursuant to this Scheme, the Resulting Company shall, without
any further act or deed and without any further payment, issue and allot on a proportionate basis to
each member of AL, whose name is recorded in the register of members of AlL as holding shares on
the Record Date, in the ratio of 1 (One) Equity Share of Rs 5 each fully paid up of APL for every 4 (Four)
Equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up held in AIL.

Cancellation of shares of the Resulting Company:

Simultaneous with the issuance and allotment of the equity shares by the Resulting Company in
accordance with the Clause 13.1 above, the initial issued and paid up equity share capital of the
Resulting Company, comprising of 2,50,000 shares of Rs. 10/- each, aggregating to Rs. 25,00,000/-
shall be cancelled.

The Share Entitlement ratio have been determined by the Boards of Directors of the Demerged
Company and the Resulting Company based on the Share Entitlement Ratio report provided by
independent registered valuer as per the terms of the present proposed Scheme.

The issue and allotment of New Equity Shares by Resulting Company to the members of Demerged
Company pursuant to Clause 13.1 above is an integral part of this Scheme.

The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders of APL shall be deemed to be due compliance of the
provisions of Section 62 of the Act and applicable provisions of the Act, for the issue and allotment of
new equity shares by APL to the shareholders of AIL, as provided in this Scheme as well as all
applicable SEBI regulations have been complied with.

The new Equity Shares to be issued and allotted in terms hereof will be subject to the Memorandum
and Articles of Association of the Resulting Company.

The approval of this Scheme by the shareholders under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act shall be deemed
to have the approval under Sections 13 and 14 of Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions
of the Act and any other consents and approvals required in this regard.

Subject to regulatory approval and NCLT approval, in the event that AlL, as the case may be, change
their capital structures prior to the Effective Date, either by way of any increase (by issue of Equity
Shares, bonus shares, convertible securities or otherwise), decrease, reduction, reclassification, sub-
division, consolidation, or re-organisation in any other manner except as specifically provided in this
Scheme itself, which would have the effect of bringing some change to the capital structures of such
Company, subject to the approval of AlL, the Share Entitlement Ratio and / or number consideration
shares to be issued (as applicable) shall stand modified / adjusted accordingly to take into account
the effect of such corporate actions. Further APL, will not issue or re-issue any shares other than
mentioned in clause 13.1.

Subject to Applicable Laws, the fully paid-up new Equity Shares of APL that are to be issued in terms

of Clause 13.1 shall be issued in dematerialised form, unless a shareholder of AlL gives a notice to AlL
and APL on or before the Record Date, requesting for issuance of such Equity Shares in physical form.
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13.10.

13.11.

13.12.

The shareholders of AIL shall provide such confirmation, information and details as may be required
by APL to enable it to issue the aforementioned Equity Shares. However, if as of the date of allotment
by APL, AlLis unable to provide the details of the demat account of any particular shareholder, subject
to applicable law, APL shall allot the appropriate number of new Shares to such shareholder in physical
form. Notwithstanding the above, if as per Applicable Laws, APL is not permitted to issue and allot
the new Equity Shares in physical form, and it has still not received the demat account details of
certain shareholders of AlL, it shall issue and allot such shares in lieu of the new Equity Shares
entitlement of such shareholders, into a demat suspense account, which shall be operated by one of
the directors of APL, duly authorised in this regard, who shall upon receipt of appropriate evidence
from such shareholders regarding their entitlement, will transfer from such demat suspense account
into the individual demat accounts of such claimant shareholders, such number of shares as may be
required in terms of this Scheme.

New Equity Shares to be issued by APL pursuant to Clause 13.1 in respect of Equity Shares of the
shareholders of AIL which are held in abeyance shall also be kept in abeyance.

In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or outstanding, of any
shareholder of AlL, the Board of Directors of AlL shall be empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or
even subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a transfer in AIL as if such changes in
registered holder were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove any difficulties arising to
the transferor / transferee of the shares in AlL and in relation to the new Equity Shares issued by APL
upon the effectiveness of this Scheme. The Board of Directors of AlL and APL shall be empowered to
remove such difficulties as may arise in the course of implementation of this Scheme and registration
of new members in APL on account of difficulties faced in the transition period.

If the allotment of-shares pursuant to this Clause 13.1 will result in any shareholders being issued
fractional shares, the Board of APL shall, at its absolute discretion, decide to take any or a combination
of the following actions:

(a) consolidate all such fractional entitlements and thereupon allot equity shares -in lieu thereof to

a person/ trustee authorized by the Board of APL in this behalf who shall hold the shares in trust
on behalf of the shareholders of APL entitled to fractional entitlements with the express
understanding that such person shall sell the shares of APL so allotted on the Stock Exchanges at
such time or times and at such price or prices and to such person, as such person/trustee deems
fit, and shall distribute the net sale proceeds, subject to tax deductions and other expenses been
carrying as applicable, to the shareholders of AIL in proportion to their respective fractional
entitlements. In case the number of such new shares to be allotted to a person authorized by the
Board of APL by virtue of consolidation of fractional entitlement is a fraction, it shall stand
cancelled.

(b) deal with such fractional entitlements in such other manner as they may deem to be in the best

13.13.

interests of the shareholders of the AIL.

APL shall apply to all the Stock Exchanges (where the shares of AlL are listed) and SEBI for listing and
admission of all the Equity Shares of APL to trading in terms of SEBI Master Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249 dated December 22, 2020 read with other Applicable Laws (as
amended from time to time). APL shall enter into such arrangements, complete such formalities and
give such confirmations and/or undertakings to the Stock Exchanges as may be necessary in
accordance with the Applicable Laws for the listing of Equity Shares of APL.
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depository system until listing/trading permission is given by the Stock Exchanges to APL.

14. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT

14.1

14.2

14.3

14.4

14.5

146

14.7

14.8

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, AIL shall
account for demerger in its books of accounts in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS), as notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013, in the following
manner:

AlL shall reduce the book value of assets (net of diminution/depreciation, if any) and liabilities
relating to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred to APL in accordance with the provisions
of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

The excess of book value of the assets transferred (net of diminution/depreciation, if any) over
the book value of the liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking to APL shall be adjusted first to
Securities Premium Account & General Reserve Account in the ratio of Values of Business
transfer and thereafter balance, if any, to Retained earnings/profit and loss account balance
of AIL.

AlL shall reduce & transfer Contingent Liability, if any, pertaining to the Demerged Undertaking
to APL.

AIL shall reduce & transfer Other Comprehensive Income created as per IND AS related to
Assets & Liability transferred of Demerged Undertaking under the Scheme of Demerger.

The approval granted by the shareholders of AlL to this Scheme shall be deemed to be approval
required under the provisions of the Act.

Pursuant to Scheme becoming effective, AlL’s Investment in Resulting Company will stand
cancelled & Resulting Company will seize to be 100% subsidiary of AlL.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of AlL, in consultation with its statutory
auditors, is authorised to account any of the balances in any other manner, if such accounting
treatment is considered more appropriate and is authorised by the Accounting Standards
applicable to the Company and/or Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Accounting treatment in the books of APL

On the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, APL shall account
for demerger in its books of accounts in accordance with the accounting standards prescribed
under Section 133 of the Act in the following manner:

APL shall record the assets and liabilities (the difference between the assets and liabilities
hereinafter being referred to as the "Net Assets") vested in it pursuant to this Scheme, at the
respective book values thereof, as appearing in the books of accounts of AlL, relating to
Demerged Undertaking at the close of business of the day immediately preceding the
Appointed Date in accordance with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act,
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14.9

14.10

14.11

14.12

14.13

1961.

APL shall credit to its Equity share capital in its books of account, the aggregate of face value
of the new Equity Shares issued by it to the members of AIL pursuant to clause 13.1 and reduce
its Share Capital Account which are reduced and cancelled in terms of Clause 13.2.

The excess of the Net Assets as per Clause 14.8 over the face value of the new Securities
allotted in accordance with the Scheme under Clause 14.9, shall be credited to same reserves
as debited in the books of AIL with adjustment for balance, if any, to Profit and Loss
Account/Retained Earnings.

APL shall disclose Contingent Liability, if any, transferred under the scheme of arrangement, in
its first Financial Statement prepared on the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from
the Appointed Date.

APL shall record Other Comprehensive Income transfer, if any, transferred under the Scheme
of Arrangement, in its first financial statement prepared on the Scheme becoming effective
and with effect from the Appointed Date.

In case APL is required to follow accounting policies that are different from that of AIL for any
regulatory reasons, the effect of the difference in the accounting policies between AIL and APL
will be quantified and adjusted in the opening reserve (other than the securities premium
account), to ensure that the financial statements of APL reflect the financial position on the
basis of consistent accounting policy.

14.14 Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of APL is authorised to account for any of

these balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with the
accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with the rules made
thereunder including but not limited to Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) 103 ‘Business
Combination’ and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.
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SECTION-C OTHER PROVISIONS
GENERAL TERMS & CONDITIONS

15. APPOINTED DATE
The Appointed Date shall be 1t July 2021 for all purposes, including for the purposes of accounts of AlL and APL.

16. APPLICATION TO TRIBUNAL

The Companies shall, with all reasonable dispatch, make necessary applications/petitions under Sections 230 to
232 of the Act and other applicable provisions of the Act to the Jurisdictional Tribunal for seeking sanction of
this Scheme.

17. ALTERATION OF THE MEMORANDUM AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF APL
Increase in authorized Share Capital of APL

17.1 As an integral part of Scheme, and, upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the existing
authorized share capital of the APL will be reorganized as 10,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 5/-
each and further for the purpose of issue of shares as per Clause 13.1, as on the Effective Date
such that upon the effectiveness of the Scheme, the authorised share capital of APL shall be
Rs. 50,00,00,000 (Rupees Fifty Crores) divided into 10,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 5/-
(Rupees Five only) each. Clause V of the Memorandum of Association of APL shall be altered
as set out below, upon coming into effect of the Scheme and without any further act or deed:

17.2 “Clause V. The Share Capital of the Company is Rs. 50,00,00,000 divided into 10,00,00,000
Equity Shares of Rs. 5 ( five) each ”

17.3 As an integral part of the Scheme, and upon coming into effect of the Scheme, the Articles of
Association of APL shall stand amended and reinstated to replicate the Articles of a listed
Company and in such form as the Board of APL may determine.

17.4 Approval of the Scheme by shareholders shall be in due compliance of provisions of Sections
13, 14, 61, 64 of the Companies Act, 2013 or other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 would not be required to be separately passed. The Resulting Company shall only file the
requisite forms to that effect.

17.5 The Resulting Company shall pay requisite stamp duty and ROC fees on such increase in Capital.

18. MODIFICATION OR AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

18.1. Subject to approval of NCLT, the shareholders of AIL and APL, empowers their respective Boards of
Directors or by a person authorized by the Board of Directors of the Companies, may assent to/make
and/or consent to any modifications/amendments of any kind to the Scheme or to any conditions or
limitations that the Tribunal, as the case may be, as applicable and/or any other authority under law
may deem fit to direct or impose, or which may otherwise be considered necessary, desirable or
appropriate as a result of subsequent events, and the Companies by their Board of Directors are
hereby authorized to take such steps and do all such acts, deeds and things as may be necessary,
desirable or proper to give effect to this Scheme and resolve any doubts, difficulties or questions
whether by reason of any orders of the NCLT or of any directive or orders of any other authorities or
otherwise howsoever arising out of, under or by virtue of this Scheme and/or any matters concerning
or connected therewith including change in capital structure. For sake of clarity, there shall be no
change in the shareholding pattern or control in APL between the record date and the listing date.
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18.2.

If any provision of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason whatsoever, the same shall
not, subject to the decision of the respective Boards of Directors of AlL and APL, affect the adoption
or validity or interpretation of the other parts and/or provisions of this Scheme.

19. CONDITIONALITY OF THE SCHEME
This Scheme is and shall be conditional upon and subject to:

19.1.

19.2.

19.3.

19.4.

The requisite consents, no-objections and approvals of the Stock Exchanges and SEBI to the Scheme
in terms of the SEBI Circular, on terms acceptable to AIL and APL.

The approval of the Scheme by the respective requisite majorities in number and value of the
shareholders / Creditors as the case may be of the Companies in accordance with Sections 230 to 232
of the Act;

The Scheme being sanctioned by the Tribunal in terms of Sections 230 to 232 and other relevant
provisions of the Act and the requisite orders of the Tribunal; and

Certified copies of the Orders of the Tribunal sanctioning this Scheme being filed with the relevant
Registrar of Companies by AlL and APL as per the provisions of the Act.

20. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS/SANCTIONS

20.1.

20.2.

20.3.

20.4.

In the event any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in clause 19 are not obtained, and/
or complied with, and/or satisfied, and/ or for any other reasons, this Scheme cannot be
implemented, then the Board of Directors of Demerged Company and the Resulting Company shall
mutually waive off such conditions as they may consider appropriate to give effect as far as possible
to this Scheme and failing such mutual agreement this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and be
of no effect, save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated
hereunder or as to any rights and/ or liabilities which might have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto
and which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme
or as may otherwise arise in law.

In the event of revocation under clause 20.1, no rights and liabilities whatsoever shall accrue to or be
incurred inter se to AIL and APL or their respective shareholders or creditors or employees or any
other person save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto as is contemplated
hereunder or as to any right, liability or obligation which has arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and
which shall be governed and be preserved or worked out as is specifically provided in the Scheme or
in accordance with Applicable Law and in such case, each company shall bear its own costs unless
otherwise mutually agreed.

If any part of the Scheme is found to be infeasible or unworkable for any reason whatsoever, such
infeasible or unworkable portion of the Scheme shall not affect the validity or implementation of the
other parts and /or provisions of the Scheme.

The Board of Directors of AIL and APL shall be entitled to withdraw this Scheme prior to the Effective
Date for any reason(s) including, but not limited to, in case any condition or alteration imposed by
Tribunal or any other authority is not on terms acceptable to them.

21. WHEN THE SCHEME COMES INTO OPERATION

21.1.

It is clarified that the Scheme shall come into operation from the Appointed Date and shall become
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effective on and from the Effective Date in terms of the Scheme.

AIL and APL shall carry on and shall be authorized to carry on, with effect from the Effective Date, the
business pertaining to AIL and APL respectively. AIL and APL is and shall always be deemed to have
been authorized to execute any pleadings, applications, forms as may be required to remove any
difficulties and carry out any formalities or compliance as are necessary for the implementation of the
Scheme.

AIL and APL shall be entitled to, amongst others, file / or revise its income tax returns, TDS/TCS
returns, excise duty returns, GST returns, entry tax, cess, professional tax or any other statutory
returns, if required, credit for advance tax paid, tax deducted at source, claim for sum prescribed
under section 43B of the Income Tax Act on payment basis, claim for deduction of provisions written
back by AIL and APL previously disallowed in the hands of AIL and APL (relating to the Demerged
Undertaking) respectively under the Income Tax Act, credit of foreign taxes paid / withheld, if any,
pertaining to AIL and APL (relating to the Demerged Undertaking) as may be required consequent to
implementation of this Scheme and where necessary to give effect to this Scheme, even if the
prescribed time limits for filing or revising such returns have lapsed without incurring any liability on
account of interest, penalty or any other sum.

22.DIVIDENDS

22.1.

22.2.

22.3.

AlL and APL shall be entitled to declare and pay dividends, whether interim or final, to their respective
shareholders in respect of the accounting period after the Appointed Date and prior to the Effective
Date.

The holders of the shares of AIL and APL shall, save as expressly provided otherwise in this Scheme,
continue to enjoy their existing rights under their respective Articles of Association including the right
to receive dividends.

Itis clarified that the aforesaid provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are enabling provisions
only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any member of AIL and/or APL to demand or
claim any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the said Act, shall be entirely at the discretion
of the respective Boards of Directors of AIL and APL and subject to the approval of the shareholders
of AlL and APL respectively.

23. COSTS, CHARGES AND EXPENSES
All past, present and future costs, charges, taxes including duties, levies and all other expenses, if any (save
as expressly otherwise agreed) of AlLand APL, arising out of or incurred in connection with and implementing
this Scheme and matters incidental thereto, shall be borne by AlL and such expenses shall be entitled to be
a mortised in terms of Applicable Laws.

24.BINDING EFFECT
Upon this Scheme becoming effective it shall be binding on AIL and APL and, their respective shareholders

and all other stakeholders.
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Part | LIST OF INVESTMENTS

ANNEXURE A

A G O] Investment at
Name of the Company Unlts/.Shares (all Sharf:holdwgs or FpMV as at June
fully paid up) as on profit sharing of 30. 2021
June 30, 2021 AIL 2
Investments - (Unquoted) in Equity Shares
of Subsidiary Companies
Aarti USA Inc. 1,00,00,000 100% 65,76,000
Aarti Pharmachem Limited 50,000 100% 25,00,000
Investments - (Unquoted) in Equity Shares
of Joint Control/Associates Companies
Ganesh Polychem Limited 30,98,257 50% 12,60,85,944
Investments - (Unquoted) in Equity Shares
of Other Companies
Dilesh Roadlines Private Limited 4,64,550 5.81% 3,25,18,500
Aarti Ventures Limited 9,17,000 40.3% 7,39,52,285
Tarapur Environment Protection Society 21,751 N.A. 61,97,200
Derma Touch Inc. 1,25,000 Applied 4,25,51,938
Investments - (Unquoted) in Limited
Liability Partnership
3,67,32,754

Aarti Udyog Limited Liability Partnership NA N.A

32,71,14,621

TOTAL
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Part Il - LIST OF IMMOVABLE PROPERTIES
Location Address
- . D53, D55, D56 (Part), D57, D59 & D60, Dombivali
! Pharma - Dombivali API Unit MIDC, Dombivali East, Thane, Maharashtra.
) Pharma - RND, Dombivali, Maharashtra D-54, 56(Part), Dombivali MIDC, Dombivali East,
Thane, Maharashtra.
3 Pharma - Tarapur Unit 3 K 17/18/19, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
4 Pharma - Tarapur Unit 3 Godown K 65, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
5 Pharma - Tarapur Unit 3 - Utility Plot K 14, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
6 Pharma - Tarapur Unit 4 E 50, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
7 Pharma - Tarapur Unit 4 - New Plot E 59/1, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
3 Tarapur MIDC, K67 Plot K 67, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
9 Pharma - Steam Generating Unit L10, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
10 | Tarapur Spack Division D18, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
11 | Pharma - Custom Synthesis Division Plot No. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, GIDC Estate, Vapi - 396
195, District Valsad, Gujarat
12 | Pharma - RND, Gujarat Plot No. 22¢/1, GIDC Estate, Vapi - 396 195, Gujarat
R.S.No. 39 To 49 PCPIR Notified Industrial Area,
13 | Pharma - New Atali Site Village — Atali, Tal-Vagra, Dist — Bharuch, Gujarat -
392130
Unit - 6,126, 127 & 201, Udyog Kshetra, Mulund
14 | Mumbai Office - Maharashtra Goregaon Link Road, Mulund west, Mumbai -
400080, Maharashtra
15 | Tarapur 5 — Lease Hold Plot L-28/29, MIDC, Tarapur, Boisar, District - Palghar,
Maharashtra
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SSPA & CO.
Annexure 3 Chartered Accountants
1st Floor, “ Arjun”, Plot No. 6 A,
V. P. Road, Andheri (W),
Mumbal - 400 058, INDTA.
Tel. : 91 (22) 2670 4376
91 (22) 2670 3682
Fax : 91 (22) 2670 3916
Website : www.sspa.in

STRICTLY PRIVATE & CONFIDENTIAL Annexure A

August 19, 2021

The Board of Directors The Board of Directors,

Aarti Industries Limited Aarti Pharmalabs Limited

Plot Mos. 801, 801/23, Plot Nos.22/C/1 & 22/C/2,
GIDC Estate, Phase Il GIDC Estate, Phase |,
Vapi-396 195, District Valsad, Vapi — 396 195,
Gujarat Gujarat

Dear Sir(s) / Madam(s),

Re: Fair equity share entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of Pharma Business of Aarti

Industries Limited into Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (formerly known as Aarti Organics Limited)
We refer to our engagement letter dated August 05, 2021 wherehy S5PA & Co., Chartered
Accountants (hereinafter referred to as "S5PA° or "We’ or "Our’ or “Us’), have been appointed by
Aarti Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as 'AlL" or ‘Demerged Company’) and Aarti Organics
Limited name changed to Aarti Pharmalabs Limited to issue a report opining on the fair equity share
entitlement ratio for the proposed demerger of ‘Pharma Business’ (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Pharma Division’ or the ‘Demerged Undertaking’} of AIL into Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (hereinafter
referred to as 'APL’ or 'Resulting Company’).

AlL and APL are hereinafter collectively referred to as the ‘Companies’.

1 SCOPE AND PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT

1.1  We have been informed by the management of AlL and APL (hereinafter referred to as the
‘Management’) that they are considering a proposal of demerger of ‘Demerged Undertaking'
of AlL into APL pursuant to a scheme of arrangement under sections 230 to 232 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, including rules and regulations made
thereunder (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Scheme’).

Subject to necessary approvals, the Demerged Undertaking of AIL would be demerged into

APL, with effect from appointed date of July 1, 2021 ["Appointed Date’).
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1.2

1.3

2.1
211

2.1.2

2.13

SSPA & CO.,
Chartered Accountants
The proposed transaction is hereinafter referred to as the ‘Proposed Demerger’.

Pursuant to the Scheme, as a consideration for the Proposed Demerger, APL will allot its
equity shares of face value of INR 5 each fully paid up to the equity shareholders of AIL. As
part of the Scheme, the existing equity shares of APL as held by AIL will be cancelled on
demerger coming into effect.

In this regard, we have been requested to issue a report opining on the fair equity share

entitlement ratio as recommended by the Management for the Proposed Demerger.

BACKGROUND

AARTI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

AlL is & leading Indian manufacturer of speciality chemicals and pharmaceuticals with a
global footprint. AlL combines process chemistry competence (recipe focus) with a scale-up
engineering competence (asset utilization) for creating a sustainable future.

Over the last decade, AIL has transformed from an Indian company servicing global markets
to a global entity with state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities in India. AlL manufactures
chemicals used in the downstream manufacturing of pharmaceuticals, agrochemicals,
polymers, additives, surfactants, pigments and dyes.

The equity shares of AlL are listed on BSE Limited and The National 5tock Exchange of India
Limited.

Post March 31, 2021, AL has issued bonus equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 in June 2021.
Further AlL has completed Qualified Institutional Placement (QIP) in June 2021, wheraby AlL
has issued 1,40,35,087 equity shares at a price of INR 855 per share totalling to INR 1,200
crores.

The post issue of bonus equity shares and QIP the shareholding pattern of AL as on lune 30,

2021 is as follows:

Category of Shareholders| No. of shares *|% of holding
Promoters _16,27,74644|  44.90%
Public 19,97,29,291 55.10%
Total 36,25,00,035|  100.00%

* Face value INR 5 each
AlL earned consolidated revenue from operations for FY 2020-21 of INR 5,023.28 crores and

paid-up equity capital as on June 30, 2021 is INR 181.25 crores comprising of 36,25,04, 035

equity shares of INR 5 each.
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2.2.2
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2.3.2

SSPA & CO.
PHARMA DIVISION OF AIL TR
Pharma Division of AIL is divided into three verticals i.e. a) manufacture of active
pharmaceuticals intermediates (["APis”] b) manufacture of intermediaries and c)
manufacture of xanthine derlvatives.
The Pharma Division of the Demerged Company is having four APls, manufacturing plants,
two of which are approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration (“USFDA")
and two of which are WHO/GMP certified. Additionally, the Demerged Undertaking has two
dedicated research and development facilities for pharmaceuticals API.
After the effectiveness of the Scheme, the share capital of AFL consisting of the fully paid-up
new equity shares of APL issued as consideration in terms of this Proposed Scheme to the
shareholders of AlL shall be listed on the Stock Exchanges in accordance with the provisions
of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21, dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to
time,
AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED
Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (formerly known as Aarti Organics Limited), an unlisted public
limited company Incorporated on November 22, 2019 which is a wholly owned subsidiary of
AlL. APL is incorporated with an aim to engage in the business of manufacturing and trading
of pharmaceuticals and allied praducts.
As part of the Scheme, the authorised equity share capital of APL comprising of 5,00,000
equity shares of face value INR 10 each would be recrganised to 10,00,000 equity shares of

face value INR 5 each.

REGISTERED VALUER — 55PA & CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SSPA is a partnership firm, located at 1* Floor, Arjun Bullding, Plot No. BA, V. P. Road,
Andheri (West), Mumbal - 400 058, India. 55PA Is enpaged in providing various corporate
consultancy services.

We are a firm of practising Chartered Accountants registered with The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAI'). We are also registered with the Insolvency and Bankruptcy
Board of India ("IBBI'), as a Registered Valuer for asset class — ‘Securities or Financial Assets’

with Registration No. IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION
Far the purpose of this exercise, we have relied upon the following sources of information
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5.2

5.3

5.4

SSPA & CO.

) Chartered Accountants
received from the Management and information available in the public domain:

(2} Audited financial results of AL for the quarter ended June 30, 2021.

(b) Audited balance sheet as on June 30, 2021 of APL and statement of profit and loss of
APL for the quarter ended June 30, 2021.

(e} Management certified balance sheet of the Pharma Division of AlL as on June 30, 2021.

(d) Shareholding pattern of AllL and APL as on June 30, 2021,

(e} Draft Scheme of Arrangement.

{fy Such other information and explanations as we required and which have been

provided by the Management, including Management Representation.

SCOPE LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, QUALIFICATIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS
Cur report is subject to the scope and limitations detailed hereinafter. As such the report Is
to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the relevant documents referred
to herein and in the context of the purpose for which it is made. Further, our report
containing recommendation of fair equity share entitlement ratio for the Proposed
Demerger is in accordance with ICAl V5 2018 issued by The Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

This report has been prepared for the Board of Directors of the Companies solely for the
purpose of recommending the fair equity share entitlement ratio for the Proposed
Demerger.

The report assumes that the Companies/Demerged Undertaking of AIL complies fully with
relevant laws and regulations applicable in its area of operations and usage unless otherwise
stated, and that the Companies/Demerged Undertaking of AIL will be managed in a
competent and responsible manner. Further, as specifically stated to the contrary, this
report has given no consideration to matters of a legal nature, including issues of legal title
and compliance with any laws and litigations.

The draft of the present report was circulated to the Management (excluding the
recommendation of fair equity share entitlement ratio) for confirming the facts stated in the
report and to confirm that the information or facts stated are not erroneous.

For the purpose of this exercise, we were provided with both written and verbal information
including infarmation detalled hereinabove in para "Sources of Information’. Further, the

responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the information provided to us by the

Companies / auditors / consultants, is that of the ﬂnmﬁgﬁ‘i_ﬁ;_.'_ ﬁ.lm_, with respe
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5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

SSPA & CO.
) Chartered Accountants
explanations and information sought from the Companies, we have been given to

understand by the Management that they have not omitted any relevant and material
information about the Companies, The Management have indicated to us that they have
understood that any omissions, inaccuracies or misstatements may materially affect our
analysis/conclusions.

Our work does not canstitute an audit, due diligence or certification of these information
referred to in this report. Accordingly, we are unable to and do not express an opinion on
the fairness or accuracy of any financial information referred to in this report and
consequential impact on the present exercise. However, we have evaluated the information
provided to us by the Companies through broad inquiry, analysis and review. However,
nothing has come to our attention to indicate that the information provided [/ obtained was
materially misstated [ incorrect or would not afford reasonable grounds upon which to base
the report.

This report is issued on the understanding that the Management has drawn our attention to
all the matters, which they are aware of concerning the financial position of the Companies /
Demerged Undertaking and any other matter, which may have an impact on the repart
including any significant changes that have taken place or are likely to take place in the
financial position of the Companies / Demerged Undertaking. Events and transactions
occurring after the date of this report may affect the report and assumptions used in
preparing it and we do not assume any obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this report,
We zare independent of the Companies and have no current or expected interest in the
Companies or its assets. The fee paid for our services in no way influenced the results of cur
analysis.

Our report is not, nor should it be construed as we are opining or certifying the compliance
with the provisions of any law including companies, competition, taxation and capital market
related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising in India or abroad from the
Froposed Demerger,

Any person/party intending to provide finance/divestfinvest in the shares/convertible
instruments/business of the Companies / Demerged Undertaking shall do so after seeking
their own professional advice and after carrying out their own due diligence procedures to
ensure that they are making an informed decision.

The decision to carry out the Proposed Demerger {including consideration thereof) lies

entirely with the parties concerned and cur work and our finding shall not constitute a
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5.12

6.2

6.3

SSPA & CO.
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recommendation as to whether or not the parties should carry out the Proposed Demerger.

Our report is meant for the purpose mentioned in Para 1 only and should not be used for
any purpose other than the purpose mentioned therein. It is exclusively for the use of the
Companies and may be submitted to National Company Law Tribunal/regulatory/statutory
authority for obtaining requisite approvals. The report should not be copied or reproduced
without obtaining our prior written approval for any purpose other than the purpose for
which it is prepared. In no event, regardless of whether consent has been provided, shall
S5PA assume any responsibility to any third party to whom the report is disclosed or
otherwlse made available.

SSPA nor its partners, managers, employees make any representation or warranty, express
or implied, as to the accuracy, reasonableness or completeness of the information, based on
which this report Is being issued. We owe responsibility to the Companies that has
appointed us under the terms of the engagement letter. We will not be liable for any losses,
claims, damages or liabilities arising out of the actions taken, omissions or advice given by
any other person. In no event shall we he liable for any loss, damages, cost or expenses
arising in any way from fraudulent acts, misrepresentations or wilful default on part of the

client or companies, their directors, employees or agents.

BASIS FOR DETERMINATION OF EQUITY SHARE ENTITLEMENT RATIO

As mentioned in Para 1.2 above, in consideration for the Proposed Demerger, APL would
issue equity shares to the equity shareholders of AlL.

Accordingly, the Management has recommended the following equity share entitlement
ratio in consideration for the Proposed Demerger i.e. demerger of Demerged Undertaking of
AlL into APL:

1 (One) equity share of INR 5 each fully paid up of APL for every 4 (Four) equity shares of
INR 5 each fully paid up held in AIL

We understand from the Management that for the Proposed Demerger, the equity share

entitlement ratio is decided based on the Management’s desired capital structure of APL.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, information made available to us and discussions with the

Management, in our opinion, the aforementioned share entitlement ratio in consideration
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7.2 We believe that the aforementioned share entitlement ratio is fair considering that all the
shareholders of AIL are and will, upon Proposed Demerger, be the ultimate beneficial
owners of APL in the same ratio (inter se) as they hold shares in AlL,

7.3 As mentioned above, post the Propased Demerger all the shareholders of AlL are and will be
the ultimate beneficial owners of APL in the same ratio (inter se) as they hold equity shares
in AlL. Therefore, no relative valuation of Demerged Undertaking and of APL is required to
be undertaken for the Proposed Demerger. Accordingly, valuation approaches as Indicated
in the format (as shown below) as prescribed by circular number NSE/CML/2017/12 of NSE
and LIST/COMP/02/2017-18 of BSE have not been undertaken as they are not relevant in the

instant case.

=R |  Demerged AbL

e A | Undertakingof AIL|

~ Valuation Approach Value per Value per |

A ‘share |Weight| share | Weight
iR __[INR) (INR). '

Asset Approach NA MA HA MA
Income Approach NA NA NA NA
Market Approach NA NA NA NA
Relative value per share NA NA
NA = Not Adopted / Not Applicable
Thank you,
Yours faithfully,
For 55PA & Co.
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 128851W
IBE| Registered Valuer No.: IBBI/RV-E/06/2020/126

/qi_,arﬂw«

sujal Shah
Partner

ICAl Membership Number: 045816
Registered Valuer No.: |BBI/RV/06/2018/10140
UDIN: 210458168AAAA78363

Place: Mumbai

Page 7 of ¥

63




64

Annexure 4

B = ey

@ AARTI

INDUSTRIES

& INGA

STRICTLY PRIVATE AND CONFIDENTIAL
August 19, 2021

To,

The Board of Directors,
Aartl Industries Limited,
Plot Nos, 801, 801723,
GIOC Estate, Phasea Il
Vapi= 396 195,

Gujarat

Dear Sirs/ Madams,

commended s r pursuant rg Schem

We refer to the engagement letter dated April 28, 2021 {"Engagement Letter”) whereby Aarti
Industries Limited |“Demerged Company” or “AIL") has engaged Inga Ventures Private Limited
{"Inga"), to provide a fairness opinion to them on the Share Entitlement Ratio recommended by the
report dated August 19, 2021 ("Share Eatitlement Ratio Report *) issued by S5PA & Co., Chartered
Accountants {“Valuer”) for the proposed demerger of Pharma Business {"Pharma Division® or
“Demerged Undertaking”) from AlL into Aarti Pharmalabs Limited {formerly known as Aarti Organics
Limited) ("Resulting Company” or “APL") as a going concern with effect from July 01, 2021
|“Appointed Date") vide a scheme of Demerger (“Proposed Scheme”) under the provisions of
Sections 230 to Section 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with other applicable provisions and
rules thereunder (“Proposed Demerger” ), wholly owned subsidiary of AlL,

a5 part of the Scheme, the existing equity shares of APL as held by AlL will be cancelled on demerger.

AlL B APL are herelnafter collectively referred to as the “Companies”,

Company Background and Purpose

Aorti Industries Limited

AlL is a leading Indian manufacturer of specialty chemicals and pharmaceuticals with a global
footprint. AlL combines process chemistry competence (reclpe focus) with a scale-up engineering
competence {asset utllisation) for creating a sustainable future,

Over the last decade, Al has transformed from an Indian company servicing global markets to a glabal
entity with state-of-the-art manufacturing facilities in Indla. AlL manufactures chemicals used in the
downstream manufacturing of pharmaceuticals, agrochemicals, polymers, additives, surfactants,
pigments and dyes.

The equity shares of AlL are listed on the BSE Limited and the National Stock Exchange of India Limited.

1
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AlL earned consolidated revenue from operations for FY 2020-21 of INR 5,023.28 crores and its pald-

up equity capital as on March 31, 2021 is INR 87.12 crores comprising of 17,42,34,474 equity shares
of INR 5 each.

Posi March 31, 2021, AIL has issued bonus equity shares in the ratio of 1:1 in June 2021, Further AIL
has completed Qualified Institutional Placement [QIP) in June 2021, whereby AIL has issued
1,40,35,087 equity shares at a price of INR 855 per shares totaling to INR 1,200 crores,

The post issue of bonus equity shares and QIP the shareholding pattern of AlL a5 on date is as follows:

Category of Shareholders No of shares* % of holding
Promaters 16,27,74.644 44.90%
Public 19,97,29,391 55.10%
Total 36,25,04,035 100.00%
*Face volue of INR 5 each
Pharma Business of All

Pharma Business of AlL, Is divided into three verticals for the (a) manufacture of APIs; (b) manufacture
of intermediates; and [¢) manufacture of ¥anthine derivatives.

The Pharma Business of AL is having four active pharmaceutical ingredients (“APIs”) manufacturing
plants, two of which are approved by the United States Food and Drug Administration {“USFDA") and
two of which are WHO / GMP certified, Additionally, the Pharma Business of AlL is having two
dedicated research and development Facilities for pharmaceutical AP| business.

Aarti Pharmalabs Limited
Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (farmerly known as Aarti Organics Limited), an unlisted public limited
company incorporated on November 22, 2019 and is a wholly owned subsidiary of AlL, APL, is

incarporated with an an object to engage in the business including manufacturing and trading of
Pharmaceuticals and allied products,

As part of the Scheme, the existing authorised equity share capital of APL comprising of 5,00,000

equity shares of face value INR 10 sach would be re-organised as 10,00,000 equity shares of face value
INR & each

The proposal envisages, inter alia, the demerger of Demerged Undertaking of AL into APL, whereby
squity shares af APL will be issued 1o the shareholders of AlL. The Valuer has recormmended share
entitlement ratio ("Share Entitlement Ratio") of 1 (One) equity share of APL having a face value of INR
5/- each fully paid up for every 4 {four] equity shares of AIL having a face value of INR 5/~ each fully
paid up held in AIL.

after the effectiveness of this Proposed Scheme, the share capital of APL consisting of the fully paid-
up new equity shares of APL issued as consideration in terms of this Proposed Scheme to the
shareholders of AlL shall be listed on the Stack Exchanges in accordance with the provisions of SEBI
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21, dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to time.
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Further, as an integral part of this Proposed Scheme, existing equity shares of APL as held by Al shall
be cancelled on demerger coming into effect.

As consideration of the demerger of Demerged Unde rtaking of AIL into APL, ellgible equity
shareholders of AIL will be entitled to equity shares of APL in the same propartion in which they own
shares in AIL as on the record date determined by AL in the regard, ¢reating a mirmor shareholding.

AlLin terms of the Engagement Letter has requested us to issue eur independent opinion as to the
fairmess of the Share Eatitlement Ratio recommended by the Valuer (“Fairness Opinion”).

Sources of Information

Far arriving at the opinion set forth below, we have received from the management of the Companies
("the Management™) and any infarmation available in the public domain:
1. Share Entitlement Ratio Report issued by the Valuer,
2. Draft Scheme of Demerger pursuant to which the propased demerger is to be undertaken,
3. Shareholding pattern of AlL and APL as on June 30, 2021,
4. Financial Statements of APL for the year ended March 31, 2021 and for the period ended June
30, 2021,
5. Audited financial results of AIL for the quarter and year ended March 31, 2021 and quarter ended
lune 30, 2021,

6. Management certified balance sheet of the Demerged Undertaking of AlL as on June 30, 2021,

Auditors report on quarterly standalone results of APL as at June 30, 2021,

. Such other information and explanations as we required and which have been provided by the
Management including Management Representations to understand the rationale and basis for
arriving at the recommended share entitlement ratio,

9. Other relevant details regarding the Campanies such as their histary, past and present activities,
future plans and prospects, existing shareholding pattern, and ather relevant infarmation and
data, including information in the public demain, and

10. Such other Information received during discussion with the Valuer,

o

Scope Limitations

We have assumed and relied upon, without independant verification, the accuracy and completeness
of all information that was publicly available or provided or atherwize made available to us by the
Companies for the purposes of this Falmess Opinian, Wa 2upress no epinien, and accordingly, accept
no responsibility with respect to or for such information, or the assumptions on which it is based, and,
we have simply accepted this information on an “as Is" basis, and, have not verified the accuracy
and/or the completeness of the same from our end.

We have not assumed any obligation to conduct, por have we conducted any physical inspection or
title verification of the properties ar facilities of the Companies and its related parties (holding
company [ subsidiary fassociates fjoint ventures ete.) and neither Express any opinion with respect




thereto ner accept any responsibility therefore. We have not made any independent valuation or
appraisal of the assets or fiahilities of the Companies and its related parties.

We have not reviewed any internal management information statements or any non-public reports,
and instead, with your consent, have relled upon information that was publicly available or pravided
or otherwise made available to us by Companies on an "as is" basis for the purposes of this Fairness
Opinion. We are not experts in the evaluation of litigation or other actual or threatened claims, and
accordingly, we have not evaluated any litigation or other actual or threatened claims.

Wa have assumed that there are no circumstances, that could materially affect the business or
financial prospects of the Companies and its related parties.

We understand that the fManagement, during our discussion with them, would have drawn our
attentian 1o all such information and matters, which may have an impact on our analysis and opinion.
We have assumed that in the course of obtaining necessary regulatory or other consents, no
restrictions will be imposed or there will be no delays that will have a material adverse effect on the
Proposed Scheme. Qur opinion is necessarily based on financial, sconomic, market and other
canditions as they currently exist and on the information made available to us as of the date hereof.
It should be understood that although subsequent developments may affect this opinion, we do not
have an obligation to update, revise or reaffirm this opinion. In arriving at aur opinion, we were not
authorized to solicit, and did not solicit, interest from any party with respect 10 the acquisition,
husiness combination or other extraordinary transaction involving Companies, its related parties or
any of its assets, nor did we negotiate with any other party in this regard,

We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendation at all as to the Companies
underlying decision to effect the Proposed Demerger. We also do not pravide any recommendatian
to the holders of equity shares or secured or unsecured creditors of the Companies with respect 1o
the Proposed Demerger. We also express no opinion, and accardingly, accept no respansibility for or
as to the price at which the equity shares of AL will trade following the announcement of the Proposed
Demerger ar as ta the financial performance of AlL following the consummation of the Proposed
Demerger. We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendations at all {and accordingly

take no responsibility) as to whether shareholders / investors should buy, sell or hold any stake inthe
Companies or any of its related parties.

Our report is not, nor should it be construed as opining or certifying the compliance of the proposed
transaction with the provisions of any law including companies, competition, taxation (including
transfer pricing) and capital market related laws or as regards any legal Implications or Issues ansing
in Indie ar abroad from such Proposed Demerger.

Conclusion

As understood, upon the Proposed Scheme being effective, all the eligible shareholders of All would
also become the shareholders of APL and their shareholding in APL would mircor their existing
shareholding in AlL prior to the demerger. Existing equity shares of APL as held by AlL will be cancelled
on demerger coming into effect.
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Based on our examination of the Share Entitlement Ratio/Valuation Report, such other information /
undertakings/representations provided to us by the Management and our independent analysis and
evaluation of such information and subject to the scape limitations as mentioned hereinabove and to
the best of our knowledge and belief, we are of the opinian that the recommendation made by the
Valuer of the Share Entitlement Ratio is fair and reasanable which is as under;

The fair equity share entitlement ratio for the praposed demerger of Demerged Undertaking of AIL
into AFL is as under;

1 (One) equity share of APL of INR 5 each Jully paid up for every 4 (four) equity shares of AlL of INR
5 each fully paid up held in AlL

As understood from the Management, that for the Proposed Demerger the equity share entitlement
ratio Is decided based on the Management's desired capital structure of APL

Distribution of the Fairness Opinion

The Fairness Opinion s addressed only to the Board of Directars of AIL and is far the purpose of
submission to the Stock Exchanges under the SEBI Circular. Further, the Fairness Opinion may be
disclosed on the website of the AL and the Stock Exchanges and also be made part of the explanatory
statement to be circulated to the shareholders and/or creditors of the Companies. The Fairness
Opinion shall not otherwise be disclozed or referred publicly or to any other third party without Inga's
prior written consent.

However, the Companies may provide a copy of the Fairness Opinion if requested / called upon by any
regulatory authorities of india subject to the Companies promptly intimating Inga in writing about
receipt of such request from the regulatory authority. The Fairness Opinion should be read in totality
and not in parts. Further, this Fairness Opinion should not be used or quoted for any purpose other
than the purpose mentioned hereinabove, If this Fairness Dpinion is used by any person ather than to
whom it is addressed or for any purpose ather than the purpose stated hereinabove, then, we will not
be liable for any consequences thereof and shall not take any responsibility for the same. Neither this
Fairness Opinion ner lts contents may be referred o or quoted to f by any third party, in any
registration statement, praspectus, offering memorandum, annual report, loan agreement or any
other agreement or documents given to third parties,

In no circumstances however, will Inga or its management, directors, officers, employees, agents,
advisors, representatives and cantralling persons of Inga accept any respansibility or liability including
any pecuniary or financial liability te any third party,

Yours truly,

For Inga Ventures Private Limited
Ao Shok f@r

Kavita Shah :"1/?)-.
Partner rad




Annexure 5 KIRTANE & PANDIT LIAP

Annexure C

To,

The Board of Directors,

Aarti Industries Limited

Plot No.801/23, G.I.D.C Estate,
Phase i, Vapi, Dist., Valsad,
Gujarat -396 195

Sub : Auditors Certificate on Accounting Treatments Specified in Clause 14 of the
Scheme of Arrangement for Demerger of ‘Pharma Business' with its supporting
manufacturing units, Investments, cash & cash equivalents for future capital
expenditure.

We, Kirtane & Pandit LLP, Chartered Accountants, the slatutory auditors of Aarti Industries
Limited, (hereinafter referred to as “the Company"), have examined the proposed
accounting treatment specified in clause_14_ of the Draft Scheme of Arrangement between
Aarti Industries Limited (AIL) and Aarti Pharmalabs limited ( Formerly Known as Aarti
Organics Limited (APL) and their respective shareholders in terms of the provisions of
SEBI Circulars, sections 230 to 232 read with applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 with
reference to its compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under section
133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is
that of the Board of Directors of the Companies involved. Our responsibility is to examine
and report whether the Draft Scheme complies with the applicable Accounting Standards
and Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. MNothing contained in this Certificate,
nor anything said or done in the course of, or in connection with the services that are subject
to this Certificate, will extend any duty of care that we may have in our capacity of the
statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Company. We carried out our
examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special
Purpose (Revised 2016) ("Guidance Note") issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ("ICAI"). The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of
the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAI.

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality
Control (SQC) 1, Quality Control Firm that Performs Audits and Review of the Historical
Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services Engagements, issued by
the ICAL VASSALLTSN

Kirtane & Pandit L.J.f- Clertened Acepunianis
Pompaluru  Vyslorabod | Ml | Noshil | Pune
1B, Sarawwal Colony, Siiades Temple Road, Mahim, Mumbal - 400018, Indka | T +81 27 244441 15.15 / 24469713 | F + 51 22 2440147 | E kptamumbaaiikirianepandt com
P, OScec St Floot, Wang &, Gopal Hooss, £ Ma. 02170801, Plot-A1, Dpe. Harskal Hadl Pune - 447 029, Wndka | T, +81 20 E7205100 26433104 BIBA | P+ 20 25847603 | waw histudapasdd com

irtar & Porscht in P Frrm s Sacpuiranon b VB, 3441) scowerten miyi Kivtes & Masald LLP i Lomient Listioy Papiwaseaiog wil LLP Perrpramaes Joo. Rl £ 111, 9ty phe r 3T Slaees, 5118
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Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
confirm that the accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid scheme is in compliance
with SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as
amended) and SEBI circulars issued there under and all the applicable Accounting
Standards notified by the Central Government under the Companies Act, 2013.

This Certificate is issued at the request of the Aarti Industries Limited pursuant to the
requirements of circulars issued under SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for onward submission to the BSE Limited, National Stock
Exchange of India Limited and the relevant National Company Law Tribunal. This Certificate
should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm Reqistration No.: 105215W/W100057

A

Milind Bhave
Partner
Membership Number: 047973

UDIN - 21047973AAAADOS784

Place: Mumbai
Date: August 19, 2021

Encl.: Exiract of Accounting Treatments
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Extract of Accounting Treatments Specified in Clause 14 of the Scheme of Arrangement
Between Aarti Industries Limited (AIL){Demerged Company) & Aarti Pharmalabs Limited
(APL){ Formerly Known as Aarti Organics Limited ) (Resultant Company )

Accounting treatment in the books of AIL

On the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, AIL shall
account for demerger in its books of accounts in accordance with The Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act
2013of the Act in the following manner;

= AlL shall reduce the book value of assets (net of diminution/depreciation, if
any) and liabilities relating to the Demerged Undertaking, transferred to APL
accordance with the provisions of Section 2(19AA) of the Income Tax Act,
1961.

*» The excess of book wvalue of the assets transferred (net of
diminution/depreciation, if any) over the book value of the liabilities of the
Demerged Undertaking to APL shall be adjusted first to Securities Premium &
General Reserve in the ratio of Values of Business transfer and thereafler
balance if any 1o Retained earnings/profit and loss account balance of AlL.

* AL shall reduce & Transfer Contingent Liability, if any, pertains to the
Demerged Undertaking to APL.

s AIL shall reduce & Transfer Other Comprehensive Income created as per IND
AS related to Assets & Liability transterred of Demerged Undertaking under the
Scheme of Demerger. '

« The approval granted by the shareholders of AIL to this Scheme shall be
deemed to be approval required under the provisions of the Act.

= Pursuant to Scheme becoming effective, AlL Investment in Resultant Company
will Stands Cancelled & Resultant Company will seize to be 100% subsidiary of
AlL

Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of AIL, in consultation with its statutory
auditors, is authorised to account any of the balances in any other manner, if such
accounting treatment is considered more appropriate and is authorised by the Accounting
Standards applicable to the Company and/or Generally accepted Accounting Principles.

Page 3ol 3
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Jatin Vora Jatin Vora & Associates
B.Com., F.C.A. Chartered Accountants
Address:
203, Chheda Bhavan, 98, Surat Street,
Masjid (East), Mumbai - 400 009,
Tel: 022 — 4006 1063
Email: cajitvora@gmail.com

To Annexure C

The Board of Directors,

Aarti Pharmalabs Limited

(Formerly Known as Aarti Organics Limited)

Plot No. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, 1st Phase, G.1.D.C. Vapi,
District Valsad, Gujarat— 396 195

Sub : Auditors Certificate on Accounting Treatments Specified in Clause 14 of the Scheme of
Arrangement for Transfer of Demerged Undertaking of Aarti Industries limited to Aarti Pharmalabs
Limtied ( Formerly Known as Aarti Organics Limited),

We, the statutory auditors of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited ( Formerly Known As Aarti Organics Limited
)(“the Company”), have examined the proposed accounting treatment specified in clause 14 of the Draft
Scheme of Arrangement between Aarti Industries Limited (AIL) and Aarti Pharmalabs limited (
Formerly Known as Aarti Organics Limited ( APL)and their respective sharcholders in terms of
the provisions of SEBI Circulars, Sections 230 to 232 read with applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016
with reference to its compliance with the applicable Accounting Standards notified under section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and Other Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

The responsibility for the preparation of the Draft Scheme and its compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations, including the applicable Accounting Standards as aforesaid, is that of the Board of Directors
of the Companies involved. Our responsibility is to examine and report whether the Draft Scheme
complies with the applicable Accounting Standards and Other Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles. Nothing contained in this Certificate, nor anything said or done in the course of, or in
connection with the services that are subject to this Certificate, will extend any duty of care that we may
have in our capacity of the statutory auditors of any financial statements of the Company. We carried out
our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or Certificates for Special Purpose
(Revised 2016) (“Guidance Note™) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAT™).
The Guidance Note requires that we comply with the cthical requirements of the Code of Ethics issued by
the ICAL

We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1,
Quality Control Firm that Performs Audits and Review of the Historical Financial Information, and Other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements, issued by the ICAL

Based on our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we confirm that
the accounting treatment contained in the aforesaid scheme is in compliance with SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended) and SEBI circulars issued
there under and all the applicable Accounting Standards notified by the Central Government under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Page 1 of 3



This Certificate is issued at the request of the Aarti Pharmalabs Limited ( Formerly Known as Aarti
Organics Limited ) pursuant to the requirements of circulars issued under SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for onward submission to the BSE Limited, National
Stock Exchange of India Limited and the relevant National Company Law Tribunal. This Certificate
should not be used for any other purpose without our prior written consent.

For Jatin Vora & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 118024W

xxxxxxx

Jatin Sundarji Vora :

(CA Jatin S. Vora)

Proprietor

Membership No. 103866
UDIN: 21103866AAAAIV7926

Place: Mumbai
Date: 19" August, 2021.

Page 2 of 3
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Extract from the Scheme of Arrangement Between Aarti Industries Limited (AIL)(Demerged
Company) & Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (APL)( Formerly Known as Aarti Organics Limited )
(Resultant Company )

Accounting treatment in the books of APL

On the Scheme be coming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, APL shall account for
demerger in its books of accounts in accordance with the accounting standards prescribed under Section
133 of the Act in the following manner:

APL shall record the assets and liabilities (the difference between the assets and liabilities
hereinafter being referred to as the "Net Assets") vested in it pursuant to this Scheme, at the respective
book values thereof, as appearing in the books of the of AIL relating to Demerged
UndertakingatthecloseofbusinessofthedayimmediatelyprecedingtheAppointedDateinaccordancewith  the
provisions of Section 2(19AA)of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

APL shall credit to its Equity share capital in its books of account, the aggregate of face value of
the New Equity Shares issued by it to the members of AIL pursuant to clause 13.1. And reduce its Share
Capital Account which are reduced and cancelled in terms of Clause 13.2.

The excess of the Net Assets as per Clause 14.8 over the face value of the New Securities
allotted inaccordance with the Scheme Under Clause 14.9,shallbecreditedto same reserves as debited in
the books of AlL with adjustment for balance, if any, to Profit and Loss Account/Retained Earnings.

APL shall Disclosed Contingent Liability, if any, transferred under the scheme of arrangement, in its
first Financial Statement Prepared on the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed
Date.

APL shall Record Other Comprehensive Income Transfer, if any, transferred under the Scheme of
Arrangement, in its first financial statement prepared on the Scheme be coming effective and with effect
from the Appointed Date.

In case APL is required to follow accounting policies that are different from that of AIL for any
regulatory reasons, the effect of the difference in the accounting policies between AIL and APL will be
quantified and adjusted in the opening reserve (other than the securities premium account), to ensure that
the financial statements of APL reflect the financial position on the basis of consistent accounting policy.

Notwithstanding the above, the Board of Directors of APL is authorised to account for any of these
balances in any manner whatsoever, as may be deemed fit, in accordance with the accounting standards
specified under Section 133
oftheActreadwiththerulesmadethereunderincludingbutnotlimitedtolndianAccounting  Standards (Ind-AS)
103 ‘Business Combination” and Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

. Ll v .
Jatin s

P i
Sund Aok s S

undarji Vora feeiini
Dot 30010099 104375 485700
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INDUSTRIES
AARTIINDUSTRIES LTD
Balance Sheet as at 30th Sepr, 2021

[Rs. in Crs)
— i, A RN SAg AL B3t o,
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Proparty, Flant and Equipmant 1 3,660.34 3,510.67
Capital Work-in-Frogress 1 1,622.40 1,257.51
Imanglole Assets 1 0.05 010
Financlal Assets
Inwestments 2 36.26 36.26
Other Non-Current Acsets E] 309.47 117.14
Total Man-Current Ascets LEIRE2 5,162.08
Current Assets
Iventodies 4 1,157.51 501 46
Financlal Asyets
Trade Recelvables 5 1,115.52 10,08
Cash and Cach Egquivalents [ 384,56 AN5.59
Others Current Financlal Assers 7 258,47 187.20
Other Current Assets & 40,79 37.92
Total Current Assets 2,957.85 235165
TOTAL ASSETS 8.586.37 1,513.73
ECQLITY AND LIABILITIES
EQULITY
Equity Share Capital 9 181.25 B7.12
Cther Eguity io 4,E55.70 3,311.62
Tonal Equity 4.876.95 3,410.74
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabifities
Borrowings 11 1,089.65 1,268.05
Othar don Current Liablites 12 277.03 2241
Deferred Tax Liabilitles (Net) 13 219.98 210.58
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,586.66 1,703.44
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilitles
Barrowings 14 850.81 1,119.29
Trade Payables due to:
Micro and Small Enterprise NIL NIL
Other than Micro and Srmall Entérprise 623,75 Sa4.64
Odhor Current Liabilities 15 B16.76 55758
Prowisions 16 31.44 37.04
Total Current Liakilities 2,122.76 2,398.55
Total Liabilithes 3,700.42 4,101.99
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIBILITIES 8 586.37 7,513.73
As per our report of even date
For Kirtane & Pandit LLP For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215 W 10005

Oy o b
@ltﬂ?i #@" l%«{/’ i[f}’/
Wilind Bhave - Rajendra V. Gogri Ra Gogri
Partnar Chalrman ang Vice Chairman and
M.No. 047973 Managing Directos Managing Director
UDIN: 2104797 3AAREBG0SE DiN: 00061003 DIN: 00086291

1!}-».
!
E.B
Chetan Gandhi #a b
Place: Mumbai Chief Financial Cificer Campany 5

Date: October 30, 2021 1Al M.No. 111481 TS MLMo, ALS526
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INDUSTRIES
AARTI INDUSTRIES LTD

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Half Year ended 30th Sept, 2021

(Rs. in Crs)
For the Half Year For the Year
Particulars Nate Na. Endad 30th Sapt, Ended 31st March,
2021 2021

REVEMUE
Revenue from Operations 17 3,202.96 4,807.71
Less: GST Collected 387.23 45111
MNet Reveniue from Operations 1,815.73 4,316.60
Other Income 18 0.52 206
Total Revenue E&lﬁ.!ﬁ 4,318.66
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed (Incl. Packing Material, Fuel, Stores
& Spares) 19 1,450.11 1.922.84
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 80.88 185.79
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and
Stock-in-Trade 20 (153.30) (65.41)
Employes Benefits Expense 21 194.50 358.28
Finance Costs 22 56.25 86.16
Depreciation and Amertisation Expenses 1 136.10 21831
Cther Expenses 23 585,77 QR0.ED
Total Expenses 2,400.31 3,685.66
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 415.94 £32.00
TAX EXPEMNSES
Current Year Tax 72,75 110.00
MAT Credit Entitiement 0.00 {13.50)
Deferred Tax 9.00 22.00
Total Tax Expenses 81.75 118.50
FROFIT AFTER TAX 334.19 513.50
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and
Loss
Falr Value of Various Clualifing items {1.29) 33.97
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 332.90 553.47
Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS] (in Rs)
Baslc/DAuted 5.22 29.47
Bacie/Diluted after considering issue of bonus aquity shares 9.22 29.47

As per our report of even date
For Kirtane & Pandit LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN

Milind Bhave B Lrs T
Partnar %?w-’-ﬂUUS? *
M._No. 047973 oy mw-*ﬁ

UDIN: 2104797 3AAAEBEDSE

Flace: Mumbai
Date; October 30, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board

—

‘af..-

Rajendra V. Gogrl
Chairman and

Managing Diractor
DiN: 00061003

e P
Chetan Gandhi

Chief Financial Officer
ICAI M. No. 111481

7
Ra Gogri
Vice Chairman and
Managing Director
DIN: D00G66291

ICS1 M.Ho. A15526




Cash Flow Statement for the Half Year ended 30th Sept, 2021

[Ra in Crs)
For the Half For the Year
i, 2 Year Ended
Mo, Particulars a0th Segt, Endad 31st
021 March, 2021
A, Cash Flow from Operating Activities:
#iet Profit before Tax and Exceptional/Extracrdinary ltems 415.94 632.00
Adjustorents for;
Finance Costs 56.215 B6.16
Depreciation and Amartisation Expenses 136.10 218.31
GOE.29 03647
Profiton Sale of Assets/Investments {0.42) (0.34)
Dividend Income 0.00 (1.55)
Lease Rent Incame {0.03) (0.05)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes BOT.E4 834.53
Adjustmonts for;
{increase)/Decrease In Trade and Other Receivables (356.41) |25.54)
increase/{Decrease) In Trade Payabies and Other Current Liabilities 7544 148,68
{increase}/Decrease in Inventories {256.05) (115.98)
Cash Generated from Operations T0.80 93769
Direct Taxes Paid {70.33) {93.82)
Met Cash Flow from Oparating Activities (A} 047 24287
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Addition to Property, Mant & Equipment/Capital WIP {B14.40) [1.307.78)
Sale/\Written off of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.31 0.a4
{Increasel/Decrease in Investments kn Subsidiary Companies 0.00 {0.80)
Dividend Income from Subsidiary Companies 0.0 1.55
Lease Rent Incarma .03 0.05%
Met Cash Flow Trom Investing Activities (&) 1614.06) [1,306.54)
. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds of Lang-Term Barrowings 0.0 1,007.9%
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings {115.42) [250.85)
Proceeds/[Repayment} of Dther Borrowings {368.48) 7.87
Finznee Cogts [56.25) {86.16)
Increase In Equity by QIF [Met of Expenses) 1186.65 .00
Dividend Paid {54.26) 143.56)
Met Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C} 592.16 635.29
Net Increasef{Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents |A+B+C) (21.43) 172.62
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) a05.99 233.57
Cash and Cash Equivalents {Closing Balance} 38456 40553

Motes: (i Cashand Cash Equivalent is Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet.
(i} amounts of the previous year have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date
For Kirtane & Pandit LLP fFor and an behalf of the Board
Charterad Accountants -
FRN; 105215 o ' '
(d\-ﬂ L] '.l\_ iy -"fz" 7
Milind Bhave ~ " wfcf S ?:W Rajendra V. Gogri Rashesh i
Partner H37/ e/ Chaioman and Vice Chairman and
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.2. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS:

[Rs, in Crs)
e SO, No. of As at 30th Mo. of As at 31st
Shares/Units Sept, 2021 Shares/Units  March, 2021
Investments - (Ungquoted) in Equity Shares of
Subsidiary Companies
Aarti Corporate Services Limited 2,024,680 1.73 2,024,680 1.73
Alchemie (Eurcpe) Limited 80,000 0.54 20,000 0.54
Innovative Envirocare Jhagadia Limited 350,000 0.35 350,000 0.35
Aarti USA Inc, 10,000,000 0.66 10,000,000 0.66
Aarti Polychem Private Limited 1,500 0.00 1,500 0.00
Aarti Organics Limited 50,000 0.25 50,000 0.25
Aarti Bharuch Limited 50,000 0.25 50,000 0.25
Aarti Pharmachem Limited 50,000 0.25 50,000 0.25
Aarti Spechem Limited 50,000 0.25 50,000 0.25
4.28 4.28
Investments - (Unquoted) in Equity Shares of Joint
Control/Associates Companies
Ganesh Polychem Limited * 3,098,257 12.61 3,098,257 12.61
12.61 12.61
Investments - (Unguoted) in Equity Shares of Other
Companies
lchalkaranji Janata Sahakari Bank Limited 1,020 0.01 1,020 0.01
Damanganga Saha Khand Udyog Mandali Limited 61 0.01 61 om
Marmada Clean Tech Limited 287,550 0.13 287,550 0.13
Dilesh Roadlines Private Limited 464,550 3.25 464,550 3.25
WELP, Co-Op. Soclety Limited 20 0.00 a0 0.00
Perfect Enviro Control Systems Limited 36,800 0.02 35,800 0.02
Aarti Ventures Limited 917,000 7.39 917,000 7.40
Tarapur Environment Protection Society 32,489 0.62 32,489 0.62
Derma Touch Ing. 125,000 4.26 125,000 4.26
Shamrao Vithal Co-op. Bank Limited 100 0.00 100 0.00
15.69 15.70
Fartnership
Aarti Udyog Limited Liability Partnership NA 3.67 MA 3.67
3.67 367
TOTAL 36.26 36.26

*During the March 2021 quarter a subsidiary viz Ganesh Polychem Limited ceased to be a subsidiary and became a jointly

controlled entity w.e.f. March 17, 2021.
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{Rsin Crs)
P—— As at 30th Sept, As at 31st
2021 March, 2021
3. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Capital Advances 79.39 91.50
Other Deposits 53.44 46.58
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Net of Provisions) 176.64 179.06
TOTAL 309.47 317.14
4. INVENTORIES:
Raw Materials and Components {incl In-transit stock) 351.11 276.63
Work-in-progress 297.37 236.57
Finished Goods (Incl In-transit stock) ile.36 273.40
Stock-in-trade 50.65 4.57
Stores and spares 114.60 90.94
Fuel (incl In-transit stock) 19.89 13.70
Packing Materials 7.52 5.65
TOTAL 1,157.51 901.46
5. TRADE RECEIVABLES:
Unsecured and considered good 1,115,52 819,08
TOTAL 1,115.52 B19.08
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash on hand 0.61 0.56
Bank balance in Current Accounts 65.71 18.57
Bank balance in Deposit Accounts 213.48 331,77
Cash Equivalants investment in highly Liquid Funds 53.41 53.04
Earmarked Balances (Unpaid Dividend Accounts) 51.35 2.05
TOTAL 384.56 405.99
7. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS:
Goods & Services Tax Authorities 236.02 166.19
Loans & Advances:
(i) Employees 10.80 8.36
(i) Others 7.10 7.22
[iii) Related Parties 5.56 5.43
TOTAL 259.47 187.20
B. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
Others Receivables 9.13 10,17
Prepaid Expenses 16.76 21,99
Subsidy Receivable 14.90 5.76
TOTAL 40.79 37.92
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EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:
(Rs in Crs)

As at 30th Sept, As at 31st March,
Particulars No. of Shares 2021 Ma. of Shares ag04
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each 600,000,000 300.00 230,150,320 115.08
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of T 5/- each fully paid up 362,504,035 181.25 174,234,474 87.12
TOTAL 181.25 87.12

Reconciliation of the number of Shares outstanding as on 30,09.2021;

No. of Shares outstanding

Particulars Asat30th  Asat 31st March,
sept, 2021 2021

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 174,234,474 174,234,474

Add; Shares issued during the year 188,269,561 ML

Less: Shares buy-back during the year MIL ML

Equity Shares at the end of the year 362,504,035 174,234,474

Z
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10. OTHER EQUITY:

e rmenr®

{Rs in Crs}
. As at 30th Sept, As at 31st
PaBclnty 2021 March, 2021
a. Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 9.70 9.70
Addition:
Deduction NIL MNIL
Closing Balance 9.70 9,70
. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 696.12 696,12
Addition: 1,192.98 MIL
Deduction:
QIP Expenses 13.31 -
Bonus Shares Issued &r.12 -
Closing Balance 1,788.67 696,12
. Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance - B0.0D
Addition ML MIL
Deduction - £0,00
Closing Balance ML -
. General Reserve
Opening Balance 333.20 201.70
Addition:
Transferred from Debenture Redumption Reserve - 80,00
Transferred from Profit & Loss Account - 51.50
Deduction: MIL MIL
Closing Balance 333.20 333.20
. Profit and Loss Aceount
Opening balance 2,297.05 1878.61
Addition:
et Profitf{Loss) for the year 334.19 513.50
Deduction:
Final Dividend paid on Equity Share for the previous year - 17.42
Interim Dividend paid on Equity Share for the year - 26.14
Proposed Dividend 54.38
Tax on Dividend MNiL
Transferred to General Reserve - 51.50
Closing Balance 2,576.87 2,297.05
. Other Reserves
Forfeiture Reserve 1.85 1.85
Closing Balance 1.85 1.85
. Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance -13.30 -53.28
QCI far the year < B {1.29) 39.97
Closing Balance ‘?Vaﬁx 5, -14.59 _-13.30
5 105215W)
TOTAL :__kmnr}% A 4,695.70 3,324.62
z i



11. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS:

12.

83

(Rs in Crs)
—— As at 30th Sept, 2021 As at 31st March, 2021
Non-Current Current Nen-Current Current
Spcured
{b) ECB/Term loans from Banks/Financial Institutions 1,086.05 412.65 1,265.00 348.99
{c) WVehicle Loans from Banks/Financial Institutions 3.61 0.64 2.96 1.33
TOTAL 1,089.65 413.29 1,268.05 350.32
(Rs in Crs)
: As at 30th Sept, 2021 As at 31st March, 2021
Particulars
Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long Term Advance for Exports Received From Customer 259.81 98.94 211.29 190.01
Lease Liabilities Account 17.22 4.63 13.12 4,61
TOTAL 277.03 103,57 224.41 194.62




84

13.

14

15.

16.

INDUSTRIES

‘ @ AARTI

(Rs in Crs)
Pariila As at 30th Sept, As at 31st March,
2021 2021
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET):
Persuant to the Scheme of Arrangement
Difference between net book value of depreciable capital assets as per
books vis - 8- vis written down value as per Tax Laws. 9.00 27.06
Deferred Tax Assets
Itemns allowed for tax purpose on payment 0.00 (5.06)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 219.98 210.98
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS:
Secured
Working Capital Loan From Banks 748.49 1,143.20
748.49 1,143.20
Unsecured
From Banks 102.32 76.09
102.32 76.08
TOTAL 850.81 1,219.29
(Rs in Crs)
Particulars As at 30th Sept, As at 31st March,
OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current maturities of Long-Term Debt 412.65 348.99
Current maturities of Vehicle Loan 0.64 1.33
Long Term Advance for Exports Received From Customer - Current 98.94 190.01
Lease Liabilities Account 4.63 4.61
Unpaid Dividends 56.39 2.05
Other Current Liabilities & Taxes 43.51 10.60
TOTAL 616.76 557.58
SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS:
Provision for
Employees' Benefits 31.44 37.04
31.44 37.04

TOTAL
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19.

{Rs in Crs)
. FORSHE TSN Vo For the Year Ended
Particulars Ended 30th Sept,
31st March, 2021
2021

REVEMUE FROM OPERATIONS:
sale of Products & Services 3,078.42 4,609.85
Other Operating Revenues 124.54 197.86
GROS55 REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 3,202.96 4,807.71
Less: G5T Collected 387.23 491.11
MNET REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 2,815.73 4,316.60
OTHER OPERATING REVENUES:
Fertilizers Subsidy Received 23.54 20.24
Export Benefits/Incentives Received 10.41 19.05
Contract Shortfall Fees £84.61 147.24
Scrap Sales 5.98 11.32
TOTAL 124.54 197.86
OTHER INCOME:
Dividend Income - 1.55
Profit on Sale of Assets/Investments 0.42 0.34
Other Income 0.10 0.17
TOTAL 0.52 2.08
COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED:
Consumption of Raw Materials 1,284.92 1,644.06
Consumption of Packing Materials 26.89 40.56
Consumption of Fuel 127.95 135.61
Consumption of Stores & Spares 50.34 102.61
TOTAL 1,490.11 1,922.84
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(Rs in Crs)
For the Half Year Ended For the Year Ended
Particulars
30th Sept, 2021 31st March, 2021

20. CHANGE IN INVENTORY:

Opening Stock

Finished Goods 273.40 252.789

Work-in-Progress 237.67 192.87

Total (A) 311.07 445,66

Closing Stock

Finished Goods 367.01 273.40

Work-in-Progress 297.37 237.67

Total (B) 664.38 511.07

TOTAL (A-B) (153.30) (65.41)
21. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

Salaries, Wages & Bonus 163.92 302.09

Contribution to PF and other Funds 16.23 2596

Waorkmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 14.35 30.23

TOTAL 194.50 358.28
22. FINANCE COST:

Interest on NCD's o

Other Interest Expenses 52.67

Other Borrowing Costs 3.58

TOTAL 56.25




23,

(Rsin Crs)

Particulars

For the Half Year
Ended 30th Sept, 2021

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021

OTHER EXPEMSES:

Manufacturing Expenses:

Freight, Cartage & Transport
Power

Water Charges

Processing Charges

Other Manufacturing Expenses
Repairs & Maintenance

Insurance Charges

Research & Development Expenses
Factory Administrative Expenses
Total (A)

Office Administrative Expenses:
Rent, Rates and Taxes

Travelling and Conveyance
Auditor's Remuneration

Legal & Professional Charges
Postage, Telegraph & Telephone/ Printing & Stationery
Other Administrative Expenses
Total (B)

Selling & Distribution Expenses:
Advertisement & Sales Promotion
Export Freight Expenses

Freight and Forwarding Expenses
Commission

Export Insurance Charges

Sample Testing & Analysis Charges
Lease Rent Paid

Sundry Balance Written Off/{Back)

Total (C)

Non- rating Expenses:
Donations and C5R Expensas
Taotal (D)

TOTAL (A+B+C+D)

23.1 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION:

Audit Fees

Certification Charges
Out of Pocket Expenses
TOTAL

72,59 104.12
75.56 131.37
8.11 12.57
30.89 53.77
93.22 157.88
70.13 109.99
5.35 8.71
7.72 55.10
43.05 69.55
406.62 704.04
0.55 0.98
1.24 2.859
0.21 033
7.98 18.01
0.62 0.90
9.10 13.97
19.70 37.08
1.57 375
75.78 84.92
68.95 106.60
.89 15.31
0.93 1.95
0.88 1.44
5.49 10.97
-0.05 2.58
160.44 225.79
9.01 13.78
9.01 13.78
595.77 980.69
0.18 0.30
0.02 0.03
0.20
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KIRTANE &; PANDIT LLP

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
AARTI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Results
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone quarterly financial results of Aarti Industries Limited
(“the company”) for the quarter ended September, 2021 and the year to date results for the period
from April 1, 2021 to September 30, 2021, attached herewith, being submitted by the company
pursuant lo the requirement of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended (“Listing Regulations™).

In our opinion and o the best of our informalion and according to the explanalions given to us these
standalone financial results:

i. are presented in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations in
this regard; and

ii. give a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid down
in the applicable accounting standards and other accounting principles generally accepied in India of
the net profit and olther comprehensive income and other financial information for the guarter ended
September 30, 2021 as well as the year to date results for the period from April 1, 2021 to
Seplember 30, 2021.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our respensibilities under those Standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements thal
are relevant to our audit of the financial results under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Management’'s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

These quarterly financial results as well as the year to date standalone financial results have been
prepared on the basis of the interim financial statements. The Company's Board of Diractors are
responsible for the preparation of these financial results that give a true and fair view of the net profit
and other comprehensive income and other financial infermation in accordance with the recognition
and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, ‘Interim Financial
Reporting’ prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance with Regulation 33 of the
Listing Regulations. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecling frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriale

Kirtane & Pandit LLP - Chartered Accountants

. Uberqpalun | Diydhersbd | Mumbai | Nubdl | Pose
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accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operaling
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial results that give a true and fair view and are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial results, the Board of Direclors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability o continue as a geoing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic allernative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
pProcess.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial results as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whather due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
malterial if, individually or in the aggregale, they could reasonably be expected lo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial results.

&g part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercige professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial results,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Oblain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audil
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal conltrol.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

+ Coenclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exizls related lo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to confinue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
results or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our epinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
gvents or conditions may cause the GCompany to cease to continue as a going concern.

= FEvaluate the overall prasentation, structure and content of the standalone financial results,
including the disclosures, and whether the linancial resulls represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit f|ndmgs, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit. ( .

Page 2 of 3
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP,
Chartered Accountants
FRMN: 105215W/W100057

ADY

s

;

Milind BEhave

Partner

M Mo. 047973

UDIN: 21047973AAAAEBGDAE

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30.10.2021
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Standalone

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Aarti Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Standalone Financial Statements of
Aarti Industries Limited (“the Company"), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31,2021, and the statement of Profit
and Loss, (statement of changes in equity) and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Standalone
Financial Statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2021, and profit/loss, changes in equity and its cash flows for
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the

Annexure 7

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements Section of
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and
the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. Due to COVID-19 lockdown throughout
the country during the year, we have adopted alternative
methodologies solutions in performing our audit procedures.
We have determined the matters described below to the Key
Audit Matters to be communicated in the Report.

#  Audit Matters

Auditor's Response

Audit Approach and Principal Audit Procedures

1. Accuracy, Completeness and disclosure with Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the
reference to IND AS-16 of Property, Plant and internal controls and substantive testing as follows:

Equipments (Including CapEXx)

Peculiarity and technical complexities of
Property, Plant and Equipments used in the
operations and multiple IT systems used for
maintaining Fixed Asset Register (FAR), tracking )
and monitoring CapEx requires more attention

a) We assessed Company's process regarding maintenance of records, valuation and
accounting of transactions pertaining to Property, Plant and Equipment including
Capital Work in Progress with reference to Indian Accounting Standard 16.

We have carried out substantive audit procedures at financial and assertion level to
verify the capitalization of asset as Property, Plant and Equipment

to ensure reasonable accurateness and c)
completeness of financial reporting in respect
of Property, Plant and Equipments.

We have verified the maintenance of records and accounting of transactions regarding
capital work in progress by carrying out substantive audit procedures at financial and
assertion level.

Further,  technical ~ complexities  requires d)
management to assess and make estimates/
judgments about capitalization, estimated
useful life, impairment etc. which has material
impact on Balance Sheet and operating results e

We have reviewed management judgment pertaining to estimation of useful life and
depreciation of the Property, Plant and Equipment in accordance with Schedule Il of
Companies Act, 2013.

Due to pandemic restrictions physical verification on sample basis was not possible.
We have relied on physical verification conducted by management and management

Refer note 1 to financial statements representations.

f)  We have verified the capitalization of borrowing cost incurred on qualifying asset in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 23
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#  Audit Matters

Auditor's Response

Audit Approach and Principal Audit Procedures

2. Valuation, Accuracy, Completeness and disclosures Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating effectiveness of

pertaining to Inventories with reference to Ind AS 2

Inventories constitutes material component of financial a)
statement. Correctness, completeness and valuation
are critical for reflecting true and fair financial results
of operations. Further due to continuous nature of plant
operations and the raw materials which are basically
chemicals, management has to exercise its judgment in
assessing stage of the product and its valuation. c)

b)

Refer note 4 to financial statements
d)

e)

the internal controls and substantive testing as follows:

We assessed the Company's process regarding Maintenance of records,
Valuation and accounting of transactions relating to Inventory as per the
Indian Accounting Standard 2.

We have evaluated the design of Internal Controls relating to recording and
valuation of Inventory.

We have carried out substantive audit procedures to verify the allocation of
overheads to Inventory.

Due to pandemic restrictions physical verification on sample basis was not
possible. We have relied on physical verification conducted by management
and management representations.

We have verified consistency in respect of valuation process and methodology
followed

3. Valuation, Presentation and Disclosure pertaining to The Company has entered into long term contracts for exports of materials. Under
advances received for export commitments under long these contracts the Company has received advances to expedite establishment

term contracts.

of production facilities.

The contracts entered into covers a span of 10 to 20 Our audit approach consisted substantive testing as follows:

years. During the current financial year in respect of one
long term contract the Company received termination
intimation. On account of the termination the relevant b)
remedies available to the Company triggered. Further in
respect of other long term contracts, estimated supplies
which will happen over the period of contract at a later ©)
stage requires management to exercise its judgment.
Based on the judgment and the carrying value of the
advances received, its fair presentation is critical. d)

Refer note 12 to financial statements e)

a) We have reviewed the terms of contracts entered into by the Company

The classification, presentation of the said advances received under these
contracts was tested

Recognition and accuracy of compensation on account of termination
intimation was verified with reference to the terms of contract under
termination intimation.

The fairness of value reflected in financial statement was verified and tested.

Disclosure notes pertaining to said advances in financial statement was

reviewed.

Information Other than the Standalone Financial
Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board's Report with its annexures,
but does not include Standalone Financial Statements and our
auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this information; we required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial
Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters
stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act”)
with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable
and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statement that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management
is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone
Financial Statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SA's, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the Standalone Financial Statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)
(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as
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a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Financial
Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
Standalone Financial Statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
of the current period and are therefore the Key Audit Matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:
(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this
Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial
Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule
7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

On the basis of the written representations received
from the directors as on March 31, 2021 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the
directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

The Company has made provision, as required
under the applicable law or accounting
standards, for material foreseeable losses, if
any, on long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.

There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order,
2016 (“the Order"), issued by the  Central Government
of India in terms of Sub-Section (11) of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the "Annexure
B" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A",

With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has disclosed the impact of
pending litigations on its financial position in its
Standalone Financial Statements — Refer Note
25 to the Standalone Financial Statements;

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner
M. No. 047973

UDIN: 21047973AAAABF5304
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Annexure A to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of Aarti Industries Limited (“the Company") as of
March 31,2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on
that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's management is responsible for establishing
and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated inthe Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding
of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company'’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting based on
our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and the Standards
on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the
extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Company's internal financial controls system over financial
reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
Standalone Financial Statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a
material effect on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
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or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over
financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an
adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria

established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner
Place: Mumbai M. No. 047973

Date: May 18, 2021 UDIN: 21047973AAAABF5304
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Annexure B to the Auditor's Report

Annexure B referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report
on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our Report of even date to the members of Aarti
Industries Limited on the accounts of the company
for the year ended March 31, 2021.

On the basis of such checks as we considered appropriate
and according to the information and explanations given to us
during the course of our audit, we report that:

(i) (@ The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets;

(b) Asexplained to us, fixed assets have been physically
verified by the management at regular intervals;
as informed to us no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification;

() According to the information and explanation given
to us and on the basis of examination of the records
of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company.

(i) The Management has been conducted physical
verification of the inventories at reasonable intervals,
except inventories lying at the third parties; confirmation
of such stock has been obtained. No major discrepancies
were found in the physical verification. All minor
discrepancies have been properly dealt with in books of
accounts.

(iii) According to the information and explanation given to
us the Company has granted unsecured loans, to its
subsidiary company covered in the register maintained
under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013,

a) In our opinion, the terms and conditions of the
granted loans are not prejudicial to the company's
interest;

b)  The schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and repayments or
receipts are regular;

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us in respect of loans, investments,
guarantees and security, provisions of Section 185 and
section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 have been
complied with.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the
public covered under Section 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act, 2013.

The company has maintained cost records under sub-
Section (1) of Section 148 of the Act. We have not carried
out any detailed examination of such records.

According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on the records of the company examined by
us,

(@ The company has generally been regular in
depositing the undisputed statutory dues, including
Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax, Custom Duty and
other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the
appropriate authorities in India;

According to the information and explanation given
to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect
of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance,
Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax, Custom Duty and
other material statutory dues were in arrears as at
March 31,2021 for a period of more than six months
from the date they become payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given
to us and based on the records of the company
examined by us, there are no dues of Income Tax,
Goods & Service Tax and Customs Duty which have
not been deposited on account of any disputes
except following.

Nature of Tax /Duty Amount Crores Period Forum where dispute is pending
Central Excise, Customs Duty, Service Tax, 31.69 FY 2001-02 to 2019-20 Commissionerate
Goods & Service,, Interest & Penalty 36.41 Appellate Authorities and Tribunals
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(viii) In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the records, the Company has not defaulted in repayment
of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank,
government or dues to debenture holders.

In our opinion, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company does not raise
money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
and term loans, other than for what it was purposes.

During the course of audit, we have not noticed any fraud
by the company or any fraud on the company by its
officers or employees during the year.

(xi) In our opinion, the company has been paid or payable
managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197
read with Schedule V of the Act. If not, state the amount
involved and steps taken by the Company for securing
refund for the same.

(xii) The nature of business is not related to Nidhi Company;
hence, this clause is not applicable.

(xiii) In our opinion, and according to the information and

explanations given to us and based on our examination of

the records of the Company, all transactions with related

parties are in compliances with the section 177 & 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and details have been disclosed
in the Standalone Financial Statements as required by the
applicable Accounting Standards.

(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to
us and based on our examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has not made any preferential
allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year.

(xv) The company has not entered into any non-cash

transactions with directors or persons connected with

him.

(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under
section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner
Place: Mumbai M. No. 047973

Date: May 18, 2021 UDIN: 21047973AAAABF5304
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Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2021

®inCrs)

. As at As at
Particulars NoteNo.  315tMarch, 2021  31stMarch, 2020
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 1 3,510.67 2,301.13
Capital Work-in-Progress 1 1,297.91 1,417.65
Intangible Assets 1 0.10 0.50
Financial Assets

Investments 2 36.26 37.16
Other Non-Current Assets 3 317.14 391.95
Total Non-Current Assets 5,162.08 4,148.39
Current Assets
Inventories 4 901.46 781.48
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables 5 819.08 782.47

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 405.99 233.37

Others Current Financial Assets 7 187.20 111.67
Other Current Assets 8 37.92 31.84
Total Current Assets 2,351.65 1,940.83
TOTAL ASSETS 7,513.73 6,089.22
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 9 87.12 87.12
Other Equity 10 3,324.62 2,814.70
Total Equity 3,411.74 2,901.82
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 11 1,268.05 577.58
Other Non Current Liabilities 12 224.41 550.89
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 13 210.98 188.99
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,703.44 1,317.46
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 14 1,219.29 1,211.42
Trade Payables due to:

Micro and Small Enterprise NIL NIL

Other than Micro and Small Enterprise 584.64 324.19
Other Current Liabilities 15 557.58 297.58
Provisions 16 37.04 36.75
Total Current Liabilities 2,398.55 1,869.94
Total Liabilities 4,101.99 3,187.40
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIBILITIES 7,513.73 6,089.22
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-38

As per our report of even date

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner

M. No. 047973
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board

Rajendra V. Gogri
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00061003

Chetan Gandhi
Chief Financial Officer
ICAI' M. No. 111481

Rashesh C. Gogri

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00066291

Raj Sarraf
Company Secretary
ICSI M. No. A15526
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2021
R inCrs)
Particulars Note No. For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
REVENUE
Revenue from Operations 17 4,807.82 4,408.19
Less: GST Collected 491.11 413.78
Net Revenue from Operations 4,316.71 3,994.41
Other Income 18 1.95 10.51
Total Revenue 4,318.66 4,004.92
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed (Incl. Packing Material, Fuel, Stores & Spares) 19 1,922.84 1,765.21
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 185.79 218.20
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 20 (65.47) (16.09)
Employee Benefits Expense 21 358.28 292.34
Finance Costs 22 86.16 121.55
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 1 218.31 172.64
Other Expenses 23 980.69 805.21
Total Expenses 3,686.66 3,359.06
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 632.00 645.86
TAX EXPENSES
Current Year Tax 110.00 113.00
MAT Credit Entitlement (13.50) (8.50)
Deferred Tax 22.00 18.00
Total Tax Expenses 118.50 122.50
PROFIT AFTER TAX 513.50 523.36
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
[tems that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
Fair Value of Various Qualifing Items 39.97 (55.93)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 553.47 467.43
EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE (EPS) (in %) 24
Basic/Diluted 29.47 30.04
Significant Accounting Policies 1-38

As per our report of even date

For and on behalf of the Board

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057

Rashesh C. Gogri
Vice Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00066291

Rajendra V. Gogri
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00061003

Milind Bhave Chetan Gandhi Raj Sarraf
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M. No. 047973 ICAI'M. No. 111481 ICSI M. No. A15526

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

101

inCrs)
As at 1st April, 2019 43.33
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2019-20 43.79
As at 31st March, 2020 87.12
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2020-21 NIL
As at 31st March, 2021 87.12
B. OTHER EQUITY
inCrs)
Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Other Total
Particulars - Capital Debenture — - ] Crt‘)mpfe- Other
Capital . -~ Securities  General Forfeiture Retained ensive Equit
Reserve Red;mptlon Redemption “p . iim  Reserve  Reserve Earnings Income aury
eserve Reserve
As at 1st April, 2019 9.70 1.56 120.00 738.72 109.20 1.85 1,533.40 2.64 2,517.07
QIP Allotment (Net of Expenses) - - - (0.60) - - - - (0.60)
Bonus Shares Issued - (1.56) (42.00) - - - - (4356)
Dividend Paid - - - - - - (104.54) - (104.54)
Tax on Dividend - - - - - - (21.17) - (2101
Transfer to Other Reserves from - - (40.00) - 92.50 - (5250) - NIL
Retained Earnings
Profit for the Period - - - - - - 523.36 - 523.36
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - - (5593) (55.93)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 9.70 NIL 80.00 696.12 201.70 1.85 1,878.61 (53.28) 2,814.70
Dividend Paid - - - - - - (4350) - (43.50)
Transfer to Other Reserves from - - (80.00) - 13150 - (5150 - NIL
Retained Earnings
Profit for the Period - - - - - - 513.50 - 513.50
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - - - 39.97 39.97
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 9.70 NIL NIL  696.12  333.20 1.85 2,297.05 (13.31) 3,324.62

As per our report of even date

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner

M. No. 047973
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board

Rajendra V. Gogri
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00061003

Chetan Gandhi
Chief Financial Officer
ICAI' M. No. 111481

Rashesh C. Gogri

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00066291

Raj Sarraf
Company Secretary
ICSI'M. No. A15526
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2021
RinCrs)
For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended

Sr. No. Particulars

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

A.  Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Net Profit before Tax and Exceptional/Extraordinary ltems 632.00 645.86
Adjustments for:
Finance Costs 86.16 121.55
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 218.31 172.64
936.47 940.05
Profit on Sale of Assets/Investments (0.34) (8.47)
Dividend Income (1.55) (1.86)
Lease Rent Income (0.05) (0.05)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 934.53 929.67
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (25.54) 18.51
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities 148.68 353.03
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (119.98) (80.57)
Cash Generated from Operations 937.69 1,220.64
Direct Taxes Paid (93.82) (156.03)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 843.87 1,064.61
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Addition to Property, Plant & Equipment/Capital WIP (1,307.78) (1,141.00)
Sale/Written off of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.44 27.71
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Investments NIL (0.87)
(Increase)/Decrease in Investments in Subsidiary Companies (0.80) (0.20)
Dividend Income from Other Investments NIL NIL
Dividend Income from Subsidiary Companies 1.55 1.86
Profit on Sale of Investments NIL 3.88
Lease Rent Income 0.05 0.05
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (1,306.54) (1,108.57)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds of Long-Term Borrowings 1,007.99 7410
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings (250.85) (316.08)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Other Borrowings 7.87 (51.08)
Finance Costs (86.16) (121.55)
Increase in Equity by QIP (Net of Expenses) NIL (0.60)
Dividend Paid (43.56) (104.54)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 635.29 (519.75)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 172.62 (563.71)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 233.37 797.08
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance) 405.99 233.37

Notes: (i) Cash and Cash Equivalent is Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet.
(if) Amounts of the previous year have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner

M. No. 047973
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajendra V. Gogri
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00061003

Chetan Gandhi
Chief Financial Officer
ICAI' M. No. 111481

Rashesh C. Gogri

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00066291

Raj Sarraf
Company Secretary
ICSI M. No. A15526
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Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

Corporate Information

Aarti Industries Limited ("The Company") is listed entity
incorporated in India. The registered office of the Company is
located at Plot No. 801,801/23 G.I.D.C. Estate, Phase IlI, Vapi,
Dist. Valsad Gujarat 396 195 India.

The Company is engaged in manufacturing and dealing in
Speciality Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals.

Significant Accounting Policies

@)

(b)

132

Basis of Preparation and Presentation:

These Financial Statement of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards
(IND AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and as amended on time to time.

Revenue Recognition:

Ind AS 115 is effective from Tst April 2018 and it replaces
Ind AS 18. It applies, with limited exceptions, to all
revenue arising from contracts with its customers. Ind
AS 115 establishes a five-step model to account for
revenue arising from contracts with customers and
requires that revenue be recognized at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services
to a customer. Ind AS 115 requires entities to exercise
judgement, taking into consideration all of the relevant
facts and circumstances when applying each step of the
model to contracts with their customers. It also specifies
the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling a
contract.

Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the
payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of the consideration received or receivable, taking
into account contractually defined terms of payment
and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the
government.

(i) Sale of goods:

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on
dispatch (in respect of exports on the date of the
bill of lading or airway bill) which coincides with
transfer of significant risks and rewards to customer
and is net of trade discounts, sales returns, where
applicable and recognized based on the terms of the
agreements entered into with the customers.
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Interest Income:

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company and the amount of income can
be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a
time basis, by reference to the principle outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset's net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

(i)

Dividend income:

Revenue is recognized when the Company's right
to receive the payment is established, which is
generally when shareholders approve the dividend.

(iii)

(iv) Export benefits:

Export incentives are recognized as income when
the right to receive credit as per the terms of the
scheme is established in respect of the exports
made and where there is no significant uncertainty
regarding the ultimate collection of the relevant
export proceeds.

(v) Subsidy received:

Subsidy from Department of Fertilizers is recognised,
based on the eligible quantities supplied by the
Company, at the rates as notified/announced by the
Government of India.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and
Depreciation/Amortization:
(1) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost of
acquisition (net of recoverable taxes) inclusive of all
expenditure of capital nature such as inward freight,
duties & taxes, installation and commissioning
expenses, appropriate borrowing costs and
incidental expenses related to acquisition.
(2) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable
that the future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets
are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits
availed,if any, less accumulated amortisation and
cumulative impairment. Administrative and other
general overhead expenses that are specifically
attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are
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()

allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the
intangible assets.

(3) Depreciation/Amortization

(A) Pursuant to the notification of Schedule Il of
the Companies Act, 2013, the management
has reassessed and changed based on an
independent technical estimates, wherever
necessary, the useful lives to compute
depreciation, to confirm to the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life for
various class of assets is as follows:

Particulars Depreciation/
Amortisation

Over the remaining
tenure of lease

Over a period of 19 - 31
years

Over a period of 30 years
Over its useful life as
technically assessed, i.e
over a period of 9-19
years, based on the

type of processes and
equipments installed.

v) Computers Over a period of 2.5 years
vi) Office Equipment Over a period of 5 years
vii) Furniture and Fixtures Over a period of 10 years
viii) Vehicles Over a period of 7 years

Particulars

(i) Leasehold Land

(i) Building

(iii) Residential Quarters
(iv) Plant & Equipments

(
(
(
(

(B) Product/Process Development Expenses are
amortized over the estimated useful life of the
product.

(4) Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent, the
carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is higher of net selling
price of an assets or its value in use. Value in use
is present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset
and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.

Research and Development:

Revenue Expenditure on Research and Development is
charged to the Profit and Loss Account for the year. Capital
Expenditure on Research and Development is included as
part of Property, Plant & Equipment and depreciation is
provided on the same basis as for other Property, Plant &
Equipment.

()

(f)

(9)

(h)

Investments:
(i) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are
measured at cost.

(ii) Otherinvestments are measured at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income.

Valuation of Inventories:
Inventories are valued at Cost or Net Realizable Value
whichever is lower.

Inventories have been valued on the following basis:

(i) Raw Materials, Packing Material, Stores and Spares
- At cost on Weighted Average basis.

(i)  Work-in-Process - At cost plus appropriate allocation
of overheads.

Finished Goods - At cost plus appropriate allocation
of overheads or net realizable value, whichever is
lower.

Retirement Benefits:
Employee benefits are charged off in the year in which the
employee has rendered services.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. The exchange
rate differences arising out of such transactions are
appropriately dealt in the financial statements in
accordance with the applicable accounting standards.

Lease:

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116. It has resulted
into recognition of Lease Assets Right to Use with a
corresponding Lease Liability in the Balance Sheet.

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right to use
asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset.

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset
and the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the
use of the identified asset. The cost of the right to use asset
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement
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of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct
costs incurred. The right to use assets is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use
assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term
or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate.

For short-term and low value leases, the Company
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure:
Deferred Revenue Expenditure is amortized over the
period of the agreement on pro rata basis.

Income Taxes:
Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense
and deferred tax expenses.

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in Statement of
Profit and Loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

Current income tax:

Current tax is the amount of tax payable on the taxable
income for the year as determined in accordance with
the provisions of the Income Tax Act of the respective
jurisdiction. The current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date.

Deferred tax :

Deferred tax is recognized using the Balance Sheet
approach on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all
taxable temporary differences.
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(m)

(n)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed
at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using
substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which the temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) :

MAT credit is recognised as an asset only when and to
the extent it is reasonably certain that the Company will
pay normal income tax during the specified period. Such
asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and the
carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written down
to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to
the effect that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period.

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost directly related to the acquisition or
construction of an asset is capitalized as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are charged to the
Profit and Loss Account.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal
and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for
which it is probable that a Cash Outflow will be required
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when the Company
has a possible obligation or a present obligation and it is
probable that a Cash Outflow will not be required to settle
the obligation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
and Cash Equivalents consist of balances with banks
which are unrestricted for withdrawals and usages.
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for the year ended 31st March, 2021
2. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS:
®inCrs)
Particulars No._of As at No._of As at
Shares/Units 31st March, 2021 Shares/Units 31st March, 2020
Investments - (Unquoted) in Equity Shares of Subsidiary
Companies
Aarti Corporate Services Limited 20,24,680 1.73 20,24,680 1.73
Alchemie (Europe) Limited 80,000 0.54 80,000 0.54
Innovative Envirocare Jhagadia Limited 3,560,000 0.35 3,560,000 0.35
Aarti USA Inc. 1,00,00,000 0.66 1,00,00,000 0.66
Aarti Polychem Private Limited 1,500 0.00 1,500 0.00
Aarti Organics Limited 50,000 0.25 50,000 0.05
Aarti Bharuch Limited 50,000 0.25 50,000 0.05
Aarti Pharmachem Limited 50,000 0.25 50,000 0.05
Aarti Spechem Limited 50,000 0.25 50,000 0.05
4.28 3.48
Investments - (Unquoted) in Equity Shares of Joint
Control/Associates Companies
Ganesh Polychem Limited * 30,98,257 12.61 30,98,257 12.61
12.61 12.61
Investments - (Unquoted) in Equity Shares of Other
Companies
Ichalkaranji Janata Sahakari Bank Limited 1,020 0.01 1,020 0.01
Damanganga Saha Khand Udyog Mandali Limited 61 0.01 61 0.01
Narmada Clean Tech Limited 2,87,5650 0.13 2,87,550 0.13
Dilesh Roadlines Private Limited 4,64,550 328 4,64,550 2.56
U.K.I.P. Co-Op. Society Limited 80 0.00 80 0.00
Perfect Enviro Control Systems Limited 36,800 0.02 36,800 0.02
Aarti Ventures Limited 9,17,000 7.40 1,90,000 2.52
Tarapur Environment Protection Society 32,489 0.62 32,489 0.62
Derma Touch Inc. 1,25,000 4.26 1,25,000 4.26
Shamrao Vithal Co-op. Bank Limited 100 0.00 100 0.00
15.70 10.13
Investments - (Unquoted) in Limited Liability Partnership
Aarti Udyog Limited Liability Partnership NA 3.67 NA 3.67
3.67 3.67
Investments - (Unquoted) in Unsecured Convertible
Debentures
Aarti Ventures Limited NIL 0.00 7,27,000 1.27
0.00 7.27
TOTAL 36.26 37.16

*During the month of March 2021, Ganesh Polychem Limited ceased to be a subsidiary and became a jointly controlled entity w.e.f. March 17, 2021.
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3. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
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inCrs)
Particulars As at Asat
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Capital Advances 91.50 168.87
Other Deposits 46.58 41.34
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Net of Provisions) 179.06 181.74
TOTAL 317.14 391.95
4. INVENTORIES:
inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Raw Materials and Components (incl In-transit stock) 276.63 24773
Work-in-progress 236.57 192.87
Finished Goods (incl In-transit stock) 273.40 251.94
Stock-in-trade 457 0.86
Stores and spares 90.94 70.57
Fuel (incl In-transit stock) 13.70 14.01
Packing Materials 5.65 3.50
TOTAL 901.46 781.48
4.1 IN-TRANSIT INVENTORIES:
®inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Raw Materials 40.83 28.83
Finished Goods 54.11 21.96
Fuel 244 16.88
TOTAL 97.38 67.67
5. TRADE RECEIVABLES:
®inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Unsecured and considered good 819.08 782.47
TOTAL 819.08 782.47
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Cash on hand 0.56 0.53
Bank balance in Current Accounts 18.57 53.32
Bank balance in Deposit Accounts 331.77 177.19
Cash Equivalants investment in highly Liquid Funds/Bonds 53.04 NIL
Earmarked Balances (Unpaid Dividend Accounts) 2.05 2.33
TOTAL 405.99 233.37
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7. OTHER CURRENT FINANCIAL ASSETS:
®inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Balances with Customs, Port Trust, Central Excise, Sales Tax & Goods & Services Tax Authorities 166.19 97.56
Loans & Advances:
(i) Employees 8.36 7.75
(i) Others 7.22 6.24
(i) Related Parties 543 0.12
TOTAL 187.20 111.67
8. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:
inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Others Receivables 10.17 8.53
Prepaid Expenses 21.99 12.99
Subsidy Receivable 5.76 10.32
TOTAL 37.92 31.84
9. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:
R inCrs)
Particulars No. of Shares 31st March, ggza: No. of Shares 31st March, QSZa(;
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each 23,01,50,320 115.08 23,01,50,320 115.08
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each fully paid up 17,42,34,474 87.12 17,42,34,474 87.12
TOTAL 87.12 87.12

9.1 Reconciliation of the number of Shares outstanding as on 31st March, 2021:

Particulars

No. of Shares outstanding

As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 17,42,34,474 8,66,68,647
Add: Shares issued during the year NIL 8,75,65,827
Less: Shares buy-back during the year NIL NIL
Equity Shares at the end of the year 17,42,34,474 17,42,34,474
9.2 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
Name of the Shareholders As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
HDFC Trustee Company Ltd. 77,09,004 4.42 1,38,28,976 7.94
9.3 The details of Equity Shares outstanding during last 5 years:
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17
No. of Equity Shares outstanding 17,42,34,474 17,42,34,474 8,66,68,647 8,13,00,000 8,21,20,383
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9.4 Note on Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital:
(@ During the year 2019-20, 8,71,17,237 shares are issued as Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 equity share of ¥ 5 each.

(b) During the year 2019-20, 4,48,590 Shares were alloted to the shareholders of Nascent Chemical Industries Limited
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme of Arrangement approved by the Honorable National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench.

(c) During the year 2018-19, 53,68,647 Shares were issued through Qualified Institutions Placement at the issue price
of % 1,397 per Equity Share (including ¥ 1,392 towards share premium) to qualified institutional buyers.

(d) During the year 2017-18, 8,20,383 Shares were brought back at a premium of ¥ 1,195/-.
(e) During the year 2016-17, 12,00,000 Shares were brought back at a premium of ¥ 795/-.
10. OTHER EQUITY:

®inCrs)

As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Particulars

a. Capital Reserves

Opening Balance 9.70 9.70

Addition:

Deduction NIL NIL

Closing Balance 9.70 9.70
b. Capital Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance NIL 1.56

Addition NIL NIL

Deduction: upon issue of Bonus Shares NIL 1.56

Closing Balance NIL NIL
c. Securities Premium Account

Opening Balance 696.12 738.72

Addition: NIL NIL

Deduction:

QIP Expenses NIL 0.60

Bonus Shares Issued NIL 42.00

Closing Balance 696.12 696.12
d. Debenture Redemption Reserve

Opening Balance 80.00 120.00

Addition NIL NIL

Deduction: Transferred to General Reserve 80.00 40.00

Closing Balance NIL 80.00
e. General Reserve

Opening Balance 201.70 109.20

Addition:

Transferred from Debenture Redumption Reserve 80.00 40.00

Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 51.50 52.50

Deduction: NIL NIL

Closing Balance 333.20 201.70
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®inCrs)
As at As at

Particulars

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

f. Profit and Loss Account

Opening balance 1,878.61 1,5633.40

Addition:

Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 513.50 523.36

Deduction:

Final Dividend paid on Equity Share for the previous year 17.42 60.98

Interim Dividend paid on Equity Share for the year 26.14 43.56

Tax on Dividend NIL 21.11

Transferred to General Reserve 51.50 52.50

Closing Balance 2,297.05 1,878.61
g. Other Reserves

Forfeiture Reserve 1.85 1.85

Closing Balance 1.85 1.85
h. Other Comprehensive Income

Opening Balance (53.28) 2.64

OCl for the year 39.97 (55.93)

Closing Balance (13.31) (53.28)
TOTAL 3,324.62 2,814.70
11. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS:

(inCrs)

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2020

Name of the Shareholders

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Secured
(a) Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) NIL NIL NIL 80.00
(b) ECB/Term loans from Banks/Financial Institutions 1,265.09 348.99 575.49 202.57
(c) Vehicle Loans from Banks/Financial Institutions 2.96 1.33 2.09 1.08
TOTAL 1,268.05 350.32 577.58 283.65

11.1 a) Outstanding Term Loans/ECBs to the extent of  1,614.08 Crs are secured by way of Pari Passu Hypothecation of the
Moveable Plant & Machinery, Machinery Spares, Tools and Accessories and other movables, both present and future
(except book debts, inventories and other current assets) wherever situated, excluding those charged exclusively to

other Term Lenders/Specifically excluded.
b) Vehicle loans from Banks/Financial Institutions are secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicles.

11.2 Repayment Terms:

inCrs)
. Repayment Tenor
Particulars
1-2 years 2-3 years 3-4 years Beyond 4 years
ECB/Term Loans from Banks/Financial Institutions 353.88 344.26 361.66 205.29
Vehicle Loans from Banks/Financial Institutions 1.33 0.89 0.48 0.26
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inCrs)

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2020

Particulars

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Long Term Advance for Exports Received From Customer 211.29 190.01 529.69 NIL
Lease Liabilities Account 13.12 4.61 21.20 NIL
TOTAL 224.141 194.62 550.89 NIL

12.1 The Company has received advances of ¥ 401.30 Crs (previous year ¥ 529.69 Crs) for export commitments under the long
term contracts (contracts with period more than five year) executed by the company with its customers. The advances
shall be adjusted against the export sales/supplies over a period of time, as per the terms of these contracts. Further, as
per the terms of said contracts, the Company has issued a Bank Guarantee to the extent of ¥219.33 Crs (previous year

¥138.30 Crs) in favour of the customer.

13. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET):

inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Deferred Tax Liabilities 188.99 170.98
Difference between net book value of depreciable capital assets as per books vis - a- vis written 27.06 21.31
down value as per Tax Laws.
Deferred Tax Assets
Items allowed for tax purpose on payment (5.06) (3.30)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 210.98 188.99
14. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS:
®inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Secured
Working Capital Loan From Banks 1,143.20 1,188.22
1,143.20 1,188.22
Unsecured
From Banks 76.09 23.20
76.09 23.20
TOTAL 1,219.29 1,211.42

14.1 Working Capital Loans availed from Scheduled Banks, are secured/to be secured by way of Pari Passu first charge by
hypothecation of Raw Materials, Stock-In-Process, Semi-Finished Goods, Finished Goods, Packing Materials and Stores
and Spares, Bills Receivables and Book Debts and all other moveable, both present and future. Also by way of Joint
Equitable Mortgage of the Company's immovable properties situated at Sarigam, Vapi, Jhagadia and Bhachau in the State
of Gujarat and at Tarapur in the State of Maharashtra and further by way of hypothecation of all moveable plant & machinery,
machinery spares, tools and accessories and other movables, both present and future (except book debts & inventories)

wherever situated, ranking second to the charge held by ECB/Other Term Lenders.
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15. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:
®inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Current maturities of Long-Term Debt 348.99 282.57
Current maturities of Vehicle Loan 1.33 1.08
Current Portion of Long Term Advance for Export 190.01 NIL
Lease Liabilities Account 4.61 NIL
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings NIL 7.44
Unpaid Dividends 2.05 2.33
Other Current Liabilities & Taxes 10.60 416
TOTAL 557.58 297.58
16. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS:
®inCrs)
As at As at

Particulars

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

Provision for

Employees' Benefits 37.04 36.75
TOTAL 37.04 36.75
17. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS:
inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Sale of Products & Services 4,609.96 4,332.06
Other Operating Revenues 197.86 76.13
GROSS REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 4,807.82 4,408.19
Less: GST Collected 491.11 413.78
NET REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS 4,316.71 3,994.41
17.1.GROSS SALES & OPERATING REVENUES:
®inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Local Sales:
Speciality Chemicals 2,354.83 214724
Pharmaceuticals 448.70 420.43
Total (A) 2,803.53 2,567.67
Export Sales:
Speciality Chemicals 1,581.11 1,505.21
Pharmaceuticals 423.18 335.31
Total (B) 2,004.29 1,840.52
TOTAL (A+B) 4,807.82 4,408.19
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17.2. OTHER OPERATING REVENUES:

inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Fertilizers Subsidy Received 20.24 12.29
Export Benefits/Incentives Received 19.05 5457
Shortfall Fees 147.24 NIL
Scrap Sales 11.32 9.27
TOTAL 197.86 76.13
18. OTHER INCOME:
®inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Dividend Income 1.55 1.86
Profit on Sale of Assets/Investments 0.34 8.47
Other Income 0.06 0.18
TOTAL 1.95 10.51
19. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED:
®inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Consumption of Raw Materials 1,644.06 1,5605.86
Consumption of Packing Materials 40.56 36.23
Consumption of Fuel 135.61 137.28
Consumption of Stores & Spares 102.61 85.84
TOTAL 1,922.84 1,765.21
20. CHANGE IN INVENTORY:
®inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 252.79 221.84
Work-in-Progress 192.87 207.73
Total (A) 445.66 429.57
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 273.40 252.79
Work-in-Progress 237.67 192.87
Total (B) 511.07 445.66
TOTAL (A-B) (65.41) (16.09)
21. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
®inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 302.09 256.17
Contribution to PF and other Funds 25.97 18.54
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 30.22 17.63
TOTAL 358.28 292.34
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22. FINANCE COST:
®inCrs)
Particul For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
articutars 31stMarch, 2021  31st March, 2020
Interest on NCD's 2.55 10.36
Other Interest Expenses 74.36 102.25
Other Borrowing Costs 9.25 8.94
TOTAL 86.16 121.55
23. OTHER EXPENSES:
inCrs)
For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended

Particulars

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

Manufacturing Expenses:

Freight, Cartage & Transport 104.12 104.79
Power 131.37 113.15
Water Charges 12.57 11.36
Processing Charges 53.77 50.36
Other Manufacturing Expenses 157.88 117.22
Repairs & Maintenance 109.99 105.57
Insurance Charges 9.71 542
Research & Development Expenses 55.10 27.01
Factory Administrative Expenses 69.55 4713
Total (A) 704.04 582.01
Office Administrative Expenses:

Rent, Rates and Taxes 0.98 2.35
Travelling and Conveyance 2.89 6.38
Auditor's Remuneration 0.33 0.36
Legal & Professional Charges 18.01 12.40
Postage, Telegraph & Telephone/ Printing & Stationery 0.90 1.44
Other Administrative Expenses 13.97 10.99
Total (B) 37.08 33.92
Selling & Distribution Expenses:

Advertisement & Sales Promotion 3.75 6.05
Export Freight Expenses 84.92 61.21
Freight and Forwarding Expenses 106.60 86.63
Commission 1831 9.84
Export Insurance Charges 1.95 1.92
Sample Testing & Analysis Charges 1.44 1.14
Lease Rent Paid 10.97 1097
Sundry Balance Written Off/(Back) 0.85 0.47
Total (C) 225.79 178.98
Non-Operating Expenses:

Donations and CSR Expenses 13.78 10.30
Total (D) 13.78 10.30
TOTAL (A+B+C+D) 980.69 805.21
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23.1 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION:

17

inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Audit Fees 0.30 0.30
Certification Charges 0.03 0.05
Out of Pocket Expenses - 0.01
TOTAL 0.33 0.36

24. EARNING PER SHARE (EPS):
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Net Profit available for Equity Shareholders ®inCrs) 513.50 523.36
No. of Equity Shares (Nos.) 17,42,34,474 17,42,34,474
Basic & Diluted EPS ®) 29.47 30.04
Nominal Value of Equity Share ®) 5.00 5.00

24.1 Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing the profit/loss for the year by the weighted average number of

shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share has been computed using weighted average number of shares dilutive potential shares, except

where the results would be anti-dilutive.

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS:
(to the extent not provided for)

®inCrs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March, 2020

(i) Contingent Liabilities:

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as Debts 68.10 67.38
(b) Letters of Credit, Bank Guarantees & Bills Discounted 250.90 296.80
319.00 364.18

(i) Commitments:
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 120.02 327.94

provided for, net of advances

120.02 327.94
TOTAL 439.02 692.12

26. There are no Micro and Small Enterprise, to whom the Company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 45
days as at 31st March, 2021. This information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information

available with the Company.

27. Interest received of ¥ 13.15 Crs (Tax Deducted at Source % 0.66 Crs) [previous year ¥ 26.64 Crs (Tax Deducted at Source

%210 Cr)] is netted off against interest paid on Working Capital.

28. In the opinion of the Board, except as otherwise stated, the Current Assets and Loans and Advances have a value on

realization at least equal to amounts at which they are stated in the Balance Sheet.
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29. RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITES:
®inCrs)
Expenditure 31st March, 2826‘; 31st March, ;\3261(;
Revenue Expenditure 55.10 27.01
Capital Expenditure:
Land & Building 0.46 0.68
Plant & Equipment 28.27 35.08
Furniture and Fixtures 2.85 2.58
Total Capital Expenditure 31.58 38.34
30. SEGMENT REPORTING:
®inCrs)
Sr. Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
No. 2020-21 2019-20
(A) Primary Segments: Business Segments
1 Segment Revenue:
a) Speciality Chemicals 3,935.94 3,652.45
b) Pharmaceuticals 871.88 755.74
Total Revenue (Gross) 4,807.82 4,408.19
Less: GST Collected 497.11 413.78
Total Revenue (Net) 4,316.71 3,994.41
2  Segment Results Profit/(Loss):
Before Tax and Interest from each Segment
a) Speciality Chemicals 712.93 773.31
b) Pharmaceuticals 204.58 137.46
Total (A) 917.51 910.77
Less: Interest 86.16 121.55
Other Unallocable Expenditure (Net) 199.34 143.36
Total (B) 285.50 264.91
Total Profit before Tax (A-B) 632.01 645.86
3 Segment Assets:
a) Speciality Chemicals 5,546.06 4,545.48
b) Pharmaceuticals 1,192.99 958.60
c) Unallocated Capital 368.70 351.79
TOTAL 7,107.75 5,855.87
Segment Liabilities:
a) Speciality Chemicals 1,240.49 1,111.78
b) Pharmaceuticals 163.19 97.64
¢) Unallocated Capital 210.98 188.98
TOTAL 1,614.66 1,398.40
(B) Secondary Segments: Geographical Segments (Gross)
a) India 2,803.53 2,667.67
b) Outof India 2,004.29 1,840.52
TOTAL 4,807.82 4,408.19
Note:

The above segment report is presented in accordance with the applicable provisions & principles laid down under IND AS 108.
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RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE UNDER ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS: 24):

Following are the Subsidiaries of the Company

— 20O NO O AN~

0.
1.

Aarti Corporate Services Limited

Nascent Chemical Industries Limited (Through it's holding Company: Aarti Corporate Services Limited)
Shanti Intermediates Private Limited (Through it's holding Company: Aarti Corporate Services Limited)
Innovative Envirocare Jhagadia Limited

Alchemie (Europe) Limited

Aarti USA Inc.

Aarti Polychem Private Limited

Aarti Organics Limited

Aarti Bharuch Limited

Aarti Pharmachem Limited

Aarti Spechem Limited

Following are the Joint Ventures / Associates of the Company
1.

Ganesh Polychem Limited=*

Following are the Enterprises/Firms over which controlling individuals/Key Management Personnel, of the
Company along with their relatives, have significant influence

N~

Alchemie Speciality Private Limited
Alchemie Laboratories

Aarti Drugs Limited

Alchemie Dye Chem Private Limited

Following are the individuals who with their relatives own Directly/indirectly 20% or more voting power in the
Company or have significant influence or are Key Management Personnel

SPOXNoO~ LN~

Shri Rajendra V. Gogri Director

Shri Rashesh C. Gogri Director

Shri Parimal H. Desai Director

Shri Manoj M. Chheda Director

Shri Kirit R. Mehta Director

Smt. Hetal Gogri Gala Director

Shri Renil R. Gogri Director

Shri Narendra J. Salvi Director

Shri Chetan Gandhi Chief Financial Officer
Shri Raj Sarraf Company Secretary
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The following transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties in the ordinary course of business.

(A) Details relating to parties referred to in items | and Il above.

(B)

®inCrs)
. Other related
z:; Particulars Year Cor?\ugilidelsam Enterprises
: P Firms [ll]
. cYy 251.77 63.84
1 Sales of Finished Goods/Sales Income Py 155,56 78.30
cY 21.11 15.36
2 Purch f Raw Materials/Finish
urchases of Raw Materials/Finished Goods Py 24 60 2118
. cY 5.67 -
3 Other Manufacturing Expenses Py 547 0.74
) cY - -
4 Rent paid v, - 0.02
cY - -
le of Fixed A
5 Sale of Fixed Assets Py . 20,06
. cY - -
6 Purchase of Fixed Assets =, 0.08 3
. cYy 0.33 -
7 Interest Income on the Inter-Corporate Deposits placed/unsecured loans/NCDs Py 0.28 .
. cY 1.55 -
8 Dividend Income Py 186 3
cY 5.00 -
9 Inter- teD itgi Received back) during th
nter-corporate Deposit given/(Received back) during the year Py (20.00) -
10  Equity Contribution /increase in investment in cash or in kind made during the cY - -
year PY 0.20 -
11 Outstanding items pertaining to the related parties at the balance sheet date cY 97.23 53.33
Receivable/(Payable) PY 114.93 2968
Details relating to persons referred to in item Ill above*
inCrs)
Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
2020-21 2019-20
a. Remuneration including perquisites # 8.46 6.29
b.  Commission to Directors 18.95 19.10
c. Sitting Fees NIL 0.01
d. Rent paid 1.07 1.07
e. Travelling Expenses 0.02 0.53
f.  Telephone Expenses 0.02 0.05
TOTAL 28.52 27.05

* Excluding the payments made to Independent Directors & Relative of Directors as per IND AS Interpretation 110 issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India.

# Value of Perquisites includes non Cash Perquisites of ¥ 0.03 Crs (previous year ¥ 0.02 Crs).
*+ During the March 2021 quarter a subsidiary viz Ganesh Polychem Limited ceased to be a subsidiary and became a jointly controlled entity

w.e.f. March 17, 2021.
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32. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
Defined Benefit Plan

121

The employees’ gratuity fund scheme managed by Life Insurance of India is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obligation
is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognizes each period of service as
giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entittement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

R inCrs)
Graiy (e iy e
a.  Reconciliation of Opening and Closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation
Defined Benefit Obligation at beginning of the Year 42.49 18.66
Current Service Cost 6.16 2.58
Interest Cost 2.79 1.45
Actuarial(Gain)/Loss* (17.53) 20.82
Benefits Paid (0.74) (1.01)
Defined Benefit Obligation at year end 33.16 42.49
b.  Reconciliation of opening and closing balances fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of the year 21.26 17.44
Expected return of plan assets 1.39 1.36
Assets Transferred In/Acquisitions NIL NIL
Return on Plan Assets, Excluding Interest Income (0.62) 0.03
Employer Contribution 519 3.45
Benefits Paid (0.74) (1.01)
Fair value of plan assets at year end 26.48 21.26
Actual return on plan assets 0.77 1.39
c.  Reconciliation of Fair Value of Assets and Obligations
Fair Value of Plan Assets 26.48 21.26
Present Value of Benefit Obligation 33.16 42.49
Amount Recognized in Balance Sheet 6.68 21.23
d. Expenses recognized during the year
Current Service Cost 6.16 2.58
Interest Cost 2.79 1.45
Expected return on plan assets (1.39) (1.36)
Net Cost 7.55 2.67
e.  Investment Details 100% Invested 100% Invested
L.I.C Group Gratuity (Cash Accumulation) Policy with L.I.C. with L.I.C.
f.  Actuarial assumptions
Mortality Table (L.I.C.) 2006-08 2006-08
(Ultimate) (Ultimate)
Discount rate (per annum) 6.57% 6.56%
Expected rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 6.57% 6.56%
Rate of escalation in Salary (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%

Note:

The estimate of rate of escalation in salary considered in actuarial valuation, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion, other relevant factor's

including supply and demand in the employment market. The above information is certified by the actuary.

*Actuarial Gain due to experience represents movement in the liability due to rectification of error of the salary data in the current year.

Leave Encashment:

Leave Encashment liability amounting to ¥ 16.88 Crs (previous year ¥ 11.02 Crs) has been provided in the Books of Accounts.
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33.

()

(B)

DERIVATIVES & FORWARD CONTRACT INSTRUMENTS:

The Company uses Forward Exchange Contract to hedge against its Foreign Exchange exposures relating to underlying
transactions and firm commitments. The Company does not enter into any derivatives instruments for Trading or Speculative
purposes.

During the Year Company had hedged in aggregate an amount of ¥ 318.15 Crs (previous year ¥ 488.07 Crs) out of its annual
trade related operations (Exports & Imports) aggregating to ¥ 2,575.35 Crs (previous year ¥ 2,585.09 Crs).

The Company had hedged its currency risks to the tune of ¥ 179.63 Crs (previous year ¥ 240.90 Crs), in respect of its long
term Foreign Currency Loans/Borrowings. Relating to the same, the Company had also swapped its floating interest rate
borrowing of ¥ 365.50 Crs (previous year ¥ 323.59 Crs) into a fixed rate loan through an interest rate swap.

Net foreign exchange gain arriving out of export and import activities of the Company of ¥ 20.22 Crs (previous year gain
of ¥ 28.46 Crs) is included in Profit & Loss Account.

Company had entered into forward contracts to hedge its medium and long term exports contracts. Mark to Market gain
on such contracts to the tune of ¥ 8.41 Crs (including gain of ¥ 4.24 Crs for contracts of more than one year) is recognised
in the Profit & Loss Account. Company had further provided for Revaluation gain on long term borrowing (ECBs) to the
extent of ¥ 12.96 Crs as at 31st March, 2021 and have recognised the same in the Profit & Loss Account.

34. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF PART Il OF SCHEDULE Il TO THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013.
inCrs)
Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
2020-21 2019-20
(A) Details of Raw Material Consumption :
Benzene 288.12 328.44
Aniline 151.79 142.40
Concentrated Nitric Acid (C.N.A.) 113.83 100.19
Sulphur 43.22 38.91
Phthalic Anhydride 50.34 51.66
Others 996.76 844.26
TOTAL 1,644.06 1,505.86
(B) Sales of Products :
Speciality Chemicals 3,935.94 3,652.45
Pharmaceuticals 871.88 755.74
TOTAL 4,807.82 4,408.19
(C) Details of Trading Purchases:
Para Nitro Aniline 31.81 36.91
Ortho Anisidine 2411 21.94
Others 129.88 159.35
TOTAL 185.80 218.20
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®inCrs)
Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
2020-21 2019-20
(D) Value and percentage of Raw Materials and Stores and Spares consumed:
Raw Materials:
Indigenous 1,038.53 963.99
63.17% 64.02%
Imported 605.53 541.88
36.83% 35.98%
TOTAL 1,644.06 1,505.87
100.00% 100.00%
Stores and Spares:
Indigenous 101.73 83.01
99.14% 96.70%
Imported 0.88 2.83
0.86% 3.30%
TOTAL 102.61 85.84
100.00% 100.00%
Fuel:
Indigenous 93.12 74.25
68.67% 54.09%
Imported 42.49 63.03
31.33% 45.91%
TOTAL 135.61 137.28
100.00% 100.00%
(E) C.LF. Value of Imports:
Capital Goods 96.21 82.74
Raw Materials 600.21 541.88
Stores and Spares 0.88 2.83
Fuel 22.09 63.03
(F) Expenditure in Foreign Currency:
Commission on Export Sales 5.84 7.67
Import of Goods for Resale 3.24 0.00
Other Expenses 33.85 46.99
(G) Earnings in Foreign Currency:
F.O.B. Value of Export Sales 1,739.04 1,716.87
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35. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:

Financial instuments by category

R inCrs)
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Particulars (fnrqrg:::ﬁ Level 1 Level 2 (.;::"rg:jr:‘gt Level 1 Level 2
Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
Investments 34.51 = = 35.41 - -
Trade Receivables 819.08 - - 782.47 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 405.99 - - 233.37 - -
Other Financial Assets 181.46 = = 353.72 - -
At FVTOCI
Investments 1.75 = 1.75 1.75 - 1.75
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings 2,487.34 - - 1,789.00 - -
Trade Payables 584.64 = = 324.19 - -
Other Non Current Liabilities 224.41 = = 550.89 - -
Other Current Financial Liabilities 594.62 - - 334.33 - -

The financial instruments are categorized into two levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements as
described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; and

Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly.

36. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT:

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net Debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less cash & marketable
securities.

inCrs)

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Gross Debts 2,837.66 2,072.65
Less: Cash and Marketable Securities (405.99) (233.37)
Net Debt (A) 2,431.67 1,839.28
Total Equity (B) 3,411.74 2,901.82
Net Gearing ratio (A/B) 0.71 0.63
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Dividends
®inCrs)

As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Particulars

(i) Equity shares
Final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2020 of ¥ 1 per fully paid share & Interim Dividend 43.56 104.54
for 2020-21 @ ¥ 1.50 per Share paid during the year 2020-21

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period

In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended the payment 52.27 17.42
of dividend of ¥ 3 (31st March 2020 1) per fully paid equity share. This proposed dividend is
subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks.

I.  Credit Risk
The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing
activities (deposits with banks and other financial instruments).

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amounts due
causing financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises from company's activities in investments, dealing in derivatives
and outstanding receivables from customers.

The company has a prudent and conservative process for managing its credit risk arising in the course of its business
activities. Sales made to customers on credit are generally secured through Letters of Credit, Bank Guarantees, Parent
Company Guarantees, advance payments and factoring & forfaiting without recourse to AlL.

Credit Risk Management

To manage the credit risk, the Company follows an adequate credit control policy and also has an external credit insurance
cover with ECGC policy wherein the customers are required to make an advance payment before procurement of goods.
Thus, the requirement of assessing the impairment loss on trade receivables does not arise, since the collectability risk is
mitigated.

Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majority of other security deposits are placed majorly with
government/statutory agencies.

Il. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities such as trade
payables and other financial liabilities.

(a) Liquidity Risk Management
The Company's corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement. In
addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors
the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.
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As at 31st March 2021
Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities
(RinCrs)
Particulars Upto 1 year 1 an:?)‘xeeaerg Beyond 5 years Total
Trade payables 584.64 - - 584.64
Other financial liabilities 1,813.91 1,492.46 - 3,306.37
Total 2,398.55 1,492.46 - 3,891.01
As at 31st March 2020
Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities
inCrs)
. B
Particulars Upto 1 year 1and gt;giz Beyond 5 years Total
Trade payables 324.19 - - 324.19
Other financial liabilities 1,645.75 1,128.47 - 2,674.22
Total 1,869.94 1,128.47 - 2,998.41
Ill. Market Risk

Foreign Currency Risk
The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating
activities in exports and imports which is majorly in US dollars.

Hence, to combat the foreign currency exposure, the Company follows a policy wherein the net sales are hedged by forward
Contract.

Commodity Price Risk
The Company has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in
commodity prices and freight costs.

The Company's commodity risk is managed centrally through well-established trading operations and control processes.
In accordance with the risk management policy, the Company enters into various transactions using derivatives and uses
Over the Counter (OTC) as well as Exchange Traded Futures, Options and Swap contracts to hedge its commodity and
freight exposure.

38. The figures of previous year have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057

Rajendra V. Gogri
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00061003

Milind Bhave Chetan Gandhi
Partner Chief Financial Officer
M. No. 047973 ICAI'M. No. 111481

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Rashesh C. Gogri

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00066291

Raj Sarraf
Company Secretary
ICSI M. No. A15526
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of
Aarti Industries Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Financial
Statements of Aarti Industries Limited (hereinafter referred to as
the "Holding Company"), its subsidiaries and Jointly controlled
entity (Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred
to as “the Group"), which comprise the consolidated Balance
Sheet as at March 31, 2021, and the consolidated statement
of Profit and Loss, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the
year then ended, and notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies (hereinafter referred to as "the Consolidated Financial
Statements").

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements give the information required by the
Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2021, of consolidated profit/loss, consolidated
changes in equity and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended.
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Act. Qur
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements Section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements under the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. Due to COVID-19 lockdown throughout the
country, we have adopted alternative methodologies, solutions
in performing our audit procedures. We have determined
the matters described below to the Key Audit Matters to be
communicated in the Report:

Auditor's Response

#  Audit Matters Audit Approach and Principal Audit Procedures

1. Accuracy, Completeness and disclosure with Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating effectiveness of the
reference to IND AS-16 of Property, Plant and internal controls. We have reviewed audited financial statements of components.
Equipment (Including Capex) Summary of substantive tests applied are as follows:

Peculiarity and technical complexities of a)
Property, Plant and Equipment used in the
operations and multiple IT systems used for
maintaining Fixed Asset Register (FAR), tracking
and monitoring Capex requires more attention
to ensure reasonable accurateness and
completeness of financial reporting in respect c)
of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Further,  technical ~ complexities  require
management to assess and make estimates/ d)
judgments about capitalisation, estimated
useful life, impairment etc. which has material
impact on Balance Sheet and operating results

We assessed Group's process regarding maintenance of records, valuation and
accounting of transactions pertaining to Property, Plant and Equipment including
Capital Work in Progress with reference to Indian Accounting Standard 16.

b) We have carried out substantive audit procedures at financial and assertion level to
verify the capitalization of asset as Property, Plant and Equipment.

We have verified the maintenance of records and accounting of transactions regarding
capital work in progress by carrying out substantive audit procedures at financial and
assertion level.

We have reviewed management judgment pertaining to estimation of useful life and
depreciation of the Property, Plant and Equipment in accordance with Schedule Il of
Companies Act, 2013.

e) Due to pandemic restrictions physical verification on sample basis was not possible.
We have relied on physical verification conducted by management and management
representations.

Refer note 1 to financial statements

f)  We have verified the capitalization of borrowing cost incurred on qualifying asset in
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standard 23
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Auditor's Response

Audit Matters Audit Approach and Principal Audit Procedures

Valuation, Accuracy, Completeness and disclosures Our audit approach consisted testing of the design and operating effectiveness
pertaining to Inventories with reference to Ind AS 2 of the internal controls. We have reviewed audited financial statements of

. . . . mponents. Summary of nti li r foll :
Inventories constitutes material component of financial components. Summary of substantive tests applied are as follows

statement. Correctness, completeness, and valuation a)
are critical for reflecting true and fair financial results
of operations. Further due to continuous nature of plant
operations and the raw materials which are basically
chemicals, management has to exercise its judgment in
assessing stage of the product and its valuation.

We assessed the Group's process regarding Maintenance of records, Valuation
and accounting of transactions relating to Inventory as per the Indian Accounting
Standard 2.

b) We have evaluated the design of Internal Controls relating to recording and
valuation of Inventory.

c) We have carried out substantive audit procedures to verify the allocation of

Refer note 4 to financial statements
overheads to Inventory.

d) Due to pandemic restrictions physical verification on sample basis was not
possible. We have relied on physical verification conducted by management
and management representations.

e) Wehave verified consistency in respect of valuation process and methodology
followed

Valuation, Presentation and Disclosure pertaining to The Company has entered into long term contracts for exports of materials. Under
advances received for export commitments under long these contracts the Company has received advances to expedite establishment
term contracts of production facilities.

The contracts entered into covers a span of 10 to 20 Our audit approach consisted substantive testing as follows:
years. During the current financial year in respect of one
long term contract the Company received termination
intimation. On account of the termination the relevant b)
remedies available to the Company triggered. Further

in respect of other long term contracts, estimated
supplies will happen over the period of contract at a ©)
later stage after the reporting date. These specifically
require consideration in recognition of compensation
on account of termination of contract where termination d)
intimation has been received and in respect of other
contracts, the management is required to exercise its e)
judgment. Based on the judgment the carrying value of
the advance received, its fair presentation is critical

a) We have reviewed the terms of contracts entered into by the Company.

The classification, presentation of the said advances received under these
contracts was tested.

Recognition and accuracy of compensation on account of termination
intimation was verified with reference to the terms of contract under
termination intimation.

The fairness of value reflected in financial statement was verified and tested.

Disclosure note pertaining to said advances in financial statement was
reviewed.

Refer note 13 to financial statements

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the
preparation and presentation of these Consolidated Financial
Statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance and consolidated
cash flows of the Group including its Associates in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Accounting Standards specified under Section
133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its associates are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the
Group and of its associates are responsible for assessing the
ability of the Group and of its associates to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
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concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associates are responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting process of the Group and of its
associates and jointly controlled entities.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SA's will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Consolidated
Financial Statements.

Other Matters

We did not audit the financial statements / financial information
of 11 subsidiaries & 1 jointly controlled entity whose financial
statements / financial information reflect total assets of 231.62
crores as at March 31, 2021, total revenues of 466.61crores
and net cash flows amounting to  6.33 crores for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the Consolidated Financial
Statements. These financial statements / financial information
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements, in so far as it relates to
the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these
subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities and associates, and our
report in terms of Sub-Sections (3) and (11) of Section 143
of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries,
jointly controlled entities and associates, is based solely on the
reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our
report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, is
not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors
and the financial statements / financial information certified by
the Management.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent
applicable, that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid Consolidated Financial Statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid Consolidated
Financial Statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated
Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Consolidated Cash
Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement
with the relevant books of account maintained for the
purpose of preparation of the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Consolidated Financial
Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) Onthe basis of the written representations received from
the directors of the Holding Company as on March 37,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors
of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and
jointly controlled company incorporated in India, none
of the directors of the Group companies & its associate
companies in India is disqualified as on March 31, 2021
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164
(2) of the Act.

(f)  Withrespect to the adequacy of internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Group and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report
in Annexure A.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in
the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor's) Rules, 2014, in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according
to the explanations given to us:

The Consolidated Financial Statements disclose the
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
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financial position of the Group & its associates— Refer
Note 25 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Provision has been made in the Consolidated
Financial Statements, as required under the
applicable law or accounting standards, for material
foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts
including derivative

There has been no delay in transferring amounts,
required to be transferred, to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and

its subsidiary companies, associate companies and
jointly controlled companies incorporated in India.

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner
M. No. 047973

UDIN: 21047973AAAABG4324
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Annexure A to the Auditor's Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting Under Clause Financial Clause (i)
of Subsection 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“The Act")

(Referred to in paragraph 9(f) under '‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements' of our report of even date)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the Holding Company as of and for the year
ended March 31, 2021, we have audited the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of Aarti Industries Limited
(hereinafter referred to as "the Holding Company"), its
subsidiaries & jointly controlled entity (together referred to as
“the Group"), its associates incorporated in India, as of that
date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company,
its subsidiaries, associates, and jointly controlled entity all
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by these
entities, considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls that were operating effectively for
ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to Holding Company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Companies Act,
2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding
Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance
with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether adequate internal financial controls over
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financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit
involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and
the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the
Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Group's, its
associates' and jointly controlled entities’, incorporated in India,
internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is
a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately
and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of consolidated financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors
of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Group's assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion
or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be
detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
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are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over  Other Matters

financial reporting may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with
the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us and based on the consideration
of reports of other auditors, as referred to in the Other Matters
paragraph, the Holding Company, its subsidiaries and Jointly
controlled entity, which are incorporated in India, have, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively
as at March 31, 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the these entities,
considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

Our aforesaid reports under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, on
the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it relates
to consolidated/ standalone financial statements of eleven
subsidiaries and one jointly controlled entity, of which ten are
incorporated in India and two are incorporated outside India,
is based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of such
companies.

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner
Place: Mumbai M. No. 047973

Date: May 18, 2021 UDIN: 21047973AAAABG4324
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Balance Sheet
as at 31st March, 2021

133

®inCrs)

. As at As at

Particulars NoteNo.  315tMarch, 2021  31stMarch, 2020
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets:
Property, Plant and Equipment 1 3,592.48 2,467.57
Capital Work-in-Progress 1 1,297.91 1,417.64
Goodwill 1 NIL 0.42
Other Intangible Assets 1 0.10 0.50
Financial Assets:

Investments 2 63.52 37.01
Other Non-Current Assets 3 320.07 404.49
Total Non-Current Assets 5,274.08 4,327.63
Current Assets:

Inventories 4 935.68 835.68
Financial Assets:

Trade Receivables 5 793.73 753.44

Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 412.32 247.29

Others Current Financial Assets 7 187.48 135.66
Other Current Assets 8 38.39 32.80
Total Current Assets 2,367.60 2,004.87
TOTAL ASSETS 7,641.68 6,332.50
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 9 87.12 87.12
Other Equity 10 3,415.78 2,891.65
Non Controlling Interest 12.24 94.62
Total Equity 3,515.14 3,073.39
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities:

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 11 1,268.05 580.84
Other Non-Current Liabilities 12 224.41 550.89
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 13 233.94 211.01
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,726.40 1,342.74
Current Liabilities:

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 14 1,224.07 1,229.67

Trade Payables due to:

Micro and Small Enterprise NIL NIL

Other than Micro and Small Enterprise 576.33 345.16
Other Current Liabilities 15 559.62 301.63
Provisions 16 40.12 39.91
Total Current Liabilities 2,400.14 1,916.37
Total Liabilities 4,126.54 3,259.11
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIBILITIES 7,641.68 6,332.50
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-32

As per our report of even date

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner

M. No. 047973
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board

Rajendra V. Gogri
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00061003

Chetan Gandhi
Chief Financial Officer
ICAI' M. No. 111481

Rashesh C. Gogri

Vice Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00066291

Raj Sarraf
Company Secretary
ICSI M. No. A15526
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Statement of Profit and Loss
for the year ended 31st March, 2021
R inCrs)
Particulars Note No. For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
REVENUE
Gross Revenue from Operations 17 5,023.28 4,620.69
Less: GST Collected 517.18 434.38
Net Revenue from Operations 4,506.10 4,186.31
Other Income 18 0.70 8.84
Total Revenue 4,506.80 4,195.15
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed (Incl. Packing Material, Fuel, Stores & Spares) 19 1,937.57 1,780.92
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 244.24 274.65
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 20 (53.25) 0.75
Employee Benefits Expenses 21 371.38 3056.22
Finance Costs 22 86.37 124.78
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses 231.31 185.21
Other Expenses 23 1,024.63 847.44
Total Expenses 3,842.25 3,5618.97
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 664.55 676.18
TAX EXPENSES
Current Year Tax 116.03 118.13
Earlier Year Tax 0.00 0.38
MAT Credit Entitlement (9.80) (7.09)
Deferred Tax 23.10 18.00
Total Tax Expenses 129.33 129.42
PROFIT AFTER TAX BEFORE NON CONTROLLING INTEREST AND SHARE OF 535.22 546.76
PROFIT/(LOSS) OF ASSOCIATES
Profit attributable to Non Controlling Interest (11.75) (10.68)
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associates NIL NIL
Profit/(Loss) for the period 523.47 536.08
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss
Fair Value of various Qualifing Items 47.94 (57.39)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 571.41 478.69
Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS) (in ) 24
Basic/Diluted 30.04 30.77
Significant Accounting Policies
See accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements 1-32

As per our report of even date

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajendra V. Gogri
Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00061003

Rashesh C. Gogri
Vice Chairman and Managing Director
DIN: 00066291

Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave Chetan Gandhi Raj Sarraf
Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
M. No. 047973 ICAI'M. No. 111481 ICSI M. No. A15526

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021
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Corporate Performance The World of ESG Statutory Financial
@ AARTI Overview Review Opportunities Reports Statements
INDUSTRIES
Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31st March, 2021
RinCrs)
For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended

Sr. No. Particulars

31st March, 2021

31st March, 2020

A.  Cash Flow from Operating Activities:

Net Profit before Tax and Exceptional/Extraordinary ltems 664.55 676.18
Adjustments for:
Finance Costs 86.37 124.78
Depreciation 231.31 185.21
Consolidated Adjustments (5.26) (1.85)
976.97 984.32
Profit on Sale of Investments/Assets (0.34) (8.49)
Dividend Received from other Investments (0.02) (0.07)
Lease Rent Received (0.05) (0.08)
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 976.56 975.68
Adjustments for:
(Increase)/Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables (25.01) (4.69)
Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables and Other Current Liabilities 128.78 358.81
(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (111.00) (63.90)
Cash Generated from Operations 969.33 1,265.90
Direct Taxes Paid (96.62) (163.84)
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities (A) 872.71 1,102.06
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
Addition to Property, Plant & Equipment/Capital WIP (1,314.82) (1,153.29)
Sale/Written off of Property, Plant & Equipment 0.43 27.79
(Increase)/Decrease in Other Investments (7.82) (2.59)
Dividend Received from Other Investments 0.02 0.07
Profit on Sale of Investments NIL 3.88
Lease Rent Received 0.05 0.08
Net Cash Flow from Investing Activities (B) (1,322.14) (1,124.06)
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities:
Proceeds of Long-Term Borrowings 1,007.99 7410
Repayment of Long-Term Borrowings (256.48) (316.09)
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Other Borrowings (5.59) (61.16)
Increase in Equity through QIP Allotment (Net of Expenses) NIL (0.60)
Finance Costs (86.37) (124.78)
Dividend Paid (45.09) (106.38)
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities (C) 614.46 (534.91)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 165.03 (556.91)
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Opening Balance) 247.29 804.20
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Closing Balance) 412.32 247.29

Notes: 0]

Cash and Cash Equivalent is Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet.

(i) Amounts of the previous year have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN: 105215W/W100057

Milind Bhave
Partner

M. No. 047973
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board

Rajendra V. Gogri Rashesh C. Gogri

Chairman and Managing Director

DIN: 00061003

Chetan Gandhi
Chief Financial Officer
ICAI' M. No. 111481

DIN: 00066291

Raj Sarraf
Company Secretary
ICSI M. No. A15526

Vice Chairman and Managing Director
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Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise financial
statements of Aarti Industries Limited ("The Holding Company”)
subsidaries and joint control entity (collectively referred to as
"the Group") for the year ended 31st March 2021.

The principal activities of the Group consists of manufacturing
and dealing in Speciality Chemicals and Pharmaceuticals.

Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Background:

Proportion
of Ownership
Interest (%)

Country of

Name of the Subsidiary Incorporation

Indian Subsidiary:

()  Aarti Corporate Services India 100.00%
Limited

(i) Nascent Chemical Industries  India 50.49%

Limited (Through its holding
Company: Aarti Corporate
Services Limited)
(iiiy Shanti Intermediates Private  India 100.00%
Limited (Through its holding
Company: Aarti Corporate
Services Limited)

(iv) Innovative Envirocare Jhagadia India 100.00%
Limited
(v)  Aarti Polychem Private Limited India 100.00%
(vi) Aarti Organics Limited India 100.00%
(vii) Aarti Bharuch Limited India 100.00%
(viii) Aarti Pharmachem Limited India 100.00%
(ix) Aarti Spechem Limited India 100.00%
(x) Alchemie (Europe) Limited United 88.89%
Kingdom

(xi) AartiUSAInc. USA 100.00%
Joint Control:

(xii) Ganesh Polychem Limited* India 50.00%

* During the March 2021 quarter a subsidiary viz Ganesh Polychem
Limited ceased to be a subsidiary and became a jointly controlled
entity w.e.f. March 17, 2021

(b) Basis of Prepration and Presentation:

Significant Accounting policies and Notes to these
Consolidated Financial Statements are intended to serve
as a means of informative disclosures and a guide to
better understanding of the consolidated position of the
Companies. Recognizing this purpose, the Company has
disclosed only such Policies and Notes from the individual
financial statements, which fairly present the needed
disclosures.
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The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (IND AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and amended by the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendment)
Rules, 2016.

Principles of Consolidation:

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements have been
prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 110 - Consolidated Financial
Statements & Indian Accounting Standard (Ind
AS) 28 -Accounting for Investments in Associates
in Consolidated Financial Statements and
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 111 - Joint
Arrangements.

(i) The Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared
using the Financial Statements of the Parent
Company, Subsidiary Companies and Joint Control
Entity drawn up to the same reporting date i.e 31st
March, 2021.

(iii) In case of Foreign Subsidiary, revenue items are
consolidated at the average rate prevailing during
the period. All Assets (except Fixed Assets) and
liabilities are converted at the rates, prevailing at
the end of the year. In case of Fixed Assets, the
same is consolidated at the rate applicable in the
year of acquisition of the said assets. Any exchange
difference arising on consolidation is recognised as
Translation difference in Reserves & Surplus.

(iv) The consolidation of financial statements of the
Parent Company and its Subsidiaries is done on
line by adding together the book values of the like
items of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
after eliminating all significant intra-group balances,
intra-group transactions and unrealized profit or
loss, except where cost cannot be recovered. The
results of operations of a subsidiary are included in
the consolidated financial statements from the date
on which the parent subsidiary relationship came
into existence.

(V) Non Controlling Interest in net profits of consolidated
subsidiaries for the year is identified and adjusted
against the income in order to arrive at the net
income attributable to the shareholders of the
Company. Their share of net assets is identified
and presented in the Consolidated Balance sheet
separately.
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The World of ESG Statutory Financial
Opportunities Reports Statements

Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

(vi) As far as possible, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared using uniform
Accounting Policies for like transactions and
other events in similar circumstances. Differences
in Accounting Policies if any will be disclosed
separately.

(vii) Investments in Associates are accounted for using
equity method in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standard (Ind AS) 28 “Accounting for Investment in
Associates in Consolidated Financial Statements”
under which the investment is initially recorded
at cost, identifying any goodwill or capital reserve
arising at the time of acquisition. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted thereafter
for the post acquisition change in the share of net
assets of the associate. However, the share of losses
is accounted for only to the extent of the cost of
investment. Subsequent profits of such Associates
are not accounted for unless the accumulated losses
are recouped.

(d) Revenue Recognition:

@

(i) Sale of goods is recognized on dispatch of goods
to customers and is recorded net of claims, etc., as
considered appropriate. Revenue from Conversion,
Sale of Scrap and obsolete stores is accounted for
at the time of disposal.

(i)  Export entitlements are recognized on realization.

(i) Revenue in respect of Interest, Insurance claims are
recognized on the time proportion method.

(iv) Subsidy from Department of Fertilizers is recognised,
based on the eligible quantities supplied by the
Company, at the rates as notified/announced by the
Government of India.

Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible Assets and

Depreciation/Amortization:

(1) Property, Plant and Equipment (PPE)
Property, Plant & Equipment are stated at cost of
acquisition (net of recoverable taxes) inclusive of all
expenditure of capital nature such as inward freight,
duties & taxes, installation and commissioning
expenses, appropriate borrowing costs and
incidental expenses related to acquisition.

2

©)

@)

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets are recognised when it is probable
that the future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of
the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets
are stated at original cost net of tax/duty credits
avalied, if any, less accumulated amortisation and
cumulative impairment. Administrative and other
general overhead expenses that are specifically
attributable to acquisition of intangible assets are
allocated and capitalised as a part of the cost of the
intangible assets.

Depreciation/Amortization

(A) Pursuant to the notification of Schedule Il of
the Companies Act, 2013, the management
has reassessed and changed based on an
independent technical estimates, wherever
necessary, the useful lives to compute
depreciation, to confirm to the requirements
of the Companies Act, 2013. The useful life for
various class of assets is as follows:

Particulars Depreciation/

Particulars Amortisation

(i) Leasehold Land Over the remaining
tenure of lease

(i) Building Over a period of 19 years

(iii) Residential Quarters Over a period of 30 years

(iv) Plant & Equipments  Over its useful life as
technically assessed, i.e
over a period of 9- 19
years, based on the
type of processes and
equipments installed.

(v) Computers Over a period of 2.5 years
(vi) Office Equipment Over a period of 5 years
(vii) Furniture and Fixtures Over a period of 10 years
(viii) Vehicles Over a period of 7 years

(B) Product/Process Development Expenses are
amortized over the estimated useful life of the
product.

Impairment loss, if any, is provided to the extent, the
carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable
amount. Recoverable amount is higher of net selling
price of an assets or its value in use. Value in use
is present value of estimated future cash flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset
and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
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Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

)

(@)

(h)

(i)

0)

(k)

168

Research and Development:

Revenue Expenditure on Research and Development is
charged to the Profit and Loss Account for the year. Capital
Expenditure on Research and Development is included as
part of Property, Plant & Equipment and depreciation is
provided on the same basis as for other Property, Plant &
Equipment.

Investments:
(i) Investments in subsidiaries and associates are
measured at cost.

(ii) Otherinvestments are measured at fair value through
Other Comprehensive Income.

Valuation of Inventories:
Inventories are valued at Cost or Net Realizable Value
whichever is lower.

Inventories have been valued on the following basis:

(i) Raw Materials, Packing Material, Stores and Spares
- At cost on Weighted Average basis.

Work-in-Process - At cost plus appropriate allocation
of overheads.

Finished Goods - At cost plus appropriate allocation
of overheads or net realizable value, whichever is
lower.

Retirement Benefits:
Employee benefits are charged off in the year in which the
employee has rendered services.

Foreign Currency Transactions:

Foreign currency transactions are accounted at the rates
prevailing on the date of the transaction. The exchange
rate differences arising out of such transactions
are approriately dealt in the financial statements in
accordance with the appicables accounting standards.

Lease:

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116. It has resulted
into recognition of Lease Assets Right to Use with a
corresponding Lease Liability in the Balance Sheet.

The Company, as a lessee, recognises a right to use
asset and a lease liability for its leasing arrangements,
if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset.

Annual Report 2020-21

U]

(m)

The contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, if it involves the use of an identified asset
and the Company has substantially all of the economic
benefits from use of the asset and has right to direct the
use of the identified asset. The cost of the right to use asset
shall comprise of the amount of the initial measurement
of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date plus any initial direct
costs incurred. The right to use assets is subsequently
measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation,
accumulated impairment losses, if any and adjusted for
any remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use
assets is depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date over the shorter of lease term
or useful life of right-of-use asset.

The Company measures the lease liability at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease. The lease payments
are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease,
if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Company uses incremental
borrowing rate.

Deferred Revenue Expenditure:
Deferred Revenue Expenditure is amortized over the
period of the agreement on pro rata basis.

Income Taxes:

Tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax.
Current income tax is measured at the amount expected
to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with the
Indian Income Tax Act.

Deferred Tax reflects the impact of timing differences
between Taxable Income and Accounting Income for the
year and reversal of timing differences of earlier years.
Deferred Tax is measured on the basis of Tax Rates and
Tax Laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance
Sheet. Deferred Tax Assets are recognized only if there
is reasonable certainty of their realization except in case
of Deferred Tax Assets on unabsorbed depreciation and
carried forward business losses, which are recognized
only if there is virtual certainty of their realization.

Minimum Alternative tax (MAT) credit is recognized as
an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax
during the specified period i.e., the period for which MAT
Credit is allowed to be carried forward. The Company
reviews the same at each balance sheet date.
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Corporate Information and Significant Accounting Policies:

(n)

(©)

Borrowing Costs:

Borrowing cost directly related to the acquisition or
construction of an asset is capitalized as part of the cost
of that asset. Other borrowing costs are charged to the
Profit and Loss Account.

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities:

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal
and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for
which it is probable that a Cash Outflow will be required
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

(p)

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed when the Company
has a possible obligation or a present obligation and it is
probable that a Cash Outflow will not be required to settle
the obligation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,
other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertilbe to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash
and Cash Equivalents consist of balances with banks
which are unresticted for withdrawals and usages.
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Consolidated

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

2. NON-CURRENT INVESTMENTS:

(RinCrs)
Particulars No._of As at No._of As at
Shares/Units 31st March, 2021 Shares/Units 31st March, 2020
Investments - (Unquoted) in Equity Shares of Other
Companies
Ichalkaranji Janata Sahakari Bank Limited 1,020 0.01 1,020 0.01
Ganesh Polychem Limited=* 30,98,257 12.61 NIL NIL
Damanganga Saha Khand Udyog Mandali Limited 61 0.01 61 0.01
Narmada Clean Tech Limited 2,87,550 0.13 2,87,550 0.13
Dilesh Roadlines Private Limited 4,64,550 328 4,64,550 2.56
U.K.I.P. Co-Op. Soc. Limited 80 0.00 80 0.00
Aarti Ventures Limited 9,17,000 7.40 1,90,000 2.562
Tarapur Environment Protection Society 32,489 0.62 32,489 0.62
Derma Touch Inc. 1,25,000 8.82 1,25,000 8.98
Invatech 1,00,000 1.10 1,00,000 1.14
SBPP Bank Limited 783 0.01 783 0.01
Deltecs Infotech Private Limited 853 0.07 853 0.07
Bewakoof Brands Private Limited 4,033 4.51 4,033 515
Valiant Organic Limited 35,963 12.84 35,963 4.23
Polygomma Industries Private Limited 5,33,358 2.82 5,33,358 0.00
Numbermask Digital Private Limited 1,125 0.00 1,125 0.00
Trans Retail Ventures Private Limited 28,796 0.00 28,796 0.00
Aarti Biotech Limited 4,21,700 0.12 4,21,700 0.12
Aarti Intermediates Private Limited 22,125 0.00 22,125 0.00
Perfect Enviro Control Systems Limited 3,80,640 0.22 3,80,640 0.22
Shamrao Vithal Co-op. Bank Limited 100 0.00 100 0.00
54.55 25.77
Investments - (Unquoted) Convtertible Pref. Shares
Deltecs Infotech Private Limited 7,50,000 0.26 7,50,000 0.26
Valiant Oraganics Limited 5014 0.03 11,814 0.04
0.29 0.30
Investments - (Unquoted) in Warrant Certificate
Deltecs Infotech Private Limited 93 0.00 93 0.00
0.00 0.00
Investments - (Unquoted) in Limited Liability Partnership
Aarti Udyog Limited Liability Partnership NA 3.67 NA 3.67
3.67 3.67
Investments - (Unquoted) in Unsecured Convertible
Debentures
Bewakoof Brands Private Limited 869 5.00
Aarti Ventures Limited NIL NIL 7,27,000 7.27
5.00 7.27
TOTAL 63.52 37.01

*During the March 2021 quarter a subsidiary viz Ganesh Polychem Limited ceased to be a subsidiary and became a jointly controlled entity w.e.f.
March 17,2021.
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3. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Capital Advances 92.10 171.91
Other Deposits 47.10 42.10
Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source (Net of Provisions) 180.87 190.48
TOTAL 320.07 404.49
4. INVENTORIES:
inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Raw Materials and Components 278.80 251.84
Work-in-progress 240.40 208.44
Finished Goods 277.53 285.55
Stock-in-trade 28.21 0.85
Stores and spares 91.02 70.77
Fuel 13.90 14.53
Packing Materials 5.81 3.70
TOTAL 935.68 835.68
5. TRADE RECEIVABLES:
®inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Unsecured and considered good 793.73 753.44
TOTAL 793.73 753.44
6. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Cash on hand 1.46 0.60
Bank balance in Current Accounts 23.25 66.47
Bank balance in Deposit Accounts 332.52 177.89
Earmarked Balances (Unpaid Dividend Accounts) 2.05 2.33
Cash Equivalants investment in highly Liquid Funds/Bonds 53.04 NIL
TOTAL 412.32 247.29
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®inCrs)

Particulars As at Asat
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Balances with Customs, Port Trust, Central Excise, Sales Tax and Goods & Services Tax Authorities 171.45 118.53
Loans Given to:
i) Employees 8.57 8.06
i)y Others 7.46 9.07
TOTAL 187.48 135.66
8. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS:

inCrs)
Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Others Receivables 10.42 8.98
Prepaid Expenses 22.22 13.50
Subsidy Receivable 5,78 10.32
TOTAL 38.39 32.80
9. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:

(inCrs)
Particulars No. of Shares 31st March, ggzaf No. of Shares 31st March, nga;
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each 23,01,560,320 115.08 23,01,50,320 115.08
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of ¥ 5/- each fully paid up 17,42,34,474 87.12 17,42,34,474 87.12
TOTAL 87.12 87.12

9.1 Reconciliation of the number of Shares outstanding as on 31st March, 2021:

No. of Shares outstanding

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 17,42,34,474 8,66,68,647
Add: Shares issued during the year NIL 8,75,65,827
Less: Shares buy-back during the year NIL NIL
Equity Shares at the end of the year 17,42,34,474 17,42,34,474
9.2 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:
Name of the Shareholders As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

No. of Shares % held No. of Shares % held
HDFC Trustee Company Ltd. 77,09,004 4.42 1,38,28,976 7.94
9.3 The details of Equity Shares outstanding during last 5 years:
Particulars 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17
No. of Equity Shares outstanding 17,42,34,474 17,42,34,474 8,66,68,647 8,13,00,000 8,21,20,383
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9.4 Note on Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Equity Share Capital:
(@ During the year 2019-20, 8,71,17,237 shares are issued as Bonus Shares in the ratio of 1:1 equity share of ¥ 5 each.

(b) During the year 2019-20, 4,48,590 Shares were alloted to the shareholders of Nascent Chemical Industries Limited
pursuant to the terms of the Scheme of Arrangement approved by the Honorable National Company Law Tribunal

(NCLT), Ahmedabad Bench.

(c) During the year 2018-19, 53,68,647 Shares were issued through Qualified Institutions Placement at the issue price
of % 1,397 per Equity Share (including ¥ 1,392 towards share premium) to qualified institutional buyers.

(d) During the year 2017-18, 8,20,383 Shares were brought back at a premium of ¥ 1,195/-.

(e) During the year 2016-17, 12,00,000 Shares were brought back at a premium of ¥ 795/-.

10. OTHER EQUITY:

inCrs)
Particulars Asat As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
a. Capital Reserves
Opening Balance 13.89 13.89
Addition: NIL NIL
Deduction: 0.56 NIL
Closing Balance 13.33 13.89
b. Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 0.72 2.28
Addition: NIL NIL
Deduction:
Issue of Bonus Shares NIL 1.56
Closing Balance 0.72 0.72
c. Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 697.49 740.09
Addition: 0.21 NIL
Deduction:
QIP Expenses NIL 0.60
Issue of Bonus Shares NIL 42.00
Closing Balance 697.70 697.49
d. Debenture Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance 80.00 120.00
Addition: NIL NIL
Deduction:
Transferred to General Reserve 80.00 40.00
Closing Balance NIL 80.00
e. RBIReserve U/s 45 (IC)
Opening Balance 3.70 3.70
Addition NIL NIL
Deduction NIL NIL
Closing Balance 3.70 3.70
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®inCrs)
Particulars As at Asat
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
f. General Reserve
Opening Balance 213.65 119.00
Addition:
Transferred from Debenture Redumption Reserve 80.00 40.00
Transferred from Profit & Loss Account 52.66 54.65
Deduction: NIL NIL
Closing Balance 346.31 213.65
g. Profit and Loss Account
Opening balance 1,931.18 1,679.85
Addition:
Net Profit/(Loss) for the year 523.47 536.08
Deduction:
Final Dividend Paid on Equity Shares for the previous year 20.51 64.68
Interim Dividend paid on Equity Share for the year 26.14 43.56
Tax on Dividend NIL 21.87
Foreign Exchange Differnce on Translation 1.85 1.85
Intergroup Dividend (1.55) (1.86)
Transferred to Reserves 52.66 54.65
Closing Balance 2,355.07 1,931.18
h. Other Reserves
Revaluation Reserve 0.51 0.51
Forfeiture Reserve 1.85 1.85
Closing Balance 2.36 2.36
i. Other Comprehensive Income
Opening Balance (51.34) 6.05
OCl for the year 47.94 (57.39)
Closing Balance (3.41) (51.34)
TOTAL 3,415.78 2,891.65
11. NON-CURRENT BORROWINGS:
inCrs)

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Name of the Shareholders

Non-Current Current Non-Current Current
Secured
(a) Non Convertible Debentures (NCDs) NIL NIL 0.45 80.00
(b) ECB/Term loans from Banks/Financial Institutions 1,265.09 350.39 578.31 206.32
(c) Vehicle Loans from Banks/Financial Institutions 2.96 1.33 2.08 1.1
TOTAL 1,268.05 351.72 580.84 287.43
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12. OTHER NON CURRENT LIABILITIES
inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Long Term Advances for Exports received from Customer 211.29 529.69
Lease Liabilities Account 13.12 21.20
TOTAL 224.41 550.89
13. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET):
inCrs)
Particulars Asat As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Deferred Tax Liabilities 211.01 193.01
Difference between net book value of depreciable capital assets as per books vis - a- vis written 28.06 21.30
down value as per Tax Laws
Deferred Tax Assets
Items allowed for tax purpose on payment (5.13) (3.31)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 233.94 211.01
14. SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS:
inCrs)
Particulars Asat As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Secured
Working Capital Loan From Banks 1,146.51 1,205.07
Total 1,146.51 1,205.07
Unsecured
From Banks 76.09 23.20
From Other 1.47 1.40
Total 77.56 24.60
TOTAL 1,224.07 1,229.67
15. OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:
inCrs)
Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Current maturities of Long-Term Debt 350.39 286.32
Current maturities of Vehicle Loan 1.33 1.1
Current Portion of Long Term Advance for Export 190.01 -
Lease Liabilities Account 4.61 -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.27 7.57
Unpaid Dividends 2.05 2.33
Other Current Liabilities & Taxes 10.96 4.31
TOTAL 559.62 301.63
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16. SHORT-TERM PROVISIONS:

®inCrs)

Particulars

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31st March, 2020

Provision for

Employees' Benefits 38.72 38.78
Others 1.40 1.13
TOTAL 40.12 39.91
17. REVENUE FROM OPERATIONS:
inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Sale of Products 4,822.40 4,539.63
Other Operating Revenues 200.88 81.06
GROSS REVENUE OPERATIONS 5,023.28 4,620.69
Less: GST Collected 517.18 434.38
NET REVENUE OPERATIONS 4,506.10 4,186.31
17.1.GROSS SALES & OPERATING REVENUES:
®inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Fertilizers Subsidy Received 20.24 12.29
Export Benefits/Incentives 21.86 58.73
Scrap Sales 11.53 9.65
Contract Shortfall Fees 147.24 NIL
Vat Refund Received NIL 0.38
TOTAL 200.88 81.06
18. OTHER INCOME:
®inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Dividend Received 0.02 0.07
Profit on Sale of Assets/Investment 0.34 8.49
Other Income 0.34 0.27
TOTAL 0.70 8.84
19. COST OF MATERIALS CONSUMED:
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Consumption of Raw Materials 1,610.48 1,481.64
Consumption of Packing Materials 4253 38.01
Consumption of Fuel 172.87 170.58
Consumption of Stores & Spares 111.68 90.69
TOTAL 1,937.57 1,780.92
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20. CHANGE IN INVENTORY:
inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 286.40 281.53
Work-in-Progress 208.44 214.07
Total (A) 494.84 495.60
Closing Stock
Finished Goods 302.77 286.40
Work-in-Progress 245.33 208.44
Total (B) 548.10 494.84
TOTAL (A-B) (53.25) 0.76
21. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:
inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 313.05 266.83
Contribution to PF and other Funds 26.99 19.73
Workmen & Staff Welfare Expenses 31.33 18.66
TOTAL 371.38 305.22
22. FINANCE COST:
inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Interest on NCD's 2.55 10.36
Other Interest Expenses 74.16 104.99
Other Borrowing Costs 9.66 9.43
TOTAL 86.37 124.78
23. OTHER EXPENSES:
inCrs)
For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended

31st March, 2020

Manufacturing Expenses:

Freight, Cartage & Transport 118.54 118.40
Power 131.37 114.09
Water Charges 13.99 12.64
Processing Charges 59.47 4528
Other Manufacturing Expenses 160.40 129.94
Repairs & Maintenance 114.51 111.78
Insurance Charges 10.95 6.13
Research & Development Expenses 55.10 27.01
Factory Administrative Expenses 70.06 47.64
Total (A) 734.39 612.91
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®inCrs)

Particulars

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021

For the Year Ended
31st March, 2020

Office Administrative Expenses:

Rent, Rates and Taxes 1.30 2.61
Travelling and Conveyance 347 7.51
Auditor's Remuneration 0.47 0.48
Legal & Professional Charges 18.51 12.85
Postage, Telegraph & Telephone/Printing & Stationery Expenses 1.18 1.65
Other Administrative Expenses 14.28 11.93
Total (B) 39.22 37.04
Selling & Distribution Expenses:
Advertisement & Sales Promotion 3.75 6.05
Export Freight Expenses 85.57 62.63
Freight and Forwarding Expenses 116.21 91.27
Commission 16.83 10.18
Export Insurance Charges 1.95 1.92
Sample Testing & Analysis Charges 1.44 1.16
Lease Rent Paid 10.97 10.97
Other Expenses 017 0.09
Sales Tax & Other Dues Paid 0.06 013
Sundry Balance Written Off/(Back) 0.87 1.95
Total (C) 236.52 186.35
Non-Operating Expenses:
Donations and CSR Expenses 14.50 11.14
Total (D) 14.50 11.14
TOTAL (A+B+C+D) 1,024.63 847.44
23.1 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION:
®inCrs)
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Audit Fees 0.38 0.37
Certification Charges 0.03 0.05
Out of Pocket Expenses - 0.01
TOTAL 0.41 0.43
24. EARNING PER SHARE (EPS):
Particulars For the Year Ended  For the Year Ended
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Net Profit after Tax (% in Crs) 535.22 546.76
Profit attributable to Minority Interest (in Crs) (11.75) (10.68)
Share of Profit/(Loss) of Associates inCrs) NIL NIL
Net Profit After Consolidation avaliable for Equity Shareholders % in Crs) 523.47 536.08
No. of Equity Shares (Nos.) 17,42,34,474 17,42,34,474
Basic & Diluted EPS ® 30.04 30.77
Nominal Value of Equity Share ® 5.00 5.00
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24.1 Basic earnings per share has been computed by dividing the profit/loss for the year by the weighted average number of

shares outstanding during the year.
Partly paid shares are inculed as fully paid equivalents according to the fraction paid up.

Diluted earnings per share has been computed using weighted average number of shares dilutive potential shares, except
where the results would be anti-dilutive.

25. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS:
(to the extent not provided for)

inCrs)

Particulars

As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

(i) Contingent Liabilities:

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as Debts 68.10 67.65
(b) Letters of Credit, Bank Guarantees & Bills Discounted 250.90 296.80
319.00 364.45

(ii) Commitments:
(a) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not 120.02 327.94

provided for, net of advances

120.02 327.94
TOTAL 439.02 692.39

26. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE UNDER ACCOUNTING STANDARD (Ind AS: 24):

Following is the Joint Control Entity of the Company

1. Ganesh Polychem Limitedx*

Following are the Enterprises/Firms over which controlling individuals/Key Management Personnel, of the Company
along with their relatives, have significant influence

Alchemie Speciality Private Limited
Alchemie Laboratories

Aarti Drugs Limited

Alchemie Dye Chem Private Limited

Hwn =

Following are the individuals who with their relatives own Directly/indirectly 20% or more voting power in the
Company or have significant influence or are Key Management Personnel.

1. ShriRajendra V. Gogri Director

2. ShriRashesh C. Gogri Director

3. Shri Parimal H. Desai Director

4. ShriManoj M. Chheda Director

5. ShriKirit R. Mehta Director

6. Smt. Hetal Gogri Gala Director

7. ShriRenil R. Gogri Director

8.  ShriNarendra J. Salvi Director

9.  Shri Chetan Gandhi Chief Financial Officer
10. Shri Raj Sarraf Company Secretary
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The following transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties in the ordinary course of business.

(A) Details relating to parties referred to in items | above.

®inCrs)
Sr. . Other related
No. Particulars Year Enterprises Firms
- cY 63.84
1 Sales of Finished Goods/Sales Income Py 78.30
CY 15.36

2 Purch f Raw M ials/Finish
urchases of Raw Materials/Finished Goods Py 2118
3 Other Manufacturing Expenses ey -
gEp PY 0.74
: cYy -
4 Rent paid Py 0.02
CY -

le of Fixed A
5 Sale of Fixed Assets Py 20.06
6 Outstanding items pertaining to the related parties at the balance - cY 53.33
- sheet date Receivable/(Payable) PY 29.68
(B) Details relating to persons referred to in item Ill abovex

inCrs)
Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
2020-21 2019-20
a. Remuneration including perquisites # 8.46 6.29
b. Commission to Directors 18.95 19.10
c. Sitting Fees NIL 0.01
d. Rent paid 1.07 1.07
e. Travelling Expenses 0.02 0.53
f. Telephone Expenses 0.02 0.05
TOTAL 28.52 27.05

* Excluding the payments made to Independent Directors & Relative of Directors as per IND AS Interpretation 110 issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

# Value of Perquisites includes non Cash Perquisites of ¥ 0.03 Crs (previous year ¥ 0.02 Crs).

**During the March 2021 quarter a subsidiary viz Ganesh Polychem Limited ceased to be a subsidiary and became a jointly controlled entity
w.e.f. March 17, 2021
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27. SEGMENT REPORTING:

inCrs)
Sr. Particulars Financial Year Financial Year
No. 2020-21 2019-20
(A) Primary Segments: Business Segments
1 Segment Revenue:
a) Speciality Chemicals 4,151.40 3,864.95
b) Pharmaceuticals 871.88 755.74
Total Revenue (Gross) 5,023.28 4,620.69
Less: GST Tax Collected 517.18 434.38
Total Revenue (Net) 4,506.10 4,186.31
2  Segment Results Profit/(Loss):
Before Tax and Interest from each Segment
a) Speciality Chemicals 752.75 814.11
b) Pharmaceuticals 204.58 137.46
Total (A) 957.33 951.57
Less: Interest 86.37 124.78
Other Unallocable Expenditure (Net) 206.41 150.61
Total (B) 292.78 275.39
Total Profit before Tax (A-B) 664.55 676.18
3 Segment Assets:
a) Speciality Chemicals 5,638.60 4,766.25
b) Pharmaceuticals 1,192.99 958.60
c) Unallocated Capital 397.77 360.37
TOTAL 7,229.36 6,085.22
4  Segment Liabilities:
a) Speciality Chemicals 1,237.30 1,139.96
b) Pharmaceuticals 163.19 97.64
c) Unallocated Capital 233.94 211.01
TOTAL 1,634.43 1,448.61
(B) Secondary Segments: Geographical Segments
a) India 2,835.73 2,6565.17
b) Out of India 2,187.55 1,965.52
TOTAL 5,023.28 4,620.69
Note:

The above segment report is presented in accordance with the applicable provisions & principles laid down under IND AS 108.
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28. Additional Information, as required under Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises

29.

184

consolidated as Subsidiary/Associates.
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Net Assets (i.e. Total Assets
minus total liabilities)

Sharein

Profit or Loss

Name of Enterprise As % of As % of

Consolidated (R inCrs) Consolidated (RinCrs)

net assets Profit or Loss

Parent
Aarti Industries Limited 97.40% 3411.74 98.10% 513.50
Subsidiaries
Alchemie (Europe) Limited (0.02)% (0.70) (0.02)% (0.08)
Aarti USA Inc. (0.03)% (1.17) 0.00% 0.01
Aarti Corporate Services Limited 0.90% 31.49 0.00% (0.01)
Ganesh Polychem Limited=* 2.75% 96.28 4.49% 23.50
Innovative Envirocare Jhagadia Limited 0.00% 017 0.00% -
Nascent Chemical Industries Limited 0.02% 0.77 0.08% 0.43
Shanti Intermediates Private Limited 0.01% 0.36 0.01% 0.07
Aarti Polychem Private Limited 0.00% (0.01) 0.00% -
Aarti Organics Limited 0.01% 0.23 0.00% -
Aarti Bharuch Limited 0.01% 0.23 0.00% -
Aarti Pharmachem Limited 0.01% 0.23 0.00% -
Aarti Spechem Limited 0.01% 0.23 0.00% —
Non Controlling Interest in all Subsidiaries 0.35% 12.24 (2.24)% (11.75)
Inter Company Elimination & Consolidation Adjustment (1.40)% (49.19) (0.42)% (2.20)
TOTAL 100.00% 3,502.90 100.00% 523.47

*During the March 2021 quarter a subsidiary viz Ganesh Polychem Limited ceased to be a subsidiary and became a jointly controlled entity w.e.f.

March 17,2021.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:
Financial instuments by category

inCrs)
As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Name of the Shareholders %:ZL’:& Level 1 Level 2 ?{:\rg:jr:]gt Level 1 Level 2
Financial Assets
At Amortised Cost
Investments 35.11 = = 2214 - -
Trade Receivables 793.73 - - 753.44 - -
Cash and Cash Equivalents 412.32 = = 247.29 - -
Other Financial Assets 326.68 - - 349.67 - -
At FVTOCI
Investments 28.41 12.84 1557 14.87 4.23 10.64
Financial Liabilities
At Amortised Cost
Borrowings 2,843.84 = = 2,097.94 - -
Trade Payables 576.33 = = 345.16 - -
Other Non-current Liabilities 224.41 - - 550.89 - -
Other Current Financial Liabilities 207.90 = = 14.20 - -

The financial instruments are categorized into two levels based on the inputs used to arrive at fair value measurements

as described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities; and

Level 2: Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly.
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30. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT:

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital includes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves
attributable to the equity holders. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the
shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders orissue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Net Debt is calculated as loans and borrowings less cash &
marketable securities.

inCrs)

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

Gross Debts 2,843.84 2,094.16

Less: Cash and Marketable Securities (412.32) (247.29)

Net Debt (A) 2,431.52 1,846.87

Total Equity (B) 3,515.14 3,073.39

Net Gearing ratio (A/B) 0.69 0.60
Dividends

®inCrs)

Particulars As at As at

31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020

(i) Equity shares

Final dividend for the year ended 31st March 2020 of T 1 per fully paid share & Interim 43.56 104.54
Dividend for 2020-21 @  1.50 per Share paid during the year 2020-21

(ii) Dividends not recognised at the end of the reporting period
In addition to the above dividends, since year end the directors have recommended the 52.27 17.42

payment of dividend of ¥ 3 (31st March 2020 % 1) per fully paid equity share. This proposed
dividend is subject to the approval of shareholders in the ensuing annual general meeting.

31. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT:

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
to finance the Company's operations. The Company's principal financial assets include loans, trade and other receivables, and
cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the
management of these risks.

Credit Risk
The company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its financing
activities (deposits with banks and other financial instruments).

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to perform or pay the amounts due
causing financial loss to the company. Credit risk arises from company's activities in investments, dealing in derivatives
and outstanding receivables from customers.

The company has a prudent and conservative process for managing its credit risk arising in the course of its business

activities. Sales made to customers on credit are generally secured through Letters of Credit, Bank Guarantees, Parent
Company Guarantees, advance payments and factoring & forfaiting without recourse to AlL.
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Consolidated

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Credit risk management

To manage the credit risk, the Company follows an adequate credit control policy and also has an external credit insurance
cover with ECGC policy wherein the customers are required to make an advance payment before procurement of goods.
Thus, the requirement of assessing the impairment loss on trade receivables does not arise, since the collectability risk is
mitigated.

Bank balances are held with only high rated banks and majority of other security deposits are placed majorly with
government/statutory agencies.

Il.  Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its obligations on time or at a
reasonable price. For the Company, liquidity risk arises from obligations on account of financial liabilities such as trade
payables and other financial liabilities.

(@) Liquidity risk management
The Company's corporate treasury department is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as settlement. In
addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors
the Company's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows.

As at 31st March 2021
Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities

inCrs)
Particulars Upto 1 year 1 am?gt;eaerz Beyond 5 years Total
Trade payables 576.33 = = 576.33
Other financial liabilities 1,823.81 1,492.46 = 3,316.27
Total 2,400.14 1,492.46 - 3,892.60
As at 31st March 2020
Maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities

(®inCrs)

. Bet

Particulars Upto 1 year 1 and ?, ye?r: Beyond 5 years Total
Trade payables 345.16 - - 345.16
Other financial liabilities 1,571.21 1,131.73 - 2,702.94
Total 1,916.37 1,131.73 - 3,048.10
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Market risk

Foreign currency risk

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company's operating
activities in exports and imports which is majorly in US dollars.

Hence, to combat the foreign currency exposure, the Company follows a policy wherein the net sales are hedged by forward
Contract.

Commodity Price Risk
The Company has a risk management framework aimed at prudently managing the risk arising from the volatility in
commodity prices and freight costs.

The Company's commodity risk is managed centrally through well-established trading operations and control processes.
In accordance with the risk management policy, the Company enters into various transactions using derivatives and uses
Over the Counter (OTC) as well as Exchange Traded Futures, Options and Swap contracts to hedge its commodity and
freight exposure.

32. The figures of previous year have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For Kirtane & Pandit LLP Rajendra V. Gogri Rashesh C. Gogri

Chartered Accountants Chairman and Managing Director Vice Chairman and Managing Director
FRN: 105215W/W100057 DIN: 00061003 DIN: 00066291

Milind Bhave Chetan Gandhi Raj Sarraf

Partner Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary

M. No. 047973 ICAI'M. No. 111481 ICSI M. No. A15526

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 18, 2021
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Annexure 8 Tatin Vora Jatin Vora & Associates
B.Com., F.C.A. Chartered Accountants
dress:

203, Chheda Bhavan, 98, Surat Street,
Masjid (East), Mumbai - 400 009,

Tel: 022 - 4006 1063

Email: cajitvora@gmail.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE HALF YEARLY
STANDALONE FINANCIAL RESULTS.

To
The Board of Directors of
Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (formerly known as Aarti Organics Limited)

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying statement of financial results of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited
(formerly known as Aarti Organics Limited) (“the Company®) for the half year ended 30"
September, 2021 (“the statement™), being submitted by the company pursuant to the requirement of
Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as
amended (“the listing regulations™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Statement:

i) is presented in accordance with requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, as amended; and

1i) gives a true and fair view in conformity with the recognition and measurement principles laid
down in the applicable accounting standards and other accounting principles generally accepted
in India of the loss and other financial information for the half year ended 30™ September, 2021,

Basis of Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act). Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Results section of our report.
we are independent of the company in accordance with the code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial results under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code
of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide
a hasis for our opinion,

Management Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Results

These quarterly financial results have been prepared on the basis of the interim financial stalements.
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation of these finaneial results that
give a true and fair view of the net loss and other comprehensive income and other financial
information in accordance with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Accounting
standard 25, *Interim Financial Reporting’ prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with relevant
rules issued thereunder and other accounting principles generally accepted in India and in compliance
with Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. Fany

Page 1 of 3
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies: making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
result that give true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or
error,

In preparing the financial results, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company's
ability 1o continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Results

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial resulis as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are consider material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these standalone financial results.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial results, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control,

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of company’s internal control.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the ‘Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material unceriainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the company’s ability to continue
as a poing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial resulis or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, 1o modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Page2 of 3



* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial results,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial results represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with povernance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
cthical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

For Jatin Vora & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Registration No. 118024W

B
S

T ——

Jatin Vora

Proprictor

Membership No. 103866

UDIN: 21103866AAAAMM1141

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28" October, 2021.
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AARTI PHARMALARS LIMITED | Formerly Known As Aarti Organics Limited )

Balance Sheet as at 30th September, 2021

{Amount in Rs}

Particulars Note  Asat 30th Sept, As at 31st March,
Na, 2021 2021

ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment ML ML
Capital Work-in-Progress NIL HiIL
Intangible Assets NiL NiL
Fimancial Assets

Investmants NIL MIL
Other Mon-Currant Asséts ML NIL
Total Non-Current Assets NiL HiIL
Current Assets
Inventories NIL NIL
Financial Assets

Trade Receivables HIL HIL

Cash and Cash Eguivalants 1 2,242,129 2,500,000

Others Current Financial Assets MIL MIL
Other Current Assets NIL MIL
Total Current Assets 1,242,139 2,500,000
TOTAL ASSETS 2,242,129 2,500,000
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capltal 2 2,500,000 2,500,000
Othar Equity 3 {388,657) [232,711)
Total Equity 2,111,343 2,267,289
LIABILITIES
Mon-Current Liahilitios
Financial Liakilities

Barrowings MNIL MIL

Other Financial Liabilities 4 NIL 186,751
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) NIL NIL
Total Non-Current Liabiities NIL 186,751
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities

Barrawings MIL MIL

Trade Payvables Due 1o!

Wicro and Smatl Entereprises NIL MNIL
Other Than Micro and Small Entereprises NIL 25,960

Other Current Liablfities 5 130,786 20,000
Provisians NiL HIL
Total Current Liabilitles 130,786 45,960
Total Liabilities 130,786 232,711
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIBILITIES 2,242,129 2,500,000
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Notes
Explanatory Information 1-9

As per our repert of even date
Far Jatin Vora & Associates
Charterad Accountants

b
Jatin 5. Vora
Proprietor
Mermbership Na. : 103366
UDIM @ 21103B66AAAAMM 1141

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28th Cctober, 2021

ey

Aartl Pharmalabs lrmited
For and on bahalf of the Board

Rashesh C. Gogri
Directar
DN GO066291

FRN Mo. : 118024W Ly eARATEN i [ 8
I_“_.—______d__--"'-._.-—-—'-:-'—_’;/ T ¥ \ L e i
‘/-’_‘ A e "/:?/ N C""nbh ool e

Chetan Gandhi
Directar
DIN: DBB43850




AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED ( Formerly Known As Aarti Organics Limited )
Statement of Profit and Loss for the period ended 30th September, 2021

{Amount in Rs)

For the Period For the Year

Particulars Note No. Ended 30th Sept, Ended 31st
2021 March, 2021

REVENUE
Revenue from Operations NIL MIL
Other Income NIL MIL
Total Revenue NIL MIL
EXPENSES
Cost of Materials Consumed (Incl. Packing Material, NIL MIL
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade MIL NIL
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in- NIL MIL
Employee Benefits Expense NIL NIL
Finance Costs 810 MIL
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses NIL NIL
Other Expenses & 155,036 45,960
Total Expenses 155,946 45,960
PROFIT BEFORE TAX (155,946) (45,960)
TAX EXPENSES
Current Year Tax NIL MIL
Deferred Tax MIL MIL
Total Tax Expenses NIL NIL
PROFIT AFTER TAX (155,946) (45,960)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME MIL MIL
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (155,946) (45,960)
Earnings Per Equity Share (EPS) (in Rs)
Basic/Diluted -0.62 -0.18

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other

Explanatory Information

1-9

As per our report of even date
For latin Veora & Associates
Chartered Accountants

FRN No.: 118024W

latin &, Vora

Proprietor

Membership No. : 103866
UDIN : 21103866AAAAMM1141

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28th October, 2021

| Rashesh C. Gogri

Aarti Pharmalabs limited
For and on behalf of the Board

Director
DIN: 00066291

Director
DiN: 06843850
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AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED ( Formerly Known As Aarti Organics Limited )

Statement for the period ended 30th September, 2021

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars 30.09.2021 31.03.2021
A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Met Profit / (Loss) before extraordinary items and tax (155,946) (20,400)
nge in curr iabilities
Adjustments for increase [ (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Other Current Assets
Other Current liabilities (101,925) 20,400
Net Cash inflow/[out flow) from Operating Activites (A) (257,871) NIL
B. Cash Flow from In n iviti
Capital WIP MIL MIL
Wet Cash inflow/{outflow) from Investing activities (B) MNIL NIL
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of equity shares NIL NIL
Proceeds/|{Repayment) of Other Borrowings MIL NIL
MNet Cash inflow/{out flow) from Financing Activites (C) NIL NIL
MNet increase [ (decrease) in Cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) (257,871) NIL
Cash and Cash equivalent as at the commencement of the period 2,500,000 2,500,000
Cash and Cash equivalent as at the End of the period 2,242,125 2,500,000

Note:

(i} Cash and Cash equivalent is Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet,

As per our report of even date Aarti Pharmalabs limited
For Jatin Vora & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
FRM No.: 118024W
p _"___,__..-

—

Jatin 5. Vira

Proprietor Director
Membership No. : 103866 : DIN: DD0G6291
UDIN : 21103866AAAAMMI1141

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28th October, 2021

Rashesh éoglrl

T

ol flZ]
.:_‘-E:l.'..“c‘ N,

Chetan Gandhi
Directar
DIN; 06343250
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AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED ( Formerly Known As Aarti Organics Limited )
Statement of Changes in Equity for the period ended 30th September, 2021

EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

165

{Amount in Rs)

As at 1st April, 2020 2,500,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2020-21 MIL
As at 31st March, 2021 2,500,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2021-22 MIL
As at 30th September, 2021 2,500,000
OTHER EQUITY (Amount in Rs)
. Otrar Euiny Total Other
Particulars Reserves and Surplus Equi
Retained Earnings quity

As at 1st April, 2020 (186,751) {186,751)
Profit for the Period (45,960) (45,960)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 (232,711) (232,711)
Profit for the Period (155,946) (155,946)
Balance as at 30th Sept. 2021 (388,657) (388,657)

As per our report of even date
For Jatin Vora & Assoclates
Chartered Accountants

FRN No. : 118024W

latin §. Vaora

Proprietar

Membership No. : 103866

UDIN : 21103866AA0AMM1141

Place: Mumbai
Date: 28th October, 2021

For and on behalf of the

Aarti Pharmalabs limited

OE}VW
» ///.:. 1
Rashesh C. Gogri

Director
DIN; 00066291

Board

Chetan Gandhi
Director
DIN: 06843850
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AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED ( Fi s Aarti Organics Limited Year 2021-2022

1 Significant Accounting Policies:

El

Accounting Convention

The Company has prepared the balance sheet as per Ind AS by recognising all assets and liabilities whose
reconginition i required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets and llabilities which are not pemitted by Ind AS
and applying Ind AS in measurement of Recongnised assets and liabilities,

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities {including contingent labilities) on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Management
believes that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasanable. Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known or
materialised,

Caszh flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/{loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Cash an h i Cash Flow Statement

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances {with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
canvertible inta known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

Taxes on Income
i. Previsien for current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income for the period as per the provisions of
Income Tax Act, 1961,

ii. Deferred tax for the year is recognized, on timing differences, being difference between taxable incomes and
accounting income that ariginate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.
Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset
will be realised in future.

Revenue Recognition
Sale of goods

Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, an transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Sales include sales tax and value
added tax.

Other Incomes
Other incomes are accounted for on accrual basis except when the recovery is uncertain, it is accounted for on

receipt basis.
Earnin r

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profi t or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the
profi t or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary equity
shares, far the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares.

Provisi and H

A provision is recognized when the company has legal and constructive nhligalinn as a result of a past event, for
which it is probable that cash outflow will be required and 3 relidble estimate the amount of the nh_!qu‘rﬂr! =

contingent lability is disclosed when the company has possible or present obligation where it is not cert’,alq ﬂ'l;rmkk.
outflow of resources will be required to settle it. Contingent assets are neither recognized nar disclosed; - b L
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PHARMALABS LIMITED { Formerly Known As Aarti Organi e

Change of Name

During the Year Company has change its name from Aarti Organics limited to Aarti Pharmalabs limited and same
is approved at ROC. Necessary changes has been incorporate in all places including MOA & AQA.

Change of Registered Office

During the Year Company has changed its Regsitered Office to Plot No. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, 1st Phase, G.L.D.C. Vapi,
District Valsad Gujarat = 396195 and same is approved at ROC.

Scheme of Arrangment

The Scheme of Arrangement under sections 230 to 232 has been entered by the Company and Aarti Industries
Limited (the Demerged Company) and AND THEIR RESPECTIVE SHAREHOLDERS IN RESPECT OF DEMERGER OF
PHARMA DIVISION OF AARTI INDUSTRIES LIMITED INTO AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED [FORMERLY KNOWN AS
AARTI ORGANICS LIMITED) UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Scheme is pending for approval at Stock Exchanges, NCLT, Gujarat.

Demerged Company Aarti Industries limited is deemed to have been carrying on all business activities relating to
the demerged undertaking with effect from opening of business hours on July 1, 2021 and on account of and in
trust of the Company. All profits or losses, income and expenses accruing or arising or incurred after opening of
business hours on July 1, 2021 relating to the said undertaking shall get vested to the Company.

Pursuant to the S5cheme of Arrangement, Aarti Pharmalabs Limited has to issue to Equity Shareholder of Aarti
Industries Limited, For every 4 equity shares held in Aarti Industries Limited (a) 1 Equity Shares of Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited.

Details of Assets & Liability of Aarti Industries limited Demerged Pharma Undertaking to be Transferred to
Company is as below

Rs in Crore
Particular Amt
Property, Plant and Equipment 7B9.69
Investments 3271
Trade Receivable 256,89
Inventories 336.23
Other Current & Non-Current Assets [ Incl Cash & 72156
Cash Equivalents ) -
Total Assets 2,137.08
Trade Payables -170.47
Other Current & Non-Current Liability -71.00
Borrowings -725.68
Total Liability -067.14
Met Assets 1,165.94

Other Equity- The excess of the Net Assets trasnfered over the face value of the New Securities to be allotted by
Aarti Pharmalabs limited pursuant to scheme is to be debited to reserve & surplus as per the accounting
treatment specified in accordance The Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as notified under section 133 of the
Companies Act 2013
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AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED | Formerly Known As Aarti Organies Limited |

1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

Year 2021-2022

{Amount in Rs)
Pl As at 30th Asat 31st
Sept, 2021 March, 2021
Cash on hand NIL NIL
Bank Balance in Current Account 242,129 2,500,000
Bank Balance in Deposit Account 2,000,000 NIL
TOTAL 2,242,119 2,500,000
2 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:
{Amount in R}
Particulars No. of Shares  As at 30th Sept, No. of Shares As at 31st
2021 March, 2021
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of 10/- each 500,000 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of 10/- each fully paid up 250,000 2,500,000 250,000 2,500,000
TOTAL 250,000 2,500,000 250,000 2,500,000

Reconciliation of the number of Shares outstanding as on 30th Sept, 2021;

Particulars

Na. of Shares outstanding

Equity Shares at the beginning of the year
Equity Shares issued during the year
Equity Shares at the end of the year

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

As at 30th Az at 3st
Sept, 2021 March, 2021
250,000 250,000
NIL NIL
250,000 250,000

Name of the Shareholders

As at 30th Sept, 2021

As at 31st March, 2021

Mo, of Shares % held Mo. of Sharas % held
Aarti Industries Limited 250,000 100 250,000 100
The details of Equity Shares cutstanding during last 5 years:
Particulars Financial Year
2021-22 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18
Mo. of Equity Shares outstanding 250,000 250,000 250,000 NA A&
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AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED ( Farmerly Known As Aarti Organics Limited )

3 OTHER EQUITY:

[Amount in Re)

Parti As at 30th Sept, As at 31st
articulars
2021 March, 2021
Profit and Loss Account
Opening balance (232,711) (186,751)
Addition:
Met Profit/(Loss) for the year (155,946) {45,960)
Closing Balance (388,657) (232,711)
[Amount in Rs)
daiiciing As at 30th Sept, As at 31st
2021 March, 2021
4 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:
Loans & Advances from Related Parties NIL 186,751
TOTAL MIL 186,751
{Amount in Rs)
Pacticalars As at 30th Sept, As at 31st
2021 March, 2021
5 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Other Current Liabilities & Provisions 130,786 20,000
TOTAL 130,786 20,000
{Amount in Rs)
For the Period For the Year
Particulars Ended 30th Ended 31st
Sept, 2021 March, 2021
6 OTHER EXPENSES:
Offi ive Expenses;
Rent, Rates & Taxaes 111,086 MIL
Misc. Expenses/Charges/Gst Exp 6,750 3,960
Legal & Professional Charges 27,200 NIL
Auditor Remuneration 10,000 42,000
Total 155,036 45,960
AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION:
Audit Fees 10,000 32,000
Other Fees NIL 10,000
TOTAL 10,000 42,000
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AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED ( Formerly Known As Aarti Organics Limited )

7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Year 2021-2022

(Amount in Rs)

For the Period

For the Year

Particulars Ended 30th Ended 31st
Sept, 2021 March, 2021

Profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss (155,946) {45,960)

Weighted average number of equity shares for basic EPS

{in No.} 250,000 250,000

Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted EPS

{in No.) 250,000 250,000

Face value of equity shares (in Rs.) 10 10

Earnings per share Basic (in Rs.) (0.62) (0.18)

Earnings per share Diluted (in Rs.) (0.62) (0.18)

& There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to whom the Company owes dues on account of principal
amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have been made. The
above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company,

9 In the opinion of the Board, except as otherwise stated, the Current Assets and Loans and
Advances have a value on realization at least equal to amounts at which they are stated in the

Balance Sheet.




Jatin Vora Jatin Vora & Associates
B.Com., F.C.A. Chartered Accountants
Address:

203, Chheda Bhavan, 98, Surat Street,
Masjid (East), Mumbai - 400 009,
Tel: 022 - 4006 1063

Email: cajitvora@gmail.com

Independent Auditor's Report on the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements

Ta the Membhers of
Aarti Organics Limited

Orpinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind AS financial statements of Aarti Organics
Limited (“the Company™) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 317 March, 2021, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, Cash Flow Statement, and
the Statemeni of Changes in Equity and notes 1o the standalone Ind AS financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013, as amended ('the Act') in the mannér so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as al
31" March, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in
equity for the period ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SA’s), as specified under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements Section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the "‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institite of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the Financial Siatements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thercunder, and we have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor®s Report thercon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information, The
other information comprises of Directors Report with its annexure, but does not include Financial
Statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion therson.

In connection with owr audit of the standalone Ind AS Financial Statements, our responsibility is 1o
read the other information and, in doing so0, consider whether the other information s materially
inconsistent with the Financial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears 1o be materially misstated. If; based on the work we have perfoermed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this information; we required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report 1 this regard.
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Munagement’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including
other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards specified under
Section 133 of the Act,

This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
Judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and mainienance
of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the gecounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
OF error,

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, marters related to going
concern and using the going concem basis of accounting unless management either intends 1o liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are also responsible for overseeing the Company's linancial reporting
process,

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our responsibility are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstalement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance 1s high level of assurance but it is
nol guarantee that an awdit concluded in accordance with the SA’s will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with SA’s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ [dentify and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the standalone Ind AS Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive (o
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the opeérating effectiveness of such
contrals,

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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o  Conelude on the approprigteness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a matenal uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to ¢¢ase to conlinue as a going concen.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identily during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matier should not be communicaied in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected o outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order™) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
*Annexure A', a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the mformation and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit;

b} In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity are
in agreement with the books of account.

d) Tn our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the

Accounting Standards referred specified under section 133 of the Act, read with Companies
{Indian Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015, as amended.
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¢) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on 31" March, 2021, and
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31%
March, 2021, from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Companies
Act, 2013,

) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Amnexure B"”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the
Company to its directors during the period is in accordance with the provisions of section 197
of the Act; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The company does not any pending litigations on its financial position in its Financial
Statements.

ii. The company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts which
were any material foreseeable losses;

iii. There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company;

For Jatin Vora & Associates

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118024W

Jatin Vora
Proprietor

Membership No. 103866 R B
UDIN: 21103866AAAAFYTE22 ;

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2021.
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ANNEXURE - A TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Annexure referred 1o in our Auditors' Report to the members of the Company on the standalone
financial statements for the period ended 31" March, 2021, we report that:

1)

2)

3)

4)

3)

6)

7)

§)

9)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company does
not hold any have any fixed assets at any time during the peried under audit, accordingly para 3(i)
of the Order 15 not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is not
having any inventory at any time during the period ended under audit; accordingly para 3(ii) of the
Order is not applicable,

According to the information and explanations given 1o us the company has not granted loans,
secured or unsecured, to Companies, Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered
in the register maintained under Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not
given any loan, investment, guarantees, and security with respect to the provisions of Section 185
and 186 of the Act, accordingly, para 3{iv) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public covered under Seetion 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act, 2013,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Central
CGovernment has not preseribed the mainienance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013; accordingly, para 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable,

(2) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination

of the records of the company, amounts deducted/acerued in the books of the accounts in respect of

undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees® State Insurance, Income-tax,
Profession Tax, Goods & Service Tax (GST), Cess and any other statutory dues have been
regularly deposited during the period by the company with the appropriate authoritics.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees' State Insurance, Income-tax, Goods & Serviee
Tax (GST), Cess and any other statutory dues which have not been deposited by the company on
account of disputes

According to the information and explanations given 1o us, the Company has not borrowed from
any financial institution, banks, government; accordingly, para 3(viii} of the Chwder is not
applicable,

The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
{including debt instruments) and term loans during the period, Accordingly, para 3(ix) of the Order
is not applicable.

10) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no

material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the course of our audit.

11} According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the

records of the Company, no managerial remuneration has been paid or provided, Accordingly, para
3(xi) of the Order is not applicable,

Aan b AT
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12} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a
nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xi1) of the Order is not applicable.

13) According to the information and ¢xplanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with seetions 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind
AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards,

14) According to the information and explanations give (o us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not made private placement of equity shares during the
period; accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable.

15) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or
persons connected with him, accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.

16) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934,

For Jatin Vora & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 118024W

Proprictor
Membership No. 103866 QT
UDIN: 21103866AAAAFYTR22 "

Place: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2021.
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ANNEXURE - B TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Control under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2003 (*The Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Aarti Organics Limited
{“the Company™) as of 31™ March, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS
financial statements of the Company for the period ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maimntaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (*ICAI"),
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company's policies, the saleguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Nole require thal we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness, Our audit of
internal financial controls over financial reporting mcluded obtaining an understanding of internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind AS financial
statemnents, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selecied depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to these standatone Ind AS financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these standalone Ind
AS financial statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financtal reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordanee
with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that

(i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, a:cumtcl}r and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; .
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(it) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permil preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in aceordance with authorizations of management
and directors of the company; and

(ii} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
[inancial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31" March, 2021, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Jatin Vora & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 118024W e

Jatin Vora \ 03
Proprietor

Membership No. 103866

UDIN: 21103866AAAAFYT622

Place: Mumbai
Date: |5th May, 2021.
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AARTI ORGANICS LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

(Amount in Rs)
Note  Ag at 31t March, As at 31n
Fargcne No. 2021 March, 2020
ASSETS
Men-Currgnt Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment NiL HIL
Capital Work-in-Frograss NiL HIL
Intangible Assels HIL HIL
Financial Assets
Imvestments MIL NIL
Other Non-Current Assets NIL NIL
Tatal Non-Current Assets NIL HIL
Current Assels
Inventories NIL KIL
Financial Assets
Trade Receivablas NIL HIL
Cash and Cash Equivalonts 1 25,00,000 5,00,000
Others Current Financlal Assets NIL HIL
Other Current Assets MIL HIL
Total Current Assets 25,000,000 25,00,000
TOTAL ASSETS IS.M‘WII 2_5..130,000
ECQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQuITY
Eguity Shara Capital 1 25,00,000 25,00,000
Other Equity 3 (2,32,711) {1,86,751)
Total Equity 21,67,289 13,13,249
LIABILITIES
MNon-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings NIL NiL
Other Financial Liabikities 4 1,86,751 1,86,751
Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) MIL NIL
Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,86,751 1,86,751
Current Liabilities
Financial Liahifities
Borrowings NIL HIL
Trade Payahies Due to:
picro and Small Entereprises NIL ML
Other Than Micro and Small Entereprises 25,360 HIL
Other Current Liakilities 5 20,000 NiL
Provisions MNIL NIL
Total Current Liabilities 45,960 NIL
Total Liabilities iz 1,686,751
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIBILITIES ZSJW_‘WH E:,OD,DDGI
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other
Explanatory Information 1-10
As per our report of even date
For Jatin Viora & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants "”_f y

—
Jatin &

Proprietar N,
Membearship No. : 103866
Udin : 21 103BE5AAMMFYTEL2

Flace: Mumbai

51-@ Dhekekar

Director
DiN: DB620002

Chetan Gandhi
Darector
DIM: 06343850
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AARTI ORGANICS LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021
{Amount in Rs)
For the Year Ended For the Year

Particulars Note No.  31st March, 2021 Ended 315t
March, 2020

REVENUE

Revenue from Operations ML NIL

Other Income MIL NIL

Total Revenue MIL NIL

EXPEMNSES

Cost of Materials Consumed (Incl. Packing Material,

Fuel, Stores & Sparas) MIL MIL

Furchases of Stock-in-Trade NIL MIL

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-

progress and Stock-in-Trade MIL MIL

Employee Benefits Expense MIL MIL

Finance Costs MIL NIL

Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses ML NIL

Other Expenses 6 45,960 1,86,751

Total Expenses 45,960 186,751

PROFIT BEFORE TAX {45,950 (1,86,751)

TAX EXPENSES

Current Year Tax MIL MIL

Deferred Tax MIL NIL

Total Tax Expenses MIL NIL

PROFIT AFTER TAX {45,960) (1.86,751)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME NIL MNIL

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {45,960) {1,86,751)

Earnings Per Equity Share (EFS) (in Rs) 7 -0.18 0.75

Basic/Diluted

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and other
Explanatory Information 1-10

As per our report of even date

For Jatin Vora & Associates ‘,-”Fj:-_._ s AS N, For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Agcountants J,f s : 1'.'_-'~\\
FRN No. : 118024W Vet evmmani ol

=

Proprietor
Membership No. : 103866
Udin : 21103866AAAAFYTE22

Shyam ]Jhekelcar Chetan Gandhi
Director Director
DIN: 08620002 DIN: 06843850

Flace: Mumbai
Date: 15th May, 2021



AARTI ORGANICS LIMITED
Cash Flow S ent for the year ended 31st March, 2021
(Amount in Rs)
Particulars 31.03.2021 31.03.2020
A, Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Met Profit / (Loss) before extracrdinary items and tax -45,960 -1,86,751
Change in current Assets & Liabilities
Adiustments for increase / (d i iabilities: 45,960 NiL
Other Current liabilities
net Cash Inflow/(out flow) from Operating Activites (A) 0 -1,86,751
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Capital WiP MIL NIL
Met Cash inflow/{outflow] from Investing activities [B) MIL ML
€. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Froceeds from issue of equity shares NIL 25,00,000
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Other Borrowings MIL 1,86,751
Met Cash inflow/(out flow) from Financing Activites (C) . 26,86,751
Met increase [ (decrease) in Cash and cash
equivalents (A+B+C) 0 25,00,000
Cash and Cash equivalent as at the commencement of the period 25.00.000 MIL
Cash and Cash equivalent as at the End of the periad 25,000,000 25,00,000
MNote:
(i) Cash and Cash equivalent is Cash and Bank Balances as per Balance Sheet.
As per our report of aven date
For Jatin Vora & Associates For and on behalf of the Board

Chartered Accountants
FRMN No.: 118024W

£ G &
Jatin a Shyam DhekekaChetan Gandhi ',
Froprietor Director Director

Membership No. : 103866 DIM: DBE20002 DIN: 0243850

Udin ; 21103866AAAAFYTE22

Place: Mumbal
Date; 15th pMay, 2021
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AARTI ORGANICS LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A. EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL {Amount in Rs)
As at 1st April, 2019 25,00,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2019-20 NIL
As at 31st March, 2020 25,00,000
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2020-21 NIL
As at 31st March, 2021 25,00,000

B. OTHER EQUITY

{Amount in Rs)

Other Equity

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total Other Equity
Retained Earnings
As at 1st April, 2019 MIL NIL
Profit for the Period (1,86,751) (186751)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 (1,86,751) (186751)
Profit for the Period {45,960} (45,960)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 (2,32,711)] (2,32,711)
As per our report of even date
For Jatin Vora & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
FRN No.: 118024W ==,
il  Ag @ '
AN e
RF 1'I. II C B Lt
latin 5. Vora h\farﬁ-Dhekekar Chetan Gandhi :
Proprietor Director Director A B
Membership No. : 103866 DIN: 08620002 DIN: 06843850

Udin : 21103866AAAAFY7622

Place: Mumbai

Date: 15th May, 2021
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* Aarti Organics Limited FY 2020-2021

1 Significant Accounting Policies:

a  Accounting Convention

The Company has prepared the balance sheet as per Ind A5 by recognising all assets and liabilities whose
reconginition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items of assets and liabilities which are not pemitted by Ind AS
and applying Ind AS in measurement of Recongnised assets and liabilities.

b Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the management estimates and assumptions to be made that
affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities (including contingent liabilities) on the date of the financial
statements and the reported amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. The Management
helieves that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Difference
between the actual results and estimates are recognised in the period in which the results are known or
materialised.

¢ Cash flow statemant

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit/{loss) before extraordinary items and tax is
adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash
receipts or payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated based on the available information.

Cash and cash eguivalents (for purposes of Cash Flow Statement

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term balances (with an
original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

d Taxes on Income

i. Provision for current tax is determined on the basis of taxable income for the period as per the provisions of
Income Tax Act, 1961,

il, Deferred tax for the year is recognized, on timing differences, being difference between taxable incomes and
accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods.
Deferred tax asset is recognised and carried forward only to the extent that there is a virtual certainty that the asset
will be realised in future,

& Revenue Recognition
Sale of goods
Sales are recognised, net of returns and trade discounts, on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to
the buyer, which generally coincides with the delivery of goods to customers. Sales include sales tax and value

added tax.

Other Incomes
Other incomes are accounted for on accrual basis except when the recovery-is uncertain, it is accounted for on
receipt basis. ; e
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Aarti Organics Limited FY 2020-2021

f Earnings per Share:

Basic EPS is computed by dividing the profi t or loss attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company by the
weighted average number of Ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is computed by adjusting the
profi t or loss attributable to the ordinary equity shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary equity

shares, for the effects of all dilutive potential Ordinary shares.

g Provisions and Contingencies:

A provision is recognized when the company has legal and constructive obligation as a result of a past event, for
which it is probable that cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate the amount of the cbligation. A
contingent liability is disclosed when the company has possible or present obligation where it is not certain that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle it. Contingent assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.




AARTI ORGANICS LIMITED

= 1 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:

[Amount in Rs)

185

Particulars As at 31st As at 31st March,
March, 2021 2020
Cash on hand NIL MIL
Bank Balance in Current Account 2,500,000 2,500,000
TOTAL 2,500,000 2,500,000
2 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL:
{Amount in Rs)
Mo. of Shares  Asat 31st March, Mo. of Shares As at 31st
Particul
e 2021 March, 2020
Authorised Share Capital
Equity Shares of 10/- each 500,000 5,000,000 250,000 2,500,000
Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of 10/- each fully paid up 250,000 2,500,000 250,000 2,500,000
TOTAL 250,000 2,500,000 250,000 2,500,000

Reconciliation of the number of Shares outstanding as on 31st March, 2021;

Particulars MNo. of Shares outstanding
As at 31st As at 31st March,
March, 2021 2020
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 250,000 MNIL
Equity Shares issued during the year NIL 250,000
Equity Shares at the end of the year 250,000 250,000

Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares:

Mame of the Shareholders

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 315t March, 2020

Mo. of Shares % held Mo, of Shares % held
Aarti Industries Limited 250,000 100 250,000 100
The detalls of Equity Shares aumandinj durin; last 5 years:
Particulars Financial Year
2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18| 2016-17
Mo. of Equity Shares outstanding 250,000 250,000 MA MNA A
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3 OTHER EQUITY:

Year 2020-2021

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020

Profit and Loss Account
Opening balance

Addition:

Net Profit/{Loss) for the year
Closing Balance

(186,751) =

(45,960)  (186,751)

(232,711)  (186,751)

{Amount in Rs)

Particulars

As at 31st As at 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020

4 OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES:

Loans & Advances from Related Parties 186,751 186,751

TOTAL 186,751 186,751
(Amount in Rs)

Partlialing As at 31st As at 31st

March, 2021 March, 2020

5 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Other Current Liabilities & Provisions 20,000 MIL
TOTAL 20,000 MIL
{Amount in Rs)
For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended 31st  Ended 31st

March, 2021 March, 2020

& OTHER EXPENSES:
Office Administrative Expenses:
Rates & Taxes
Misc. Expenses/Charges
Auditor Remuneration
Total

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION:
Audit Fees

Other Fees Bt
TOTAL B AT

NIL 186,751
3,960 MIL
42,000 NIL
45,960 186,751
32,000 NIL
10,000 NIL
42,000 NIL
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7 EARNINGS PER SHARE
{Amount in Rs)

For the Year For the Year
Particulars Ended 31st Ended 31st
March, 2021 March, 2020
Profit after tax as per statement of profit and loss (45,960) (186,751)
Weighted average number of equity shares for basic
EPS 250,000 250,000
Weighted average number of equity shares for diluted
EPS {in No.) 250,000 250,000
Face value of equity shares (in Rs.) 10 10
Earnings per share Basic (in Rs.) (0.18) {0.75)
Earnings per share Diluted (in Rs.) (0.18) (0.75)

8 There are no Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises, as defined in the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, to whom the Company owes dues on account
of principal amount together with interest and accordingly no additional disclosures have
been made. The above information regarding Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has
been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of
infarmation available with the Company.

9 In'the opinion of the Board, except as otherwise stated, the Current Assets and Loans and
Advances have a value on realization at least equal to amounts at which they are stated in
the Balance Sheet,
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10 RELATED PARTIES DISCLOSURES
As per Ind AS 24, the disclosures of transactions with the Related Parties are given below:

| Name of the Company Relationship
1 Aarti Industries Limited Holding Company

Il Following are the individuals who with their relatives own Directly/indirectly 20% or more
voting power in the Company or have significant influence or are Key Management Personnel

1 Chetan Bipin Gandhi Director
2 Ajay Kumar Gupta Director
3 Shyam Shankarrao Dhekekar Director

The following transactions were carried out during the year with the related parties in the ordinary
course of business,

(A) Details relating to parties referred to in itemn | above,
{Amount in Rs)

Eh Description of Transaction Hokiing Company
No. (1
1| Sales of Finished Goods,/Sales Income MIL
2| Purchases of Raw Materials/Finished Goods NIL
3} Other Expenses NIL
4| Equity Contribution NIL
5|0utstanding items pertaining to the related parties at the balance-
-sheet date Receivable/(Payable) -1,86,751
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Annexure 10
AARTI INDUSTRIES LIMITED

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AARTI INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“COMPANY”) IN
ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AT ITS MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 19,
2021

1. The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company at their meeting held on August 19, 2021 approved a draft
of the proposed scheme of arrangement between Aarti Industries Limited (“AIL” or “Demerged Company”)
and Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (“APL” or “Resulting Company”) and their respective shareholders (“Scheme”),
which would involve transfer by way of demerger of Pharma Division Business of the Company (“Demerged
Undertaking”) to APL in consideration for issuance of shares by APL to the shareholders of the Demerged
Company, pursuant to provisions of Sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (including those of the Companies Act, 1956 that continue to remain in force), as applicable. The
Scheme was approved by the Audit Committee of the Company at its meeting held on August 19, 2021.

2. As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, a report is required to be adopted by the directors
explaining effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, key managerial personnel, promoters and non-
promoter shareholders of the Company laying out in particular the share exchange ratio (“Report”).

3. This Report is accordingly being made pursuant to the requirements of Section 232(2) (c) of the 2013 Act.
While deliberating on the Scheme, the Board inter-alia considered and took on record the following
documents along with this report:

(i) Draft scheme of arrangement

(i) Fair Share Entitlement Report dated August 19, 2021 issued by SSPA & Co.- Chartered Accountant and
Registered Valuer (IBBI Registration No: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10140) (appointed by the Company) ;

(iii) Fairness Opinion Report dated August 19, 2021 issued by Inga Ventures Private Ltd., a SEBI Registered
Merchant Banker, providing its opinion on the fairness of the Share Entitlement Ratio of the Pharma
Division as recommended by SSPA & Co, Registered Valuer, Chartered Accountants;

(iv) Statutory Auditors’ Certificate dated August 19, 2021 issued by Kirtane & Pandit LLP., the statutory
auditors of the Company as required under Section 232(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 certifying that
the accounting treatment in the draft Scheme is in accordance with the accounting standards and
applicable law;

(v) A copy of Audit Committee Report dated August 19, 2021 in terms of the requirement of circular no.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 and master circular dated December 22, 2020 bearing
reference no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249, issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India;

(vi) Report of the Committee of Independent Directors, dated August 19, 2021, in terms of the requirement
of circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 and master circular dated December 22,
2020 bearing reference no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/249, issued by the Securities and Exchange
Board of India;

After taking on the record the documents /confirmations referred above, the Board of the Demerged
Company approved the draft Scheme of Arrangement and Demerger.

www.aarti-industries.com | CIN: L24110GJ1984PLC007301
Admin. Office : 71, Udyog Kshetra, 2nd Floor, Mulund Goregaon Link Road, Mulund (W), Mumbai - 400080, INDIA.
T:022-67976666, F : 022-2565 3234 | E:info@aarti-industries.com
Regd. Office : Plot No. 801, 801/23, llird Phase, GIDG Vapi-396195, Dist- Valsad. INDIA. T : 0260-2400366.
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4. Following is the Report with respect to the aforesaid provisions;

A. Rationale of the Scheme

First Applicant Company basically has 2 (Two) business verticals i.e., speciality chemicals and
pharmaceuticals with divergent business profile, growth potential, risk-rewards, regulatory and
capital requirements and are largely independent of each other.

The Demerged Undertaking relates to pharma manufacturing units, allied activities,
investments and cash balance & cash equivalents for future Capital Expenditures of Demerged
Undertaking. In order to create overall value for the shareholders and also to enable
management of the company to focus and adopt the relevant strategies necessary for
promoting growth and expansion of the Demerged Undertaking, it is proposed that the
Demerged Undertaking, (as specifically set out in the Scheme), be demerged and transferred
to the Resulting Company under the terms and conditions of this Scheme.

The shareholders of Demerged Company, pursuant to the demerger, will get Equity Shares of
Resultant Company for the Values of Business Transferred in the manner set out under this
Scheme.

The demerger will also result in Demerged Company and Resulting Company achieving
operational efficiencies by streamlining of the relevant businesses.

By demerger of the Demerged Undertaking into Resulting Company, the financial resources will
be conveniently raised in accordance with the requirement of the business, leading to optimum
utilization of resources towards expansion and growth of the business of Resulting Company.
The demerger will enable Resulting Company to expand its presence in the fast-moving Pharma
Business in India and abroad.

The demerger will result into two dedicated and focused business segments i.e. Speciality
Chemical and Pharma without any risk or overlap of one business over the other

B. Share Entitlement Ratio

1.

Fair Share Entitlement Report dated August 19, 2021 issued by SSPA & Co.- Chartered Accountant
and Registered Valuer (IBBI Registration No: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10140) (appointed by the Company)

recommends the following Share entitlement ratio

“1 (one) fully paid up equity share of Rs. 5 (Rupees Five only) each of APL shall be issued and allotted
for every 4 (four) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 5 (Rupees Five only) each held in the Company.”

The recommendation of the share entitlement ratio has been approved by the Board of the Company.
The Scheme provides that upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of vesting of
the Demerged Undertaking of the Company in APL in terms of the Scheme, APL shall allot equity
shares, credited as fully paid-up, to the members of the Company, holding fully paid up equity shares
in the Company and whose names appear in the register of members of the Company on the relevant
record date or to such of their respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal

representative or other successors in title as on the record date.

e =

Admin. Office : 71, Udyog Kshetra, 2nd Floor, Mulund Goregaon Link Road, Mulund (W), Mumbai - 400080, INDIA.
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1. Falrness Opinion Report dated August 19, 2021 issued by Inga Ventures Private Ltd,, a SEBI

Registered Merchant Banker, providing its opinion on the fairness of the Share Entitlement Ratio of
the Pharma Divisian as recommended by S5PA & Co.- Chartered Accountant and Registered Valuer.

C. Effect of Scheme on stakeholders

S.Ne | Category of Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders
Stakeholder | TR e
i Shareholders » There is only one class of shareholders, i.e., equity sharehalders,
{including which includes the promoter as well as non-promoter shareholders
Promoter & Man- of the Demerged Company.,
Promoter * On demerger, the Resulting Company will issue and allot equity
Shareholders) shares to sach member of the Demerged Company, whose name [s

recorded in the register of members on the Record Date, as per the
share entitlement ratio mentioned in the Scheme.

The equity shares so issued and allotted as provided above shall be
subject to the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Resulting Company and shall rank pari-passu In all
respects

There would be no dilution or increase in the shareholding of the
promoter or non-promoter shareholders of the Demerged Company.
In terms of the Scheme, consequent upon demerger, on the Record
Date, the set of shareholders and thelr holding proportion being
proposed in the Resulting Company, is identical to that of the
Demerged Company, and thus, the overall ecenomic interest of
equity shareholders of the Demerged Company shall remain the
sdme,

The equity shares of APL shall be listed on the stock exchanges i.e.
BSE Limited and MNatioral Stock Exchange of India ("Stock
Exchanges”) in accordance with the SEBI Circular No. CED/DIL3/
CIR{2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, as amended from time to time,
and therefore sharcholders of AL (as of the Record Date) shall, upon
the Scheme becoming effective, hold equity shares of 2 (two) listed
entities, AlL and APL.

i)

Key Managerial
Personnel (“KMPs")

The Directors and KMPs of the Demerged Company, and their relatives,
do not have any cancern or interest, financially or otherwise, in the
Scheme excepl as shareholders in general, Therefore, the Scheme will
have no effect on them, except to the cxtent of their respective
shareholding and effect thereon as explained in point (i) above.

Admin. Office : 71, Udyog Kshetra, 2nd Floor, Mulund Goregaon Link Road, Mulund (W), Mumbai - 400080, INDIA,
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(iii) Creditors (Secured Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement or compromise offered
& Unsecured) to the creditors of the Demerged Company. Liabilities of any of the

creditors of the Demerged Company would neither be reduced nor
be extinguished in pursuance of the Scheme.

5. Adoption of the Report by the Directors
The directors of the Company have adopted this Report after noting and considering the information set
forth in this Report. The Board or any duly authorised committee by the Board is entitled to make relevant
modifications to this Report, if required, and such modifications or amendments shall be deemed to form
part of this Report.

For Aarti Industries Limited

—

—

Rajendra V. Gogri
Chairman & Managing Director
r. DIN: 00061003

Date: August 19, 2021
Place: Mumbai

e I TmL o e =
www.aarti-industries.com | CIN: L24110GJ1984PLC007301
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Annexure 11
AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED (“COMPANY") IN ACCORDANCE
WITH SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AT ITS MEETING HELD ON AUGUST 19, 2021

1.

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of the Company at their meeting held on August 19, 2021 approved a draft of the
proposed scheme of arrangement between Aarti Industries Limited (“AIL" or “Demerged Company”) and Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited (Formerly known as Aarti Organics Limited) (“APL” or “Resuiting Company”) and their
respective shareholders (“Scheme”), which would involve transfer by way of demerger of Pharma Division Business
of the Company (“Demerged Undertaking”) to APL in consideration for issuance of shares by APL to the
shareholders of the Demerged Company, pursuant to provisions of Sections 230-232 and other applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (including those of the Companies Act, 1956 that continue to remain in force), as
applicable.

This Report is accordingly being made pursuant to the requirements of Section 232(2) (¢) of the 2013 Act. While
deliberating on the Scheme, the Board inter-alio considered and took on record the following documents along with
this report:

(i) Draft scheme of arrangement

(i) Fair Share Entitlement Report dated August 19, 2021 issued by SSPA & Co.- Chartered Accountant and
Registered Valuer (IBBI Registration No: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10140) (appointed by the Company);

(iii} Fairness Opinion Report dated August 19, 2021 issued by Inga Ventures Private Ltd., a SEBI Registered
Merchant Banker, providing its opinion on the fairness of the Share Entitlement Ratio of the Pharma Division
as recommended by SSPA & Co, Registered Valuer, Chartered Accountants;

(iv) Statutory Auditors’ Certificate dated August 19, 2021 issued by Jatin Vora & Associates, the statutory auditors
of the Company as required under Section 232(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 certifying that the accounting
treatment in the draft Scheme is in accordance with the accounting standards and applicable law;

After taking on the record the documents /confirmations referred above, the Board of the Resulting Company

approved the draft Scheme of Arrangement and Demerger.

. Following is the Report with respect to the aforesaid provisions:

A. Rationale of the Scheme

e  First Applicant Company basically has 2 (Two) business verticals i.e, speciality chemicals and
pharmaceuticals with divergent business profile, growth potential, risk-rewards, regulatory and capital
requirements and are largely independent of each other.

o TheDemerged Undertaking relates to pharma manufacturing units, allied activities, investments and cash
balance & cash equivalents for future Capital Expenditures of Demerged Undertaking. In order to create
overall value for the shareholders and also to enable management of the company to focus and adopt
the relevant strategies necessary for promoting growth and expansion of the Demerged Undertaking, it
is proposed that the Demerged Undertaking, (as specifically set out in the Scheme), be demerged and
transferred to the Resulting Company under the terms and conditions of this Scheme.

e The shareholders of Demerged Company, pursuant to the demerger, will get Equity Shares of Resultant
Company for the Values of Business Transferred in the manner set out under this Scheme.

® The demerger will also result in Demerged Company and Resulting Company achieving operational
efficiencies by streamlining of the relevant businesses.

e By demerger of the Demerged Undertaking into Resulting Company, the financial resources will be
conveniently raised in accordance with the requirement of the business, leading to optimum utilization
of resources towards expansion and growth of the business of Resulting Company.

® The demerger will enable Resulting Company to expand its presence in the fast-moving Pharma Business

in India and abroad.
L3 @,
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® The demerger will result Into two dedicated and focused business segments i.e. Speciality Chemical and
Pharma without any risk or overlap of one business over the other

B. Share Entitlement Ratio

1. Fair Share Entitlement Report dated August 19, 2021 issued by SSPA & Co.- Chartered
Accountant and Registered Valuer (IBBI Registration No: IBBI/RV/06/2018/10140) (appeinted by the
Company) recommends the following Share entitlement ratio
“1 (one) fully paid up equity share of Rs. 5 (Rupees Five only) each of APL shall be issued and allotted  for
every 4 (four) fully paid up equity shares of Rs. 5 (Rupees Five only) each held in the Company.”

The recommendation of the share entitlement ratio has been approved by the Board of the Company.. The
Scheme provides that upon the Scheme becoming effective and in consideration of vesting of the Demerged
Undertaking of the Company in APL in terms of the Scheme, APL shall allot equity shares, credited as fully
paid-up, to the members of the Company, holding fully paid up equity shares in the Company and whose
names appear in the register of members of the Company on the relevant record date or to such of their
respective heirs, executors, administrators or other legal representative or other successors in title as on the

record date.

2, Fairness Opinion Report dated August 19, 2021 issued by Inga Ventures Private Ltd,, a SEBI Registered
Merchant Banker, providing its opinion on the fairness of the Share Entitlement Ratio of the Pharma Division
as recommended by S5PA & Co.- Chartered Accountant and Registered Valuer.

C. Effect of Scheme on stakeholders

Stakeholder

S. No Category of Effect of the Scheme on Stakeholders:

(i) Shareholders >

There is only one class of shareholder i.e. equity shareholders of the
Resulting Company.

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the equity shares of the Resulting
Company, shall stand cancelled as provided in the Scheme., Accordingly, the
existing shareholders would no longer hold any shares in the Resulting
Company.

On demerger, the Resulting Company will issue and allot equity shares to
each member of the Demerged Company, whose name is recorded in the
register of members of the Demerged Company on the Record Date, as per
the share entitlement ratio mentioned in the Scheme,

In terms of the Scheme, consequent upon demerger, on the Record Date,
the set of shareholders and their holding proportion being proposed in the
Resulting Company, is identical to that of the Demerged Company, and thus,
the overall economic interest of equity shareholders of the Demerged
Company shall remain the same.

The equity shares of the company shall be listed on the stock exchanges i.e.
BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India ("Stock Exchanges") in
accordance with the SEBI Circular No. CED/DIL3/ CIR/2017/21 dated March
10, 2017, as amended from time to time, and therefore shareholders of AIL
(as of the Record Date) shall, upon the Scheme becoming effective, hold
equity shares of 2 (two) listed entities, AlL and APL.

®

www.aarti-pharmalabs.com | CIN : U24100GJ2019PLC110964
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Personnel and
Directors

(i) Key Manageriall » The Resulting Company has Directors as on present date. Further, the

Resulting Company would be changing / would be appointing new KMP's /
Directors in pursuance of the Scheme becoming effective in order to comply
with the requirements of the relevant provisions of various applicable acts,
rules, regulations, and guidelines, applicable for listed companies.

(iii) Creditors (Secured &
Unsecured)

¥ Under the Scheme, there is no arrangement or compromise offered
to the creditors (secured and unsecured) of the Demerged Company. As on
date, there are no secured creditors of the Company. Liabilities of any of
the creditors of the Demerged Company would neither be reduced nor be
extinguished in pursuance of the Scheme.

4., Adoption of the Report by the Directors
The directors of the Company have adopted this Report after noting and considering the information set forth in
this Report. The Board is entitled to make relevant madifications to this Report, if required, and such modifications
or amendments shall be deemed to form part of this Report.

For Aarti Pharmalabs Limited

OY e —
,-'L’

Rashesh C. Gogri
Director
! DIN: 00066291

Date: August 19, 2021
Place: Mumbai

www.aarti-pharmalabs.com | CIN : U24100GJ2019PLC110964
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DCS/AMAL/MJ/R37/2136/2021-22 “E-Letter” November 9, 2021

The Company Secretary,

AARTI INDUSTRIES LTD.

Plot Nos. 801, 801/23, GIDC Estate, Phase llI,
Vapi, Gujarat-396195.

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation letter regarding Draft Scheme of Arrangement between Aarti Industries
Limited and Aarti Pharmalabs Limited and their respective shareholders.

We are in receipt of the Draft Scheme of Arrangement filed by Aarti Industries Limited as required under
SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated November
08, 2021 has inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of Arrangement:

e “Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered
for valuation report are not for period more than 6 months old.”

e “Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted
by the Company, after filing the scheme with the stock exchange, and from the date of
receipt of this letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock
exchanges.”

e “Company shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.”

e “The Company shall disclose all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery
proceedings, prosecution initiated and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against
the Company, its promoters and directors, before Hon’ble NCLT and shareholders while
seeking approval of the scheme.

e “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be
incorporated in the petition to be filed before National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT)
and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the notice of NCLT."

o “Itis to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing
and communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/stock
exchange. Hence, the company is not required to send notice for representation as
mandated under section 230(5) of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments
| observations / representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised:

« To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the
Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website.

» To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents
are disseminated on their (company) website.

«  To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars.

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to
those matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions
of Listing Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT. Further,
where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose Information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated
March 10, 2017.



35&

However, the listing of equity shares of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited shall be subject to SEBI granting
relaxation under Rule 19(2)(b) of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957 and compliance with
the requirements of SEBI circular. No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017. Further, Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited shall comply with SEBI Act, Rules, Regulations, directions of the SEBI and any
other statutory authority and Rules, Byelaws, and Regulations of the Exchange.

The Company shall fulfill the Exchange’s criteria for listing the securities of such company and also
comply with other applicable statutory requirements. However, the listing of shares of Aarti Pharmalabs
Limited is at the discretion of the Exchange. In addition to the above, the listing of Aarti Pharmalabs
Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be subject to SEBI approval and the Company
satisfying the following conditions:

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about Aarti Pharmalabs
Limited in line with the disclosure requirements applicable for public issues with BSE, for
making the same available to the public through the website of the Exchange. Further, the
company is also advised to make the same available to the public through its website.

2. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing all Aarti Pharmalabs Limited in line
with the details required as per the aforesaid SEBI circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated
March 10, 2017. The advertisement should draw a specific reference to the aforesaid
Information Memorandum available on the website of the company as well as BSE.

3. To disclose all the material information about Aarti Pharmalabs Limited on a continuous basis
so as to make the same public, in addition to the requirements if any, specified in Listing
Agreement for disclosures about the subsidiaries.

4. The following provisions shall be incorporated in the scheme:

i The shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depository system
till listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.”

ii. “There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited between
the record date and the listing which may affect the status of this approval.”

Further you are also advised to bring the contents of this letter to the notice of your shareholders, all
relevant authorities as deemed fit, and also in your application for approval of the scheme of
Arrangement.

Kindly note that as required under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be Six Months from
the date of this Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information
submitted to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any
contravention of Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement,
Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities.

Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any
other requirements.

Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read
with Rule 8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company
Rules) and Section 66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order
passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of the proposed scheme of
compromise or arrangement filed under sections 230-232 or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 as
the case may be is required to be served upon the Exchange seeking representations or
objections if any.
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In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served
upon the Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice
along with the relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre.

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking
Exchange’s representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the
Listing Centre only and no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular
dated February 26, 2019 issued to the company.

Sd/-
Rupal Khandelwal
Assistant General Manager
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National Stock Exchange Of India Limited

Ref: NSE/LIST/28287 11 November 09, 2021

The Company Secretary
Aarti Industries Limited
Plot No: 801, 801/23,
GIDC Estate, Phase III,
Vapi —396195.

Kind Attn.: Mr. Raj Sarraf

Dear Sir,

Sub: Observation Letter for draft scheme of arrangement between Aarti Industries Limited
and Aarti Pharmalabs Limited and their respective shareholders in respect of demerger of
Pharma division of Aarti Industries Limited into Aarti Pharmalabs Limited

We are in receipt of draft scheme of arrangement (“the Scheme”) between Aarti Industries Limited
(“Demerged Company”) and Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (‘Resulting Company”) and their respective
shareholders in respect of demerger of Pharma division of Aarti Industries Limited into Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited vide application dated September 09, 2021.

Based on our letter reference no. NSE/LIST/28287 I submitted to SEBI and pursuant to SEBI
Circular no. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (“Circular”), kindly find following
comments on the draft scheme:

a.

The Company shall disclose all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery proceedings,
prosecution initiated and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the Company, its
promoters and directors, before Hon’ble NCLT and shareholders while seeking approval of the
scheme.

The Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted by
the Company, after filing the scheme with the stock exchange, from the date of receipt of this
letter is displayed on the websites of the listed company and the stock exchanges.

The entities involved in the scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.

Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for
valuation report are not for period more than 6 months old.

The Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock exchanges shall be incorporated in
the petition to be filed before NCLT and the company is obliged to bring the observations to the
notice of NCLT.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the compaTnhi)S/Dgcéfg";ies wer ?"ecgfter processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/sfack exchange. Hence, the

Date: Tue, Nov 9, 2021 22:01:44 IST

D HEE Location: NSE

Mational Stock Exchange of India Limited | Exchange Plaza, C-1, Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (E), Murmbai — 400051,
India +91 22 26598100 | www.nssindia.com | CIN U6T120MH1992PLC069T69
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company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under Section 230(5) of
Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/ observations/ representations.

It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the company before NCLT after processing and
communication of comments/observations on draft scheme by SEBI/ stock exchange. Hence,
the company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5)
of Companies Act, 2013 to National Stock Exchange of India Limited again for its
comments/observations/representations.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted
companies involved in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the Circular.

Based on the draft scheme and other documents submitted by the Company, including undertaking
given in terms of Regulation 11 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, we hereby convey our “No
objection” in terms of Regulation 94 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015, so as to enable the
Company to file the draft scheme with NCLT.

However, the listing of equity shares of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (Resulting Company) on the
National Stock Exchange India Limited shall be subject to SEBI granting relaxation under Rule
19(2)(b) of the Securities Contract (Regulation) Rules, 1957. Further, Aarti Pharmalabs Limited shall
comply with SEBI Act, Rules, Regulations, directions of the SEBI and any other statutory authorities
and Rules, Byelaws and Regulations of the Exchange.

The Company should also fulfil the Exchange’s criteria for listing of such company and also comply
with other applicable statutory requirements. However, the listing of shares of Aarti Pharmalabs
Limited is at the discretion of the Exchange.

The listing of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement shall be subject to
SEBI approval & Company satisfying the following conditions:

1. To submit the Information Memorandum containing all the information about Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited and its group companies in line with the disclosure requirements
applicable for public issues with NSE for making the same available to the public through
website of the companies.

2. To publish an advertisement in the newspapers containing all the information about Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited in line with the details required as per SEBI Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017. The advertisement should draw a specific
reference to the aforesaid Information Memorandum available on the website of the company
as well as NSE.

3. To disclose all the material information about AartirRbammaalahs{sgnited to NSE on the

continuous basis so as to make the same public, in addition to the requirements, if any,

Signer: Harshad P Dharod
Date: Tue, Nov 9, 2021 22:01:44 IST

iﬁ NSE Location: NSE
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specified in SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 for disclosures about the subsidiaries.
4. The following provision shall be incorporated in the scheme:

(a) “The shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme shall remain frozen in the depositories system
till listing/trading permission is given by the designated stock exchange.”

(b) “There shall be no change in the shareholding pattern or control in Aarti Pharmalabs
Limited between the record date and the listing which may affect the status of this approval.”

However, the Exchange reserves its rights to raise objections at any stage if the information submitted
to the Exchange is found to be incomplete/ incorrect/ misleading/ false or for any contravention of
Rules, Bye-laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Regulations, Guidelines/ Regulations
issued by statutory authorities.

The validity of this “Observation Letter” shall be six months from November 09, 2021 within which
the scheme shall be submitted to NCLT.

The Company shall ensure filing of compliance status report stating the compliance with each
point of Observation Letter on draft scheme of arrangement on the following path: NEAPS >
Issue > Scheme of arrangement > Reg 37(1) of SEBI LODR, 2015> Seeking Observation letter
to Compliance Status.

Yours faithfully,
For National Stock Exchange of India Limited

Harshad Dharod
Manager

P.S. Checklist for all the Further Issues is available on website of the exchange at the following URL:
https://www.nseindia.com/companies-listing/raising-capital-further-issues-main-sme-checklist

This Document is Digitally Signed

Signer: Harshad P Dharod
Date: Tue, Nov 9, 2021 22:01:44 IST

i} NSE Location: NSE
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To,

The Board of Directors,
Aarti Industries Limited
Plot No. 801/23, GIDC Estate,
Phase [11, Vapi—396195
Guajrat, India

Sub: Scheme of Arrangement, pertaining to Aarti Pharmalabs Limited in relation to proposed
demerger of Pharma Business ("Demerged Undertaking') of Aarti Industries Limited (""Demerged
Company or AIL") into Aarti Pharmalabs Limited ("Resulting Company or APL") and their respective
sharcholders under section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder
(“Scheme”),

Dear Sirs,

This is with reference to our engagement letter dated April 28, 2021 entered with the Demerged Company for
inter-alia certifying the accuracy and adequacy of disclosures pertaining to APL made in the abridged
prospectus, to be sent to the shareholders of the Company, pursuant to the Scheme.

We have been provided the abridged prospectus pertaining to Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (“Abridged
Prospectus”), enclosed as Annexure 1 dated February 3, 2022, prepared by Aarti Industries Limited and Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited. The Abridged Prospectus will be circulated to the members of Aarti Industries Limited
and Aarti Pharmalabs Limited at the time of seeking their approval to the Scheme as part of the explanatory
statement to the notice.

Based on the information, confirmations, undertakings and documents provided to us by the AIL and APL, we
hereby confirm that the information contained in the Abridged Prospectus is accurate and adequate, in terms of
the paragraph 3(a) of Annexure 1 of the SEBI Circular CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 (""SEBI
Circular") read with the format provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (" Abridged Prospectus Format"),

Disclaimer and Limitation:

> This certificate is a specific purpose certificate issued in terms of and in compliance with SEBI circular
and hence it should not be used for any other purpose.

¥ This certificate contains the certification on adequacy and accuracy of disclosure of information
pertaining to the unlisted entity viz, Aarti Pharmalabs Limited and is not an opinion on the Scheme of
Arrangement or its success.

» The above confirmation is based on the information furnished and explanations provided to us by the
management of the AIL and APL assuming the same is complete and accurate in all material aspects on
an as is basis. We have relied upon the financials, information, undertakings and representations
furnished to us on an as is basis and have not carried out an audit of such information. Our scope of work
does not constitute an audit of financial information and accordingly we are unable to and do not express
an opinion on the fairness of any such financial information referred to in the Abridged Prospectus.

»  We shall not be liable for any losses whether financial or otherwise or expenses arising directly or
indirectly out of the use of or reliance on the information set out here in this repott.

> Our opinions are not nor should it be constructed as our opining or certifying the compliance of the
proposed Scheme of Arrangement with the provision of any law including companies, taxation,
Securities market, related laws or as regards any legal implications or issues arising thereon, in their
respective jurisdiction.

Inga Ventures Pvt, Ltd, 1229 | Hubtown Solaris | N. 5. Phadke Marg | Opp. Telli Galli | Andheri (E} | Mumbai - 400 069, India
Tel: +91-22-26816000 / 26826800 | Fax: +91-22-26816020 | Website: www.ingaventures.com

N Y67100MH2018PTC318359
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> We express no opinion whatsoever and make no recommendation at all as to the Company's underlying
decision to effect the Scheme or as to how the holders of equity shares of the Company should vote at
their respective meetings held in connection with the Scheme. We do not express and should not be
deemed to have expressed any views on any other terms of the Scheme or its success, We alsg express
no opinion, and accordingly, aceept no responsibility for or as to the price at which the equity shares of
Company will trade following the Scheme for or as to the financial performance of the AIL or APL
following the consummation of the Scheme. We XPIEsS no opinion whatsoever and make no
recommendations at all (and accordingly take no responsibility) as to whether shareholders/ investors
should buy, sell or hold any stake in the AlL.

For Inga Ventures Private Limited

K f st

Kavita Shah
Partner

Dated : February 3,2022

Place : Mumbai
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ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS

IN THE NATURE OF ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS - MEMORANDUM CONTAINING SALIENT
FEATURES IN RESPECT OF DEMERGER OF PHARMA DIVISION OF AARTI INDUSTRIES
LIMITED INTO AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED ON A GOING CONCERN BASIS PURSUANT TO
A SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT (“SCHEME") UNDER SECTIONS 230 TO 232 AND OTHER

APPLICABLE PROVISIONS OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“ACT") AND THE RULES MADE
THEREUNDER.

This is an abridged prospectus prepared to comply with the requirements of regulations 37 of the
Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) read with SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL 3/CIR/2017/21
dated March 10, 2017 read with Circular SEBI/HO/CED/DILUC1UP,/2020,/249 dated December
22, 2020, as amended from time to time, issued by Securities and Exchange Board of India (*SEBI
Circulars”) and is in accordance with the disclosure required to be made in the Abridged Prospectus
as provided in Part E of Schedule VI of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (lssue of Capital
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018, to the extent applicable. You are also encouraged
to read the greater details available in the Scheme.

This is an Abridged Prospectus/ Memorandum containing information pertaining to the unlisted
company, Aarti Fharmalabs Limited which is a party to the Scheme of Arrangement proposed to be
made between Aarti Industries Limited (hereinafter referred as " AIL" or "Demerged Company”) and
the said Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (hereinafter referred as " APL" or "Resulting Company") and
their respective shareholders pursuant to Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
(hereinafter referred to as the "Scheme”),

The Scheme along with the Abridged Prospectus is also available on the website of BSE Limited
(“BBE") i.e. https://www.bseindia.com, National Stock Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") i.c.
bitps:/ fwww pseindia.com and Aarti Industries Limited ie. http://www aarti-industries.com.
Nothing in this document constitutes an offer or an invitation by or on behalf of APL to subscribe
for or purchase any of the securities of APL.

THIS ABRIDGED PROSPECTUS CONSISTS OF 10 (TEN) PAGES. PLEASE ENSURE YOU HAVE
READ ALL THE PAGES.

AARTI PHARMALAES LIMITED

Registered Office: Plot No. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, 1st Phase, G.1.D.C. Vapi, District Valsad
Gujarat - 396195 - IN
Contact Person: Shri Nikhil Natu, Company Secretary
Phone No: +91 22 67976666
Email: nikhil.natu@aarti-industries.com Website : NA
Corporate Identity Number : U24100GJ2019PLC110964

NAME OF THE PROMOTERS OF AARTI PHARMALAES LIMITED
1. Aarti Industries Limited (AIL) 7. Shri Mananjay Singh Garewal
2. Shri Chandrakant V. Gogri 8. Smt. Menisha Bhatia
3. Shri Rajendra V. Gogri 9. Smt. Shreya Suneja
4, Shri Parimal H. Desai 10. &hri Jayesh Shah
5. Smt. Sarla . Shah 11. Orchid Family Trust
6. Smt. Bhavna Shah Lalka | 12. Bhavna Family Private Trust

|




(For further details refer to the para titled "PROMOTERS OF the RESULTING COMPANY" on
page 3 of this Abridged Prospectus)

SCHEME DETAILS, LISTING AND PROCEDURE

The Scheme of Arrangement between the Aarti Industries Limited (YAIL” or “Demerged
Company”) and Aarii Pharmalabs Limited (“APL" or “Resulting Company”) and their
respective Shareholders for demerger is presented under the provisions of Section 230 to
232 read with Sections 52 and 66 and other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
as may be applicable, and also read with Section 2(19AA) and other relevant provisions of
the Income-Tax Act, 1961, as may be applicable, for Demerger of the Pharma Undertaking
of the Demerged Company and vesting of the same in the Resulting Company on a going
concern basis.

Upon the Scheme becoming elfective, all the Assets, Liabilities, interests and obligations, as
applicable of the Pharma Undertaking of the Demerged Company, be transferred to and
vested in the Resulting Company on a going concern basis without requirement of any
further act, instrument or deed so as to become as and from the Appointed Date i.e, July 1,
2021, the Assets, Liabilities, interests and obligations, as applicable, of the Resulting
Company. 1 (One) equity shares of Rs. §/- each fully paid up of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited
shall be issued and allotted for every 4 (four) equity shares of Rs. 5/- each fully paid up held
in Aarti Industries Limited to the shareholders of Aarti Industries Limited.

Such equity shares (issued by the Resulting Company to the eligible equity shareholders of
the Demerged Company) will be listed on the BSE Limited ("BSE") and the National Stock
Exchange of India Limited ("NSE") (hereinafter collectively referred as "Stock Exchanges"),
in accordance with the provisions of SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21, dated
March 10, 2017, as amended from time to time. Further, as an integral part of the Scheme,
existing Equity Shares of APL shall stand canceled  without any further act and deed.

INDICATIVE TIMELINE

The Abridged Prospectus is issued pursuant to the Scheme and is not an offer to the public
at large. The time frame cannot be established with absolute certainty, as the Scheme is subject
to approvals from relevant regulatory authorities.

GENERAL RISKS O

Investment in Equity and Equity related securities involve a degree of risk and investors should
not invest any funds in this issue unless they can afford to take the risk of losing their
investment. Investors are advised to read the Risk factors carefully before taking an investment
decision in this Issue. For taking an investment decision, Investors must rely on their own
examination of the Resulting Company and the issue, including the risk involved.

The Equity shares in this issue have not been recommended or approved by Securities and
Exchange Board of India ("SEBI"), nor does SEBI guarantee the accuracy or adequacy of the
contents of the Scheme - Not Applicable as the offer is not for the public.
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Specific attention of the readers is invited to the sections titled 'Internal Risk Factors' on page
9 of this Abridged Prospectus.

PRICE INFORMATION OF LEAD MANAGER il

Not Applicable since the proposed issue is not to public shareholders but to the shareholders
of the Demerged Company pursuant to the Scheme.

STATUTORY AUDITORS OF MRTI PHARMALABS LIMITED

Jatin Vora & Associates
Chartered Accountants
203, Chheda Bhavan, 98, Surat Street, Masjid (East), Mumbai — 400 009

Contact Person Name : Shri Jatin Vora
Ph: : 022 40061063
Email id: cajitvora@gmail.com
Firm registration No. :118024W

PROMOTERS OF AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED

Sr, No., | Name No, of Share held %

Aarti Industries Limited (AIL) 2,50,000 100.00

Shri Chandrakant V. Gogri & P

Shri Rajendra V. Gogri = =

Shri Parimal H. Desai = -

Smt. Sarla 5. Shah - =

Smt. Bhavna Shah Lalka - -

Shri Mananjay Singh Garewal - 5

Smt. Monisha Bhatia - -

Smt. Shreya Suneja % ‘

Shri Jayesh Shah 5 &

pary e
o[ RO U )R =

Orchid ﬁ;ainily Trust = <

,,_.
]

Bhavna Family Private Trust - 5

BUSINESS MODEL OVERVIEW AND STRATEGY

APL was incorporated on 227 November, 2019 under the provisions ol the Companies Act
2013 vide certificate of incorporation with CIN: U24100GJ2019PLC110964 issued by the
Registrar of Companies. APL is an unlisted public limited company, having its registered office
at Plot No. 22/C/1 & 22/C/2, 1st Phase, G.1.D.C. Vapi, District Valsad Gujarat - 396195. APL
is authorised by its Memorandum of Association to carry on the main objects of

1. "To carry on the business of manufacturers, producers, processors, job worker, buyers,
sellers, imporiers, exporters, stockists, agents, merchants, distributors of and/or
otherwise dealers in fine chemicals, industrial and pure chemicals, organic and
inorganic chemicals, speciality chemicals, dyes, drugs, pharmaceuticals and allied
products including but not limited to perfumes, toilet goods, detergents, flavours,




solvents, chemical / drug / dye intermediates, cosmetics, insecticides, pesticides,

fertilizers, heawvy chemicals,

synthetics, resins, chemicals ! for
alcohols,

APL shall undertake the business of “Demerged Undertaking” of AIL which is proposed to be
demerged as per vide Scheme of Arrangement.

acids,

agrochemicals, petrochemicals,
Jormulations and articles of the above nature within and / or outside India.”

chemical, industrial preparations,
plastic, pigments, vamnishes, paints,
makers and dealers in preparatory

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Details of Board of Directors of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited

Sr. No | Name

PAN / DIN

Designation

Other directorship as on
date

1 Shri

Vallabhaji Gogri

Rajendra | 00061003

Director

1. Aarti Polychem Private
Limited

2. Alchemie Finserv Private
Lirnited

3. Crystal Millenninm
Realtors Private Limited

4. Gala Precision
Engineering Private Limited
5. Gloire Trusteeship
Services Private Limited

6. Kutchi Angel Network
Private Limited

7. Pinnacle Life Science
Private Limited

8. Prince Pipes And Fittings
Limited

9. Relacion Trusteeship
Services Private Limited

10. Safechem Enterprises
Private Limited

11. Aarti Industries Limited

2 Shri

Gogri

Chandrakant

Rashesh | 000656291

Director

1. Aarti Drugs Limited

2. Aarti Polychem Private
Limited

3. Aashay Finance and
Investments Private Limited
4,  Alabhya  Trusteeship
Private Limited

5. Alchemie Dye Chem
Private Limited

6. Alchemie Financial
Services Limited

7. Alchemie  Multichem
Private Limited

8. Anushakti Enferprise
Private Limited
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9. Crystal Millennium
Realtors Private Limited
10. Gogri Finserv Private
Limited
11. Saswat Trusteeship
Private Limited
12. Spark Pharmachem
Private Limited
18, Vahal Welfare
Foundation
14. Aarti Industries Limited
3 Mrs. Hetal Gogri | 00005499 Director 1. Aarti Nature Care Private
Gala Limited
2. Aashay Finance and
Investments Private Limited
3. Alabhya Trusteeship
Private Limited
4. Alchemie Dye Chem
Private Limited
‘5. Alchemie Financial
Services Limited
6. Alchemie Multichem
Private Limited
7. Anushakti Enterprise
Private Limited
8. Gogri Finserv Private
Limited
9. Saswat Trusteeship
Private Limited
10. Vahal Welfare
Foundation
11. Aarti Industries Limited
4 Shri Narendra | 00299202 Director 1. Aarti Drugs Limited
Jagannath Salvi 2. Aarti Pharmachem Limited
3. Aarti Industries Limited

5] Shri Chetan | 06843850 Director 1. Ganesh Polychem Limited
Bipin Gandhi 2. Aarli Bharuch Limited

3. Aarti Pharmachem Limited
4, Aarti Spechem Limited

5. Aarti Corporate Services
Limited

6. Polygomma Industries
Private Limited

BRIEF EXPERIENCE OF THE DIRECTORS _ _ &

1. Shri Rajendra Vallabhaji Gogri : Shri Rajendra V. Gogri has been part of Aarti
Industries Limited since its inception and was

appointed as the Managing Director in 1993. He

became the Chairman and Managing Director in 2012,

He holds a master’s degree in Chemical Engineering

from the USA and is a rank holder from ICT, Mumbai.

He worked along with Shri Chandrakant V. Gogri to

help Aarti Industries Limited achieve its present




2, Shri Rashesh Chandrakant Gogri

3. Smt. Hetal Gogri Gala

4, Shri Narendra Jagannath Salvi

5. Shri Chetan Bipin Gandhi

stature. In addition to his technical qualification, he
has expertise in handling financial and commercial
matters.

Shri Rashesh C. Gogri was appointed as the Vice
Chairman and Managing Director of Aarti Industries
Limited in 2012. Prior to that, he was the Director of
Aarti Industries Limited since June 1997. He holds a
degree in Production Engineering from Mumbai
University. He has played a key role in the growth of
various business units of Aarti Industries Limited. He
presently handles the commercial aspects and is
involved in strategic decision-making for Aarti
Industries Limited,

Smt. Hetal Gogri Gala is an Executive Director of Aarti
Industries Limited since November 2001. She holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Electronics Engineering from
Mumbai University and has done her Management
Education from I[IM Ahmedabad. She manages the
Pharmaceuticals segment and is also involved in
supply chain management of Aarti Industries Limited.

Shri Narendra Salvi is an Executive Director of Aarti
Industries Limited since April 1, 2020. He has been
associated with Aarti Industries Limited since 2001. He
oversees the operations, projects, regulatory
compliances and sustainability initiatives for the
Pharmaceuticals segment of Aarti Industries Limited.

Shri Chetan Bipin Gandhi is a qualified Chartered
Accountant. He is currently acting as the Chief
Financial Officer of Aarti Industries Limited.

OBJECTS - RATIONALE OF THE SCHEME

» Aarti Industries Limited basically has 2 (Two) business verticals Yl speciaity chemicals and
pharmaceuticals with divergent business profile, growth potential, risk-rewards, regulatory

and capital requirements and are largely independent of each other.

investments and cash balance & cash equivalents for future Capital Expenditures of
Demerged Undertaking. In order to create overall value for the shareholders and also to
enahble management of the company to focus and adopt the relevant strategies necessary for
promoting growth and expansion of the Demerged Undertaking, it is proposed that the
Demerged Undertaking, (as specifically set out in the Scheme), be demerged and transferred

to the Resulting Company under the terms and conditions of this Scheme.

The Demerged Undertaking relates to pharma manufacturing units, allied activities,

/b
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» The shareholders of Demerged Company, pursuant to the demerger, will get Equity Shares
of Resultant Company for the Values of Business Transferred in the manner set out under
this Scheme.

p The demerger will also result in Demerged Company and Resulting Company achieving
operational efficiencies by streamlining of the relevant businesses.

» By demerger of the Demerged Undertaking into Resulting Company, the financial resources
will be conveniently raised in accordance with the requirement of the business, leading to
optimum utilization of resources towards expansion and growth of the business of Resulting
Company.

» The demerger will enable Resulting Company to expand its presence in the fast-moving

Pharma Business in India and abroad.

» The demerger will result into two dedicated and focused business segments i.e. Speciality

Chemical and Pharma without any risk or overlap of one business over the other.

The Board of Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company believe that the
Scheme is in the best interests of the respective entities and their respective stakeholders
including its minority sharcholders, employees, and creditors.

For further details, please refer to the Scheme.

SHAREHOLDING PATTERN

Pre-Scheme Shareholding Pattern of Demerged Company as on September 30, 2021
Sr, No. | Particulars Pre-Scheme number | % holding - pre
of shares Scheme
1 Promoter and Promoter Group 16,27,74,644 44 .90
2 Public 19,97,29,391 55.10
Total 36,25,04,035 100.00

Post-Scheme Shareholding Pattern of Demerged Company*

Sr. No. | Particulars

Post-Scheme number
of shares

% holding - post
Scheme

1: Promoter and Promoter Group 16,27,74,644 44.90
Public 19,97,29,391 55.10
Total 36,25,04,035 100.00

* Please note that demerged company’s paid up share capital will not have any change due to

Scheme of Arrangement.

Pre-Scheme Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company as on September 30, 2021

| 8r, No. Particulars

Pre-Scheme number
of shares

% holding - pre
Scheme

il Promoter and Promoter Group

2,50,000

100.00

2 Public

Total

2,50,000

100.00

] Post-Scheme Shareholding Pattern of Resulting Company*




Sr. No. | Particulars Post-Scheme % holding - post
number of shares* Scheme
1 Promoter and Promoter Group 4,06,93,661 44.90
2 Public 4,99,32,348 55.10
Total 9,06,26,009 100.00
* subject to rounding off
AUDITED FINANCIALS iy CseaE e
(Rs. In lakhs)
As on As on As on As on March
September March 31, March 31, 31, 2019
30, 2021 2021 2020
Revenue from Operations = > -
Other Income - 3 2
Total Revenues - - -
Net Profit / Loss before tax and
extraordinary items -1.56 -0.46 -1.87 N.A. - Date
Extraordinary items - - - of
Net Profit / Loss after tax and Incorporatio
extraordinary items -1.56 -0.46 -1.87 gzNoveg{l)blng
Equity Share Capital (Issued &
Bubscribed & Paid Up) 25.00 25.00 25.00
Reserves and Surplus (other
equity) -3.89 -2.33 -1.87
Net Worth 21.11 22.67 23.13
| Basic Earnings per Share (INR) -0.62 -0.18 -0.75
| Diluted Earnings Per Share (INR) -0.62 -0.18 -0.75
Return on Net Worth % -7.39% -2.03% -8.07%
Net Asset Value per Share (INR) 8.45 9.07 9.23

Note:
1. Information has been taken from Annual Reports of Aarti Pharmalabs Limited for all the

above periods.

2. For the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2020 are based on Ind AS.

3. Net worth has been caleulated

for the year ended 31t March 2020 — Net Worth

is the

sum of Equity capital + Preference Capital + Reserves & Surplus. For other years — Net Worth
is the sum of Equity capital + Other Equity
Basic EPS and Diluted EPS has been calculated by — Net profit/(Loss) for the year divided

by Weighted Average No. of Equity shares.
Return on Net Worth % - Net profit/(Loss) for the period divided by Net Worth X 100.

Net Asset Value per Share (INR) calculated — Net worth less preference capital, if any, divided
by No of Equity shares.,
¥ L
| G

211



212

@ AARTI

INDUSTRIES

INTERNAL RISK FACTORS RELATED TO AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED

1. The proposed Scheme is subject to the approval of NCLTs and requisite approvals of
Sharcholders and creditors. If the proposed Scheme does not receive the requisite
approvals, the objects and benefits mentioned in the proposed Scheme will not be
achieved.

2. The new equity shares issued by APL pursuant to the scheme  shall remain frozen in
the depository system until listing/trading permission is given by the Stock Exchanges
for the equity shares of APL.

3. The proposed pharmaceutical business is subject to extensive regulation. If the
company fails to comply with the applicable regulations prescribed by governments
and regulatory agencies or our customers, our business, financial condition and results
of operations could be adversely affected.

4, The business is dependent on manufacturing facilities, and subject to certain risks
in the manufacturing process. Any slowdown or shutdown in manufacturing
operations or under-utilisation of manufacturing facilities or strikes, work stoppages
or increased wages demands etc. could adversely affect the business operations of the
company.

5. Non-compliance with and changes in, safety, health, environmental and labour laws
and other applicable regulations, may adversely affect business, financial condition
and results of operations.

6. The Company is facing immense competition from both domestic as well as
multinational corporations and inability to compete effectively may have adverse
impact on the business operation of the company,

7. The operations of the company are subject to multiple challenges under the present
uncertainty arising from COVID-19 pandemic.

SUMMARY OF OUTSTANDING LITIGATION

a, Total Number of outstanding litigation against the Company- NIL

Brief details of top 5 material outstanding litigations against the company: NIL

¢. Regulatory Action, if any — disciplinary action taken by SEBI or stock exchanges against
the promoters/Group Companies in the last 5 financial years including outstanding action,
if any - NIL

d. Brief details of cutstanding criminal proceedings against Promoters — NIL

v

ANY OTHER IMPORTANT INFORMATION AS PER ISSUER

Nil

& 4




DECLARATION | 15 Sia i

We hereby declare that all relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Comﬁanjcé Ac.t,l

2013 and the guidelines/regulations issued by the Government of India or the
guidelines /regulations issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, established
under section 3 of the Securitics and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as the case may be,
have been complied with. No statement made in the Abridged Prospectus is contrary to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, the Companies Act, 2013, the Securities and Exchange
Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued thereunder as the
case may be. We further certify that all statements in this document are true and correct.

For AARTI PHARMALABS LIMITED

N 5
k:lg/(‘ (o I
Director: Rashes .ogriL'

DIN : 00066291

Place: Mumbai
Date : February 3, 2022

10
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@ - AARTI
INDUSTRIES

LIMITED

To,

Manager,

Division of Issues and Listing,
BSE Limited

P J Tower, Dalal Street,
Murmbai - 400 001

Sub : Complaints Report

Ref.: Application under Regulation 37 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Reguirements), Regulations, 2015 for the proposed
Scheme of Arrangement under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013
("Scheme'"), between the Aarti Industries Limited (“AIL* / Demerged Company)
and Aarti Pharmalabs Limited (Formerly known as Aarti Organics Limited)
{"APL"/ Resulting Company) and their respective Shareholders.

Dear Sirs,

With reference to the Scheme filed by the Company with BSE Limited (“BSE™) on September 09, 2021
and subsequent uploading of the said Scheme along with other relevant documents by BSE on its
website on September 28, 2021,

As per Part I{A)6) of Annexure | to the SEBI Circular no. SEBVHO/CFDIDIL ACTR/P2020/249 dated
December 22,2020, the Company is required to submita “Repont on Complaints” containing the details
of the complaints /comments received by the Company on the Draft Scheme of Arrangement from
various sources within 7 days of expiry of 21 days (i.e. from September 29, 2021 1o October 19, 2021)
from date of filing of the Scheme with the Exchange and uploading of the same on its website.

The Period of 21 days from uploading of said documents by the BSE on its website expired on October
19, 2021; accordingly, we attach herewith a “Report on Complaints”, as “Annexure A" to this letter.

You are requested to take this on record and issue your NOC at the earliest.

For Au?uﬂﬁm Limited
Raj Sar Q i

Company Secretary
ICSI M. No. A15526

b 2.0 OCT 2021

Place: Mumbai

www.aarti-industries.com | CIN: L24110GJ1984PLCO0T301

T ; 022-67976EEE, F : 022-2565 3234 | E: info@aarti-industries.com

Regd. Office ; Plot No, 801, 801/23, llird Phase, GIDC Vapi-396195, Dist- Valsad, INDIA. T : 0280-2400366.

Annexure 15

Admin. Office : 71, Lidyog Kshetra, 2nd Floor, Mulund Goregaon Link Road, Mulund (W), Mumbai - 400080, INDIA
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A3 || AARTI
N7 - INDUSTRIES
LIMITED
Annexure A
COMPLAINT REPORT
AS ON OCTOBER 19, 2021
[September 29, 2021 to October 19, 2021
Part A

Sr. Particulars Number

No.

L Number of complaints received directly NIL

2 Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange NIL

a3 Total Wumber of complaints/comments received (1+2) NIL

4, Number of complaints resolved NOT

APPLICARLE
5 Mumber of complaints pending NOT
APPLICABLE
Part B

Sr. | Name of complainant Date of complaint Status

N, {Resolved/Pending)

8

NOT APPLICAEBLE
For Aartifindust L4r7u: lel

Dite: 2 0 DCT Z[] 21 Campany Secretary
Place: Mumbai TCSI M. No. A15526

www.sarli-industries.com | CIN: L24110GJ1984PLCO07301

Admin. Office : 71, Udyog Kshatra, 2nd Floor, Mulund Goregaon Link Road, Mulund (W), Mumbai - 400080, INDIA.
T . 022-GT9T7666G, F ; 022-2565 3234 | E : info@aarti-industries.com

Regd. Office : Flot No. 801, 801/23, lllrd Phass, GIDG Vapi-386185, Dist- Valsad. INDIA T 0280-24003566.
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Annexure 16

\ AARTI
INDUSTRIES
LIMITED

Oetober 11, 2021

Te,

Manager - Listing Compliance
Mational Stock Exchange of India
Limited ‘Exchange Plaza’. C-1,
Block G, Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400 051
Company Code: AARTIIND

Sub: Complaints Report

Ref.: Application under Regulation 37 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the proposed Scheme
of Arrangement under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Scheme"),
between the Aarti Industries Limited (“AIL” / Demerged Company) and Aarti
Pharmalabs Limited (Formerly known as Aarti Organies Limited) ("APL" / Resulting
Company) and their respective Shareholders.

Dear Sirs,
With reference to the Scheme filed by the Company with National Stock Exchange of India Limited

(“NSE") cn September 9, 2021 and subsequent uploading of the said Scheme along with other relevant
documents by NSE on its website on September 17, 2021,

As per Part WANS) of Annexure T 1o the SEBI Circular no. SEBYHOVCFDRIDIL VCIR/P 20200249 dated
December 22, 2020, the Company is required to submit a “Report on Complaints” containing the details of
the complaints /comments received by the Company on the Draft Scheme of Arrangement from various
sources within 7 days of expiry of 21 days [i.e. from September 18, 2021 to October 9, 2021] from date of
filing of the Scheme with the Exchange and uploading of the same on its website.

The period of 21 days from uploading of said documents by the NSE on its website expired on October 9,
2021; accordingly, we attach herewith a “Report on Complaints”, as “Annexure A" to this letter.

You are requested to take this on record and issue your NOC at the earliest,
Yours faithfully,

For Aarti Industries Limited

Raj !
Company
(ICSI M. MNo. A15526)

wwiw.aarti-industries.com | CIN: L24110GJ1884PLCO07301
Admin. Office : 71, Udyog Kshetra, 2nd Floor, Mulund Garegaon Link Road, Mulurd {W). Mumbal - 400080, INDIA.
T : 022-B7976666, F : 022-2565 3234 | E; info@aarti-Industries.com
Regd. Office : Plol No, 801, 801/23, llird Phase, GIDC Vapi-386195, Dist- Valsad. INDIA. T 0260-2400388,
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N\ AARTI
7 | INDUSTRIES
LIMITED
Annexure A
COMPLAINT REPORT
|September 18, 2021 to October 9, 2021]
Part A
Sr. Particulars Number
No.
1. Mumber of complaints received directly NIL
3. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange
NIL
4
3. Total Number of complainis/comments received (142)
NIL
4. Number of complaints resolved NOT
APPLICABLE
5 Number of complaints pending NOT
| APPLICABLE
Part B
Sr. | Name of complainant Date of complaint Status T
No. (Resolved/Pending)
L.
NOT APPLICABLE
For Aarti Industries Limited

e

Company Secretary
(ICSI M. No. A15526)

Date: October 11,2021

Admin., Office : 71, Udyog Kshetra, 2nd Flsor, Mulund Goregaen Link Road, Mulund (W), Mumbai - 400080, INDLA.

Regd. Office : Plot No. 801, 801/23, llird Phase, GIDC Vap|-386195, Dist- Valsad INDEA. T : 02B0-2400366.

www.aarti-industries.com | CIN: L24110GJ1284PLC00T301

T : D22-67976666, F : 022-2565 3234 | E: info@aart-industries.com
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BSE-524208 | NSE-AARTIND |

Registered Office

Plot Nos. 801, 801/23 GIDC Estate
Phase llI, Vapi- 396 195

Dist. Valsad, Gujarat

Website: www.aarti-industries.com

CIN - L24110GJ1984PLC007301

Corporate Office

71, 2nd Floor, Udyog Kshetra,
Mulund-Goregaon Link Road,
Salpa Devi Pada, Mulund West,
Mumbai - 400 080, Maharashtra

Vakils
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